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Key information document for issue of Debentures on a private placement basis under Schedule I of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to time in relation to the issue of 5,000
(five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having
a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty
Crore) including a green shoe option of 2,500 (two thousand and five hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable,
transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and
an aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Five Crore) (""Debentures" or "NCDs") on a private placement
basis (the "Issue'). Certain details of the Debentures are as follows:
(a) Rating: The Debentures are rated as "ICRA A-"” (pronounced as "ICRA A Minus") with 'Stable' outlook by ICRA Limited pursuant to the

letter/press release dated October 05, 2023. Please refer to Annexure I for the rating letter, press release and rating rationale. No other credit

ratings have been obtained for the purposes of this Issue.

(b)

prescribed under the SEBI Listing Timelines Requirements (as defined below).

©
(d)

Eligible Investors: Please refer Section 8.7 below.
Coupon related details: The coupon rate 11.00% (eleven decimal zero zero percent) per annum payable monthly. Please refer Section

Listing: The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) of the BSE Limited within the time period

5.34 (Summary Terms) below for details about coupon/dividend rate, coupon/dividend payment frequency, redemption date, redemption

amount.
(e) Underwriting: Not Applicable

(®

Details of Electronic Book Mechanism: Please refer Section 8 below.
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Background

This Key Information Document (as defined below) is related to the Debentures to be issued by Satin Creditcare Network Limited (the
“Issuer” or “Company”) on a private placement basis and contains information and disclosures supplemental to those set out in the General
Information Document (as defined below), as are required for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of the Debentures
described under this Key Information Document has been authorised by the Issuer through resolutions passed by the shareholders of the
Issuer dated August 9, 2023 and July 06, 2019 and the Board of Directors of the Issuer on May 15, 2020 and July 10, 2023 read with the
resolution October 06, 2023 of the Working Committee of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Company’s shareholders dated August 9, 2023 and July 06, 2019 in accordance with Section 42
and Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 respectively, the Company has been authorised to raise funds upon such terms and
conditions as the Board may think fit for aggregate amounts not exceeding INR 5,000,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Thousand Crore)
and INR 15,000,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen Thousand Crore) respectively. The present issue of Debentures in terms of this Key
Information Document is within the overall borrowing limit as per the shareholder resolutions dated July 06, 2019 pursuant to Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and shareholders resolution dated August 9, 2023 pursuant to Section 42 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Issuer’s Absolute Responsibility

The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Key Information Document contains all
information with regard to the Issuer and the Issue which is material in the context of the Issue, that the information contained in the Key
Information Document is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are
honestly stated and that there are no other facts, the omission of which make this document as a whole or any of such information or the
expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading.

Issue Schedule
Issue Opening Date October 12, 2023
Issue Closing Date October 12,2023
Pay In Date October 13, 2023
Deemed Date of Allotment October 13, 2023
DISCLAIMERS
> This Key Information Document contains no unsubstantiated forward-looking statements. To the extent there are any
unsubstantiated forward-looking statements under this Key Information Document, such statements shall be considered to be null
and void.
> This issue document does not include any statement purporting to be made by an expert other than if the expert is a person who

is not, and has not been, engaged or interested in the formation or promotion or management, of the Issuer and has given their
written consent to this issue of this Key Information Document and has not withdrawn such consent before the delivery of a copy
of this Key Information Document to the Registrar (as applicable) for registration.

> Various disclosures set out in this Key Information Document have been linked to the disclosures set out in the General
Information Document. There are no changes to the disclosures which have been linked to the disclosures set out in the General
Information Document.
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the meanings given
below in this Key Information Document.

Act/Companies Act

means the Companies Act, 2013, and shall include any re-enactment,
amendment or modification of the Companies Act, 2013, as in effect
from time to time.

Allot/Allotment/Allotted

The allotment of the Debentures pursuant to this Issue.

Applicable Accounting
Standards

means the generally accepted accounting principles, standards and
practices in India or any other prevailing accounting standard in India
as may be applicable, and includes the Indian Accounting Standards
(IND-AS).

Applicable Law

means all applicable statutes, enactments or acts of any legislative
body in India, laws, ordinances, rules, bye-laws, regulations,
notifications, guidelines, policies, directions, directives and orders of
any Governmental Authority and any modifications or re-enactments
thereof.

Applicant

means a person who has submitted a completed Application Form to
the Issuer, and "Applicants" shall be construed accordingly.

Application Form

means the application form to apply for subscription to the Debentures,
which is in the form annexed to this Key Information Document and
marked as Annexure I1L

Application Money means the subscription amounts paid by the Applicant at the time of
submitting the Application Form.
Assets means, for any date of determination, the assets of the Issuer on such

date as the same would be determined in accordance with the
Applicable Accounting Standards.

Beneficial Owners

means the holders of the Debentures in dematerialised form whose
names are recorded as such with the Depository(ies) in the Register of
Beneficial Owners, and "Beneficial Owner" shall be construed
accordingly.

Board / Board of The Board of Directors of the Issuer.
Directors
BSE means BSE Limited.

Business Day

means:

(a) subject to (b) and (c) below, means any day on which
commercial banks in Mumbai, India and New Delhi, India are
open for business;

(b) for the period commencing on the "Issue Opening Date" set
out in the Key Information Document until the "Issue Closing
Date" set out in the Key Information Document, any day (other
than a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday under Section 25
of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881), on which
commercial banks in Mumbai, India and New Delhi, India are
open for business; and

() for the period commencing on the "Issue Closing Date" set out
in the Key Information Document until the listing of the

4
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Debentures in accordance with this Deed, any trading day of
BSE, other than a Saturday, Sunday or a bank holiday, as
specified by SEBI,

and "Business Days" shall be construed accordingly

Capital Adequacy Ratio means the capital adequacy ratio determined in accordance with the
circulars/directions prescribed by the RBI (including the NBFC
Directions).

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

CERSAI shall mean the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction

and Security Interest of India.

Client Loan

means each loan disbursed by the Issuer as a lender, and "Client
Loans" shall be construed accordingly.

Company/ Issuer/
Satin Creditcare

means Satin Creditcare Network Limited.

Conditions Precedent

means the conditions precedent set out in Section 5.34 (Summary
Terms) of this Key Information Document.

Conditions Subsequent

means the conditions subsequent set out in Section 5.34 (Summary
Terms) of this Key Information Document.

Constitutional Documents

means the certificate of incorporation of the Issuer, the memorandum
of association and articles of association of the Issuer and the
certificate of registration issued by the RBI to the Issuer.

Control

has the meaning given to it in the Companies Act.

Debentures/NCDs

means:
(a) if the Green Shoe Option has been exercised in accordance
with this Key Information Document and has been fully
subscribed, 5,000 (five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed,
taxable, redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value of INR
1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate
face value of INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore);

(b) if the Green Shoe Option has been exercised in accordance
with this Key Information Document and has been partly
subscribed, such number of rated, senior, secured, listed,
transferable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in INR each having a face value of INR 1,00,000
(Indian Rupees One Lakh) that are set out in the return of
allotment filed by the Issuer with the ROC pursuant to Rule
14(6) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014; or

(c) if the Green Shoe Option has not been exercised in accordance
with this Key Information Document, 2,500 (two thousand
five hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000
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(Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value
of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Five Crore).

Debenture Holders /
Investors

means each person who is:

(a) registered as a Beneficial Owner; and
(b) registered as a debenture holder in the Register of Debenture
Holders.

Sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) shall be deemed to include
transferees of the Debentures registered with the Issuer and the
Depository(ies) from time to time, and in the event of any
inconsistency between (a) and (b) above, (a) shall prevail,

and "Debenture Holder" or "Investor" shall be construed
accordingly.

Debenture Trustee

means Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Debenture Trustee
Agreement

means the debenture trustee agreement executed / to be executed by
and between the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer for the purposes of
appointment of the Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee in
connection with the issuance of the Debentures.

Debenture Trust
Deed/DTD

means the debenture trust deed executed / to be executed by and
between the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer inter alia setting out the
terms upon which the Debentures are being issued and shall include
the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided by
the Issuer.

Debenture Trustees

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture

Regulations/ SEBI Trustees) Regulations, 1993, as amended, modified, supplemented or
Debenture Trustees restated from time to time.

Regulations

Debt Disclosure means, collectively, the General Information Document and this Key
Documents Information Document, and "Debt Disclosure Document” means any

one of them.

Debt Listing Regulations/

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing

SEBI Debt Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended,
Regulations modified, supplemented or restated from time to time.

Deed of Hypothecation has the meaning given to it in the Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).
Deemed Date of means October 13, 2023.

Allotment

Demat Means dematerialized securities which are securities that are in

electronic form, and not in physical form, with the entries noted by the
Depository.

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Depositories means the depositories with which the Issuer has made arrangements
for dematerialising the Debentures, being NSDL and CDSL, and
"Depository" means any one of them.

Depository Participant / A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

DP

Director(s) Director(s) of the Issuer.

DP ID Depository Participant Identification Number.
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DRR

means the Debenture Redemption Reserve.

Due Dates

means the date on which any interest (including any interest amounts),
any redemption payment, any additional interest, any liquidated
damages, any premature redemption amount and/or any other amounts
payable, are due and payable, including but not limited to the Interest
Payment Dates, the Final Redemption Date, or any other date in
accordance on which any payment is to be made by the Issuer under
the Transaction Documents.

EBP Platform

has the meaning given to it under the EBP Requirements.

Electronic Book Provider
/ EBP

has the meaning given to it under the EBP Requirements.

Effective Date

means the date of execution of the DTD.

EFT

Electronic Fund Transfer

Eligible Investors

has the meaning given to it in Section 8.7.

Equity

means, in respect of any person, (a) the aggregate of the issued and
paid up equity shares of such person, all compulsorily convertible
instruments and preference share capital of such person, and all
reserves (excluding revaluation reserves) of such person, less (b) the
aggregate of any dividend declared, any deferred tax liability, deferred
tax assets, intangibles (including but not restricted to brand valuation,
goodwill, etc.) as per the latest audited financials of such person.

Events of Default

means the events of default set out in Section 7.6.2 (Events of Default)
of this Key Information Document, and "Event of Default" shall be
construed accordingly.

Final Redemption Date

means the date occurring on the expiry of a period of 27 (twenty seven)
months from the Deemed Date of Allotment being January 13, 2026.

Final Settlement Date

means the date on which all Secured Obligations have been irrevocably
and unconditionally paid and discharged in full to the satisfaction of
the Debenture Holders.

Financial Indebtedness

means any indebtedness for or in respect of:
(a) moneys borrowed in the form of loan/s;
(b) any amount raised by acceptance under any acceptance

credit, bill acceptance or bill endorsement facility or
dematerialised equivalent;

(¢) any amount raised pursuant to any note purchase facility or
the issue of bonds, notes, loan stock or any similar
instrument;

(d) the amount of any liability in respect of any lease or hire

purchase contract which would, in accordance with the
Applicable Accounting Standards, be treated as a finance or
capital lease;

(e) receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables
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to the extent they are sold on a non-recourse basis);

6)) any amount raised under any other transaction (including
any forward sale or purchase agreement) having the
commercial effect of a borrowing;

(2) any derivative transaction entered into in connection with
protection against or benefit from fluctuation in any rate or
price (and, when calculating the value of any derivative
transaction, only the marked to market value shall be taken
into account);

(h) shares which are expressed to be redeemable or shares
which are the subject of a put option or any form of
guarantee;

@) any obligation under any put option in respect of any
securities;

G) any counter-indemnity obligation in respect of a guarantee,

indemnity, bond, standby or documentary letter of credit or
any other instrument issued by a bank or financial
institution;

(k) any corporate/personal guarantee, a letter of comfort or any
other similar contractual comfort issued or incurred in
respect of a liability incurred by any other third person; and

) the amount of any liability in respect of any guarantee or
indemnity for any of the items referred to in paragraphs (a)
to (k) above.

Financial Year/ FY

means each period of 12 (twelve) months commencing on April 1 of
any calendar year and ending on March 31 of the subsequent calendar
year.

General Information
Document/GID

means the general information document dated July 24, 2023 issued
by the Issuer in respect of issuance of non-convertible debentures on a
private placement basis.

Governmental Authority

means any government (central, state or otherwise) or any
governmental agency, semi-governmental or judicial or quasi-judicial
or administrative entity, department or authority, agency or authority
including any stock exchange or any self-regulatory organisation,
established under any Applicable Law, and "Governmental
Authorities" shall be construed accordingly.

Green Shoe Option

Means 2,500 (two thousand and five hundred) senior, secured, rated,
listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian
Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR
25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Five Crore).

Gross Loan Portfolio

means the outstanding principal amounts of all Client Loans originated
by the Issuer on its own books and the Off Balance Sheet Portfolio
(including managed portfolio).
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Hypothecated Assets has the meaning given to it in the Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).
ICCL means the Indian Clearing Corporation Limited.
INR/Rs. means Indian Rupees.

Interest Payment Dates

means the dates on which interest is payable on the Debentures, and
"Interest Payment Date" shall be construed accordingly.

The indicative interest payment schedule is set out in Annexure [V
below.

Interest Rate/Coupon
Rate

means 11.00% (eleven decimal zero zero percent) per annum payable
monthly (fixed).

Issue

means this issue of the Debentures.

Issue Closing Date

means October 12, 2023.

Issue Opening Date

means October 12, 2023.

Key Information
Document

means this document which sets out the terms and conditions for the
issue and offer of the Debentures by the Issuer on a private placement
basis and contains the relevant information in this respect.

Listed NCDs Master
Circular

means the master circular issued by SEBI bearing the reference
number SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/119 dated August 10,
2021 on "Master Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible
Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal
Debt Securities and Commercial Paper", as amended, modified,
supplemented or restated from time to time.

Listing Period

has the meaning given to it in Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).

Loan Loss Reserve

means a contra asset account on the balance sheet created in
anticipation of losses due to default.

LODR Regulations/SEBI
LODR Regulations

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended,
modified, supplemented or restated from time to time.

Majority Debenture

Holders

means, such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding more
than 51% (fifty one percent) of the value of the Outstanding Principal
Amounts of the Debentures. PROVIDED THAT for the Debenture
Trustee comply with its obligations to ensure that for the purposes of
Chapter X (Breach of Covenants, Default and Remedies) of the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Master Circular and the matters set out therein, the
Majority Debenture Holders shall, subject to the minimum
requirements prescribed under Applicable Law, be determined as 75%
(seventy five percent) of the Debenture Holders (by value) and 60%
(sixty percent) of the Debenture Holders (by number).

Majority Resolution

means a resolution approved by the Majority Debenture Holders.

Material Adverse Effect

means the effect or consequence of an event, circumstance, occurrence
or condition which has caused or could reasonably be expected to
cause, as of any date of determination, a material and adverse effect:
(a) on the rights or remedies of the Debenture Trustee acting for
the benefit of the Debenture Holders hereunder or under any
other Transaction Document;

(b) on the ability of the Issuer to perform its obligations under the
Transaction Documents; or
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(c) on the validity or enforceability of any of the Transaction
Documents (including the ability of any party to enforce any
of its remedies thereunder).

N.A.

Not Applicable

NBFC

Non-banking financial company

NBFC - MFI

Non-Banking Financial Company — Micro Finance Institution

NBFC Directions

means the Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016 and/or the Non-
Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated
September 1, 2016, as may be applicable, read together with the Master
Circular on "Non-Banking Financial Company-Micro Finance
Institutions’ (NBFC-MFIs) - Direction" issued by the RBI on July 1,
2015, the Master Direction no. DoR.FIN.REC.95/03.10.038/2021-22
on "Reserve Bank of India (Regulatory Framework for Microfinance
Loans) Directions, 2022" issued by the RBI on March 14, 2022 and
the RBI's circular no. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No0.109/22.10.106/2019-
20 dated March 13, 2020 on "Implementation of Indian Accounting
Standards" and the RBI's circular no.
DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated November 12, 2021 on
"Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning pertaining to Advances — Clarifications", each as
amended, modified or restated from time to time.

Net Worth

means the net worth of the Issuer determined in accordance with the
Companies Act, the NBFC Directions and/or the Applicable
Accounting Standards.

NSDL

National Securities Depository Limited

Off Balance Sheet
Portfolio

means the outstanding principal balance of all Client Loans originated
on behalf of other institutions in respect of which the Issuer has
provided credit enhancements in any form or manner whatsoever and
includes loans securitized or assigned by the Issuer by way of a
portfolio sale/direct assignment.

Outstanding Amounts

means, at any date, the Outstanding Principal Amounts together with
any interest (including any interest amounts), additional interest, costs,
fees, charges, and other amounts payable by the Issuer in respect of the
Debentures.

Outstanding Principal means, at any date, the principal amount outstanding under the

Amount Debentures.

Payment Default means any event, act or condition which, with notice or lapse of time,
or both, would constitute an Event of Default under Section 7.6.2
(Events of Default).

PAN Permanent Account Number

Portfolio At Risk Over 30 | means, in respect of the Issuer's entire assets under management

Days (including, off-balance sheet liabilities such as (but not limited to) any

contingent liability in the form of first loss demand guarantees
provided by the Issuer in respect of its sourced/managed/co-lending
portfolio) at any point of time, the outstanding principal amounts of
the relevant portfolio of the Issuer that has one or more instalments of
principal, interest, penalty interest, fee or any other expected payments

10
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overdue for 30 (thirty) calendar days or more, but excluding Client
Loans that have been written off by the Issuer.

Portfolio At Risk Over 90
Days

means, in respect of the Issuer's entire assets under management
(including, off-balance sheet liabilities such as (but not limited to) any
contingent liability in the form of first loss demand guarantees
provided by the Issuer in respect of its sourced/managed/co-lending
portfolio) at any point of time, the outstanding principal amounts of
the relevant portfolio of the Issuer that has one or more instalments of
principal, interest, penalty interest, fee or any other expected payments
overdue for 90 (ninety) calendar days or more, but excluding Client
Loans that have been written off by the Issuer.

Promoters

has the meaning given to it in the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations.

Promoter Group

has the meaning given to it in the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations.

Purpose

has the meaning given to it in Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).

Quarterly Date

means each of March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of
a calendar year, and "Quarterly Dates" shall be construed accordingly.

Rating

means the credit rating for the Debentures from the Rating Agency,
which has affirmed a rating of “ICRA A-” (pronounced as “ICRA A
Minus”) with ‘Stable’ outlook to the Debentures through its letter
dated October 05, 2023.

Rating Agency

ICRA Limited, being a credit rating agency registered with SEBI
pursuant to SEBI (Credit Rating Agencies) Regulations 1999, as
amended from time to time and having its registered office at B-710,
Statesman House, 148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi — 110001, India.

RBI

Reserve Bank of India.

RBI NBFC-MFI Master
Directions, 2016

means the RBI Master Direction dated September 1, 2016 bearing
reference no. DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 on ‘Non-Banking
Financial Company —Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016°.

Record Date

The date which will be used for determining the Debenture Holders
who shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any Due Date,
which shall be the date falling 7 (seven) calendar days prior to any Due
Date.

Recovery Expense

means the recovery expense fund established/to be established and

Fund/REF maintained by the Issuer in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
IV (Recovery Expenses Fund) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master
Circular.

Redemption Dates means the dates on which the Outstanding Principal Amounts are

payable on the Debentures, and "Redemption Date" shall be construed
accordingly.

Redemption Payment

means the aggregate of the Outstanding Principal Amounts in respect
of such Debentures and the interest amounts in respect of such
Debentures calculated in the manner set out in the DTD.

Register of Beneficial
Owners

means the register of beneficial owners of the Debentures maintained
in the records of the Depositories.

Register of Debenture
Holders

means the register of debenture holders maintained by the Issuer in
accordance with Section 88 of the Act.

R&T Agent/Registrar

means the registrar and transfer agent appointed for the issue of
Debentures, being KFin Technologies Limited.
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Restructured Loans

means the Client Loans that have been restructured in accordance with
the directions/guidelines issued by the RBI.

ROC means the jurisdictional registrar of companies.
RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement.
SEBI means the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

SEBI Debenture Trustees
Master Circular

means the master circular issued by SEBI bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD1/P/CIR/2023/109 dated March 31, 2023 on
"Master Circular for Debenture Trustees" (updated as on July 6, 2023)
to the extent applicable in respect of the private placement of debt
securities, as amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time
to time.

SEBI EBP Requirements

means the requirements with respect to electronic book mechanism
prescribed in Chapter VI (Electronic Book Provider platform) of the
Listed NCDs Master Circular, and the operational guidelines issued by
the relevant electronic book provider, as may be restated, amended,
modified or updated from time to time.

SEBI Listed Debentures
Circulars

means, collectively, the Listed NCDs Master Circular, the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Master Circular, and (to the extent applicable) the
LODR Regulations.

SEBI Listing Timelines
Requirements

means the requirements in respect of the timelines for listing of debt
securities issued on a private placement basis prescribed in Chapter
VII (Standardization of timelines for listing of securities issued on a
private placement basis) of the Listed NCDs Master Circular, read
with, to the extent applicable, the SEBI EBP Requirements.

SEBI LODR Master
Circular

means the master circular issued by SEBI bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023 on "Master
circular for compliance with the provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 by listed entities", as amended,
modified, or restated from time to time.

Security Cover

has the meaning given to it in the Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).

Secured Obligations

means all present and future obligations (whether actual or contingent
and whether owed jointly or severally or in any capacity whatsoever)
of the Issuer to the Debenture Holders or the Debenture Trustee under
the Transaction Documents, including without limitation, the making
of payment of any interest, redemption of principal amounts, the
interest amounts, default interest, additional interest, liquidated
damages and all costs, charges, expenses and other amounts payable
by the Issuer in respect of the Debentures.

Special Majority
Debenture Holders

means such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding more
than 75% (seventy five percent) of the value of the Outstanding
Principal Amounts of the Debentures.

Special Resolution

means resolution approved by the Special Majority Debenture
Holders.

Step Up has the meaning given to it in Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).

Step Up Rate has the meaning given to it in Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).

Stressed Assets means the RBI's circular no. DBR.No.BP.BC.45/21.04.048/2018-19

Framework dated June 7, 2019 on "Prudential Framework for Resolution of
Stressed Assets", as may be amended, modified, supplemented or
restated from time to time.

Tax means any present or future tax (direct or indirect), levy, duty, charge,

fees, deductions, withholdings, surcharges, cess, turnover tax,
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transaction tax, stamp tax or other charge of a similar nature (including
any penalty or interest payable on account of any failure to pay or delay
in paying the same), now or hereafter, imposed pursuant to any
Applicable Law or by any Governmental Authority and as maybe
applicable in relation to the payment obligations of the Issuer under the
DTD.

Tax Deduction

means a deduction or withholding for or on account of Tax from a
payment under a Transaction Document pursuant to Applicable Law.

TDS Tax Deducted at Source.

Tier I Capital has the meaning given to it in the NBFC Directions.

Tier II Capital has the meaning given to it in the NBFC Directions.

Total Assets means, for any date of determination, the total Assets of the Issuer on
such date including owned, securitised and managed (non-owned)
portfolio.

Transaction Documents means:

(a) the DTD;

(b) the Debenture Trustee Agreement;

(c) the Deed of Hypothecation;

(d) the Debt Disclosure Documents;

(e) the letters issued by the, and each memorandum of
understanding/agreement entered into with, the Rating

Agency, the Debenture Trustee and/or the Registrar;

69) each tripartite agreement between the Issuer, the Registrar and
the relevant Depository;

(2) the resolutions and corporate authorisations provided pursuant
to the Conditions Precedent; and

(h) any other document that may be designated as a Transaction
Document by the Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Holders,

and "Transaction Document" means any of them.

Transaction Security

has the meaning given to it in the Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).

WDM

Wholesale Debt Market segment of the BSE

Wilful Defaulter

shall mean an Issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by any
Bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with
the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and includes an issuer whose director or promoter is categorized as
such.
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SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS
ISSUER’S DISCLAIMER

Please refer to Section 2.1 of the General Information Document for the disclaimers by the
Issuer.

THE ISSUER ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR STATEMENTS MADE
OTHERWISE THAN IN THE ISSUE DOCUMENT/KEY INFORMATION
DOCUMENT OR IN THE ADVERTISEMENT OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL
ISSUED BY OR AT THE INSTANCE OF THE ISSUER AND THAT ANYONE
PLACING RELIANCE ON ANY OTHER SOURCE OF INFORMATION WOULD
BE DOING SO AT THEIR OWN RISK.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

Please refer to Section 2.2 of the General Information Document for the disclaimers in respect
of the stock exchanges.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF RBI

Please refer to Section 2.3 of the General Information Document for the disclaimers in respect
of the stock exchanges.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

Please refer to Section 2.4 of the General Information Document for the disclaimers in respect
of the stock exchanges.

IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT FILING OF THE DEBT
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT/KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT TO THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (SEBI) SHOULD NOT IN ANY
WAY BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED TO MEAN THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN
CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT TAKE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY
SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUE IS PROPOSED TO BE
MADE OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR
OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE DEBT DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT/KEY
INFORMATION DOCUMENT. THE LEAD MANAGER(S) (IF ANY) HAS
CERTIFIED THAT THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE DEBT DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT/KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT ARE GENERALLY
ADEQUATE AND ARE IN CONFORMITY WITH THE REGULATIONS. THIS
REQUIREMENT IS TO FACILITATE INVESTORS TO TAKE AN INFORMED
DECISION FOR MAKING INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED ISSUE.

DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

Please refer to Section 2.5 of the General Information Document for the disclaimers in respect
of the jurisdiction.

DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES
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Please refer to Section 2.6 of the General Information Document for the disclaimers in respect
of the rating agencies.

2.7 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

Please refer to Section 2.7 of the General Information Document for the disclaimers in respect
of issuances of the Debentures in dematerialised form.

2.8 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF THE ARRANGER

Please refer to Section 2.8 of the General Information Document for the disclaimers in respect
of issuances of the Debentures in dematerialised form.
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SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

Please refer to Section 3 of the General Information Document for the risk factors in respect of the
issuance of Debentures.
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SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please refer to Section 4 of the General Information Document for the financial statements in respect
of the issuance of Debentures.

Additionally, unaudited financial statement for quarter ended June 30, 2023 are set out in Annexure
XII hereto.
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SECTION 5: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

This Key Information Document is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations and in this Section 5, the Issuer has set out the details required as per the SEBI Debt
Listing Regulations (including Schedule I thereof).

5.1

52

53

54

5.5

The Issuer shall file the following documents along with the listing application to the
stock exchange and with the Debenture Trustee

Along with this Key Disclosure Document and the corporate authorisations for this issuance
of the Debentures, the documents set out in Section 5.1 of the General Information Document
have been / shall be submitted along with the listing application to the BSE and with the
Debenture Trustee.

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to BSE at the time of filing the
draft of this Key Information Document:

Due diligence certificates from the Debenture Trustee as per the format specified in the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Master Circular and Schedule IV of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations.

Details of Promoters of the Issuer:

Please refer to Section 5.3 of the General Information Document for the details of the
promoters of the Issuer.

Details of credit rating along with the latest press release of the Credit Rating Agency
in relation to the issue and declaration that the rating is valid as on the date of issuance
and listing. Such press release shall not be older than one year from the date of opening
of the issue.

ICRA Limited vide its letter dated October 05, 2023 has assigned/revalidated a credit rating
of “ICRA A-” (pronounced as “ICRA A Minus”) with ‘Stable’ outlook for the
Debentures to be issued in the proposed Issue. The rating letter from the Rating Agency, the
rating rationale from the Rating Agency and the detailed press release is provided in
Annexure I of this Key Information Document.

The Issuer hereby declares that the rating is and shall be valid as on the date of issuance and
listing of any Debentures.

Name(s) of the stock exchange(s) where the non-convertible securities are proposed to
be listed and the details of their in-principle approval for listing obtained from these
stock exchange(s). If non-convertible securities are proposed to be listed on more than
one stock exchange(s) then the issuer shall specify the designated stock exchange for the
issue. The issuer shall specify the stock exchange where the recovery expense fund is
being or has been created, as specified by the Board:

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE within the time

period prescribed under the SEBI Listing Timelines Requirements. The Debentures are not
proposed to be listed on more than one stock exchange.
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The Issuer has obtained the in-principle approval for the listing of the Debentures from BSE
and the same is annexed in Annexure VII hereto.

The Issuer shall comply with the requirements of the listing agreement for debt securities to
the extent applicable to it on a continuous basis. The Issuer shall also be creating the Recovery

Expense Fund as per the applicable SEBI regulations with BSE.

Name, logo, addresses, website URL, email address, telephone number and contact
person of specific entities in relation to the Issue:

(a) Legal Counsel

Name N.A. The Issuer has been advised by its in-
house legal and compliance team.
Logo N.A.
Address N.A.
Website N.A.
E-mail address N.A.
Telephone Number N.A.
Contact Person Details N.A.
(b) Merchant Banker and co-managers to the issues
Name N.A
Logo N.A.
Address N.A.
Website N.A.
E-mail address N.A.
Telephone Number N.A.
Contact Person Details N.A.
(©) Guarantor
Name N.A.
Logo N.A.
Address N.A.
Website N.A
E-mail address N.A
Telephone Number N.A.
Contact Person Details N.A.

(d) Arrangers

Name N.A.
Logo N.A.
Address N.A.
Website N.A
E-mail address N.A
Telephone Number N.A.
Contact Person Details N.A.
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(e)

¢

(2

(h)

Debenture Trustee to the Issue

Name Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
Logo =
CATALYST

Address Windsor, 6th Floor, office No. 604, C.S.T
Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai-
400098

Website www.catalysttrustee.com

E-mail address complianceCTL-Mumbai@ctltrustee.com

Telephone Number 022- 49220502

Contact Person Details

Mr. Umesh Salvi

Credit Rating Agency for the Issue

Name ICRA Limited

Logo
@icra

Address Building No. 8, 2" Floor, Tower A, DLF
Cyber City, Phase I, Gurugram Haryana
122002, India

Website https://www.icra.in/

E-mail address info@jicraindia.com

Telephone Number 0124-4545300

Contact Person Details

Mr. Jatin Arora

Registrar the Issue

Name KFin Technologies Limited
Logo
A IIK'IEIIUCI '“T.HEOIUAHHl

Address Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32, Financial
District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Rangareddy, Hyderabad-500032

Website www.kfintech.com

E-mail address tanveer.momin@kfintech.com

Telephone Number +91 40-67162222

Contact Person Details Mr. Tanveer Momin

Statutory Auditors

Name S S Kothari Mehta & Company, Chartered
Accountants

Logo N.A.
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Address Plot No. 68, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-III,
New Delhi-110020

Website Www.sskmin.com

E-mail address info@sskmin.com

Telephone Number +91 46708888

Contact Person Details Mr. Naveen Aggarwal

5.7 About the Issuer
The following details pertaining to the issuer:

(a) Overview and a brief summary of the business activities of the Issuer
Please refer to Section 5.7 of the General Information Document for overview and a
brief summary of the business activities of the Issuer.

(b) Structure of the group:

Please refer to Section 5.7 of the General Information Document for overview and a
brief summary of the business activities of the Issuer.

(c) A brief summary of the business activities of the subsidiaries of the issuer:
Please refer to Section 5.7 of the General Information Document for a brief summary
of the business activities of the subsidiaries of the Issuer.

(d) Details of branches or units where the issuer carries on its business activities, if
any:

Please refer to Section 5.7 of the General Information Document for the of branches
or units where the issuer carries on its business activities of the Issuer.

(e) Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding of new projects
Not Applicable.

5.8 Expenses of the Issue: Expenses of the issue along with a break up for each item of
expense, including details of the fees payable to separately as under (in terms of amount,
as a percentage of total issue expenses and as a percentage of total issue size), as
applicable:

S.NO PARTICULARS FEE/EXPENSE | % OF TOTAL % OF TOTAL
AMOUNT ISSUE ISSUE SIZE
EXPENSES

1. Lead Manager(s) fees N. A N. A N. A

2. Underwriting N. A N. A N. A
commission

3. Brokerage, selling N.A. N.A. N.A.
commission and
upload fees
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Fees payable to the INR 2,000/- 1.64% 0.0004%
registrars to the issue

Fees payable to the N. A N. A N. A
legal advisors

Advertising and N.A.* N.A.* N.A*
marketing expenses

Fees payable to the INR 16.39% 0.004%

regulators  including 20,000/-
stock exchanges

Expenses incurred on N. AL ** N. A, ** N. A, **
printing and

distribution of issue

stationary

Any other  fees, | INR 1,00,000/- 81.97% 0.020%
commission and

payments under

whatever nomenclature

5.9

(@

(b)

* As the Debentures will be issued by way of private placement to identified investors in
accordance with the process prescribed by SEBI, no specific advertising and marketing
expenses are envisaged to be payable in respect of such issue of Debentures.

** As the Debentures will be issued by way of private placement to identified investors in
accordance with the process prescribed by SEBI, no specific expenses are envisaged to be
incurred on printing and distribution of issue stationary in respect of such issue of
Debentures.

Financial Information

The audited financial statements (i.e. profit and loss statement, balance sheet and cash
flow statement) both on a standalone and consolidated basis for a period of three
completed years, which shall not be more than six months old from the date of the issue
document or issue opening date, as applicable. Such financial statements shall be should
be audited and certified by the statutory auditor(s) who holds a valid certificate issued
by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).

However, if the issuer, being a listed REIT/listed InvIT, has been in existence for a
period of less than three completed years, and historical financial statements of such
REIT/InvIT are not available for some portion or the entire portion of the reporting
period of three years and the interim period, the combined financial statements shall
be disclosed for the periods for which such historical financial statements are not
available.

Please refer Annexure V of the General Information Document for the audited financial
statements of the Issuer for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, and
March 31, 2023.

Listed issuers (whose debt securities or specified securities are listed on recognised stock
exchange(s)) in compliance with the listing regulations, may disclose unaudited
financial information for the interim period in the format as specified therein with
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limited review report in the issue document, as filed with the stock exchanges, instead
of audited financial statements for the interim period, subject to making necessary
disclosures in this regard in issue document including risk factors.

Please refer Annexure XII of the Key Information Document for the unaudited financial
statements of the Issuer for the quarter ended June 30, 2023.

Issuers other than REITs/ InvITs desirous of issuing debt securities on private
placement basis and who are in existence for less than three years may disclose financial
statements mentioned at (a) above for such period of existence, subject to the following
conditions:

@) The issue is made on the Electronic Book Platform of the stock exchange,
irrespective of the issue size; and

(i) In case of issue of securities on a private placement basis, the issue is open for
subscription only to qualified institutional buyers

Not applicable as the Issuer has been existence for more than 3 (three) years.

The above financial statements shall be accompanied with the auditor’s report along
with the requisite schedules, footnotes, summary etc.

Please refer (i) Annexure V of the General Information Document for the audited financial
statements of the Issuer for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, and
March 31, 2023 along with the auditor's report along with the requisite schedules, footnotes,
summary etc and (ii) Annexure XII of the Key Information Document for the unaudited
financial statements of the Issuer for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 along with the limited
review report of the statutory auditor of the Issuer.

Key Operational and Financial Parameters on a consolidated basis and on a standalone
basis:

Please refer Section 5.9(e) of the General Information Document for disclosures for the
Financial Years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2023 on a
consolidated basis and a standalone basis. Please refer below for disclosures for the period
ended June 30, 2023:

Standalone

PARTICULARS

MARCH 31,
2021

MARCH 31,
2022

MARCH 31,
2023

JUNE 30,
2023

Audited

Audited

Audited

Unaudited

BALANCE SHEET

Assets

Property, Plant and
Equipment

87.49

79.19

83.29

81.52

Financial Assets

7,707.30

7,183.60

7,495.28

8,235.79

Non-financial Assets
excluding property, plant
and equipment

79.72

112.62

66.83

77.77
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Total Assets 7,874.51 7,375.41 7,645.40 8,395.08
Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Derivative financial i i i i
instruments

- Trade Payables 24.51 25.93 13.47 16.66
- Debt Securities 1,705.07 1,187.44 1,091.44 903.84
- Borrowings (other than 3,816.43 3,825.04 400478 | 485478
Debt Securities)

- Subordinated liabilities 504.13 450.35 351.26 305.58
- Other financial liabilities 304.32 264.10 25543 261.82
Non-Financial Liabilities

- Current tax liabilities 894 1.00 ) )
(net)

- Provisions 13.16 7.76 7.04 7.94
- Deferred tax liabilities i i 246 7828
(net)

- Other non-financial 6.90 7.54 5.80 5.87
liabilities

Equity (Equity Share

Capital and Other Equity) 1,491.05 1,606.25 1,913.72 2,010.31
Total Liabilities and 7,874.51 7,375.41 764540 | 8395.08
Equity

PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue from operations 1,271.57 1,261.95 1,761.05 421.92
Other Income 1.51 0.23 0.49 0.12
Total Income 1,273.08 1,262.18 1,761.54 422.04
Total Expense 1,282.84 1,202.82 1,420.54 307.17
Profit after tax for the year -13.55 40.23 264.33 85.91
Other Comprehensive 34.74 29.22 -19.05 932
income

Total Comprehensive -48.29 11.01 245.28 76.59
Income

Earn'mgs per equity share 219 576 33.79 i
(Basic)

Earnings per equity share

(Diluted) -2.19 5.29 32.30 -
CASH FLOW
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Net cash from / used in (-) 882.57 465.16 73648 .
operating activities
Net cash from / used in (-) 21132 54.61 11135 .
investing activities
Net cash from / used in (-) 712.65 566.51 20636 .
financing activities
Net increase / decr.ease () in 41.40 -155.96 64147 )
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
as per Cash Flow Statement 1,010.79 854.82 213.35 -
as at the end of Half year
ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION
Net Worth 1,491.05 1,606.25 1,913.72 2,010.31
Cash and cash equivalents 1,120.69 1,049.01 213.35 324.69
Loans 5,804.34 5,242.12 5,803.07 6,364.97
Loans (Principal Amount)
Total Debts to Total Assets 0.77 0.74 0.71 0.72
Interest Income 1,116.86 1,170.11 1,160.08 379.33
Interest Expense 617.61 606.41 576.02 170.11
Impairment on Financial 286.76 462.83 402.30 15.34
Instruments
Bad Debts to Loans not measurable | not measurable | not measurable not
measurable
o
7o Stage 3 Loans on Loans 10.96% 8.01% 3.28% 2.49%
(Principal Amount)
% Net Stage 3 Loans on o o o o
Loans (Principal Amount) 6.66% 1.31% 1.50% 1.14%
Tier I Capital Adequacy 19.73% 23.25% 25.34% 24.86%
Ratio (%)
Tier II Capital Adequacy o o o o
Ratio (%) 5.55% 4.59% 1.28% 0.10%
Consolidated
MARCH | MARCH | MARCH | JUNE
LS (CIILANESS 31,2021 | 31,2022 | 31,2023 | 30,2023
Audited Audited Audited Un::lldlt
BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 87.52 83.00 86.82 85.54
Financial Assets 7,829.75 7,402.65 7,555.81 | 8,331.88
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Non-ﬁnanmal' Assets excluding property, 127 44 169.62 206.94 190.77
plant and equipment

Total Assets 8,044.71 7,655.27 7,849.57 | 8,608.19
Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Derivative financial instruments - - - -
- Trade Payables 11.42 12.79 5.08 5.86
- Other Payables 22.22 16.92 15.52 16.59
- Debt Securities 1,710.03 1,192.41 1,096.44 903.84
- Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 3,947.02 4,080.80 4,443.58 | 5,331.03
- Deposits - - - -
- Subordinated liabilities 524.08 470.31 371.23 325.55
- Lease liabilities - - - -
- Other financial liabilities 317.76 280.01 270.72 280.85
Non-Financial Liabilities

- Current tax liabilities (net) 0.88 - - -
- Provisions 16.43 9.82 9.34 10.57
- Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - - -
- Other non-financial liabilities 8.71 10.36 9.54 9.38
Equity (Equity Share Capital and Other 1,486.16 | 1,581.85 | 1,628.12 | 1,724.52
Equity)

Non-controlling interest - - - -
Total Liabilities and Equity 8,044.71 7,655.27 7,849.57 | 8,608.19
PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue from operations 1,375.86 1,377.05 1,557.29 462.34
Other Income 4.32 4.09 1.73 1.38
Total Income 1,380.18 1,381.14 1,559.02 463.72
Total Expenses 1,389.93 1,346.96 1,553.78 346.17
Profit after tax for the year -13.98 20.70 4.81 87.87
Other Comprehensive income -34.92 -29.15 -20.67 -11.47
Total Comprehensive Income -48.90 -8.45 -15.86 76.40
Earnings per equity share (Basic) -2.26 2.96 0.62 -
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) -2.26 2.72 0.59 -
CASH FLOW
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NeF ga§h from / used in (-) operating -944.90 336.17 1956.34 )
activities
Net cash from / used in (-) investing activities 225.66 -50.80 -72.90 -
NeF ga§h from / used in (-) financing 73430 442 47 389 87 )
activities
Net.mcrease / decrease (-) in cash and cash 15.08 15705 63937 )
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow
Statement as at the end of Half year 1,054.13 897.08 257.11 )
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Net Worth 1,486.16 1,581.85 1,628.12 | 1,724.52
Cash and cash equivalents 1,164.03 1,091.26 257.71 352.78
Loans 6,089.98 5,661.31 6,458.09 | 7,052.21
Total Debts to Total Assets 0.77 0.75 0.75 0.76
Interest Income 1,167.16 1,227.73 1,248.97 409.62
Interest Expense 637.87 625.91 616.73 185.48
Impairment on Financial Instruments 279.03 180.74 408.08 15.94
not not not not
Bad Debts to Loans measurabl | measurabl | measurabl | measura
e e e ble
® Details of any other contingent liabilities of the Issuer based on the latest audited

financial statements including amount and nature of liability:

Please refer Section 5.9(f) of the General Information Document for the details of the

contingent liability of the Issuer as of March 31, 2023.

(2) The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the issuer along with
details of the counterparty (viz. name and nature of the counterparty, whether a
subsidiary, joint venture entity, group company etc.) on behalf of whom it has been
issued
Please refer Section 5.9(g) of the General Information Document for the details of corporate
guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the Issuer.

5.10 A brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:

(a) Details of Share Capital as on last quarter end, i.e. September 30, 2023:

Share Capital INR

Authorised In Lakhs
Equity share capital 10500.00
Preference share capital 7500.00
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TOTAL 18000.00

Issued

Equity share capital 9975.96

Preference Shares 0.00

TOTAL 9975.96

Subscribed

Equity share capital 9975.92

Preference Shares 0.00

TOTAL 9975.92

Paid Up Capital

Equity Share Capital 9963.43

TOTAL 9963.43
(b) Changes in its capital structure as on last quarter end, for the preceding three financial

years and current financial year:

Please refer Section 5.10(b) of the General Information Document for the details of change
in the share capital of the Issuer for the preceding three financial years and current financial

year as of June 30, 2023.

No Change in capital structure as on last quarter end, September 30, 2023.

(c) Details of the equity share capital for the preceding three financial years and current

financial year:

Cumulative Rema
Date | No.of | Face | Issue | Consider | Natur | No.of | Equity | Equit | TKS
of Equit | Value | Price ation e of Equity | Share y
Allot y (in (in (Cash, Allot | Shares | Capital | Share
ment | Share Rs) Rs) other ment (Rsin | Premi
S than million) um
cash etc.) (Rs)
27-06- | 31,34,3 10 335 Cash Conver | 5203819 | 5203819 325 -
2019 27 sion of 4 40
OCCR
PS &
FCW
01-09- | 199038 10 60 Cash Rights | 7194208 | 7194208 50 -
2020 87 issue 1 10
25-01- | 307691 10 81.25 Cash Prefere | 7501899 | 7501899 | 71.25 -
2022 6 ntial 7 70
28-09- | 410256 Conver | 7912156 | 7912156 71.25
2022 4 10 81.25 Cash sion 1 10 )
20-12- | 410256 Conver | 8322412 | 8322412 71.25 -
2022 | 4 10 ] 8125 | Cash sion 5 50
16-03- | 200000 Conver | 8522412 | 8522412 71.25 -
2023 0 0] 812 Cash sion 5 50
13-06- | 328205 10 81.25 Cash Conver | 8850617 | 8850617 | 71.25 -
2023 2 sion 7 70
07-07- | 292307 10 81.25 Cash Conver | 9142925 | 9142925 71.25
2023 6 sion 3 30 -
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Cumulative Rema
Date | No.of | Face | Issue | Consider | Natur | No.of | Equity | Equit | kS
of Equit | Value | Price ation e of Equity | Share y

Allot y (in (in (Cash, Allot | Shares | Capital | Share
ment | Share Rs) Rs) other ment (Rsin | Premi

S than million) um

cash etc.) (Rs)
21-07- | 820512 10 81.25 Cash Conver | 9963438 | 9963438 | 71.25 -
2023 8 sion 1 10
(d) Details of any acquisition of or amalgamation with any entity in the preceding one year:

TYPE OF
EVENT

DATE OF
ANNOUNCEMENT

DATE OF
COMPLETION

DETAILS

Nil

(e) Details of any Reorganization or Reconstruction in the preceding one year:
TYPE OF DATE OF DATE OF DETAILS
EVENT ANNOUNCEMENT COMPLETION
Nil
® Details of the shareholding of the Company as at the latest quarter end, as per the
format specified under the listing regulations:
The shareholding pattern of the Issuer as of the July 21, 2023, prepared in accordance with
the LODR Regulations is set out in Annexure X.
(2) List of top ten holders of equity shares of the Company as on the July 21, 2023:
S. Name of the Nature Face Value Total Total Total
No. | Shareholder of per share in Number of | number of Shareholding
Shares INR equity shares held | as (%) of total
shares in Demat number of
Form equity shares.
1. Trishashna Equity 10 3,77,84,820 | 3,77,84,820 37.92
Holdings & Shares
Investments
Private Limited
2. Florintree Equity 10 1,23,07,692 | 1,23,07,692 12.35
ventures LLP Shares
3. Rajsonia Equity 10 25,14,127 25,14,127 2.52
Consultancy Shares
Services Private
Limited
4. Bhawani Equity 10 21,95,000 21,95,000 2.20
Finvest Pvt Ltd Shares
5. Indusind Bank Equity 10 21,85,425 21,85,425 2.19
Limited Shares
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Treasury Dept
6. Linkage Equity 10 21,37,895 21,37,895 2.15
Securities Shares
Private Limited
7. Massachusetts Equity 10 20,12,478 20,12,478 2.02
Institute of Shares
Technology
8. Aditya Birla Equity 10 16,36,256 16,36,256 1.64
Sun Life Shares
Trustee Private
Limited A/C
Aditya Birla
Sun Life Small
Cap Fund
9. Nederlandse Equity 10 14,24,030 14,24,030 1.43
Financierings- Shares
Maatschappij
Voor
Ontwikkelingsla
nden N.V.
(FMO)
10. | Trust Team Equity 10 11,67,737 11,67,737 1.17
Investors Shares
Limited
5.11 Following details regarding the directors of the Company:
(a) Details of the current directors of the Company:
This table sets out the details regarding the Company’s Board of Directors as on date of the
Key Information Document:
S. Director’s DIN Age Address Date of | Details of other directorships | Wheth
No Name, (years) Appoint er
Designation ment wilful
defaul
ter
(Yes /
No)
1 Harvinder Pal 00333754 62 MGE-2-TW-04-03 16/10/1990 | 1.Riwaaz Investments Private Limited No
Singh A, 3rd Floor, 2.Parishek Finance Private Ltd
(Chairman cum Fairway East, M3M 3.Satin Creditcare Foundation
Managing Golf Estate, Sector- 4. Tomorrows’s Knowledge Pte. Limited
Director) 65, DLF QE, 5. Tomorrow’s One Capital Pte. Limited
Gurgaon-122002, 6.Prestellar Ventures Fund I Pte. Ltd
Haryana 7.Trishashna Holdings & Investments
Private Limited
8.Satin Housing Finance Limited
9.Satin Finserv Limited
2 Satvinder 00332521 57 Building 1, | 16/10/1990 | 1.Taco Consultants Private Limited No
Singh Appartment 5B, The 2.Satin Neo Dimensions Private Limited
(Director) Hibiscus,  Sector- 3. Wisteria Holdings & Investments
50, Gurugram, Private Limited
Haryana-122001,
India
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S. Director’s DIN Age Address Date of | Details of other directorships | Wheth
No Name, (years) Appoint er
Designation ment wilful
defaul
ter
(Yes/
No)
3 Sangeeta 06674198 59 59 Pottle Walk, | 09/08/2013 | 1. The Institute of Exports and No
Khorana Wimbrone BH21, International Trade, London
(Independent 2Fd, Wimbrone 2. World Commerce and Contracting,
Director) 263601, Great London
Britain 3. World Commerce and Contracting
Foundation
4. Goh Colin 06963178 55 173, Ceylon Road, | 12/11/2014 1. The Rice Co. Ltd. No
(Independent Singapore, Ceylone 2. Global Cultural Alliance Ltd.
Director) 429739, Singapore 3. Millet Holdings Pte Ltd.
4. Millet World Pte Ltd
5. Millet World Sdn Bhd
6. Think Through Consulting
7. The Medici Watermark Pte Ltd
8. Life Lab Pte Ltd
9. SGMUSO
5. Sanjay Kumar 07033027 58 1414, Mukerjee | 06/12/2014 | 1. Contend Builders Private Limited No
Bhatia Nagar, North West
(Independent Delhi, Delhi-110009
Director)
6. Anil Kumar 07361739 67 Flat No. C-601, | 08/12/2015 | 1.Satin Housing Finance Limited No
Kalra Tower C, Prateek 2.Satin Finserv Limited
(Independent Stylome, Sector-45,
Director) Gautam Buddha
Nagar, Uttar
Pradesh-201301
7. Sundeep 00840544 61 1629, Sector-29, | 13/02/2013 | 1.Satin Housing Finance Limited No
Kumar Mehta Gautam Buddha 2.Satin Finserv Limited
(Independent Nagar, Nodia, Uttar
Director) Pradesh-201301
(b) Details of change in directors in the preceding three financial years and current
financial year:
Please refer Section 5.11(b) of the General Information Document for the details of change
in the directors of the Issuer for the preceding three financial years and current financial year.
(c) Details of directors’ remuneration, and such particulars of the nature and extent of
their interests in the issuer (during the current year and preceding three financial
years):
@) Remuneration payable or paid to a director by the issuer, its subsidiary or

associate company; shareholding of the director in the company, its subsidiaries
and associate companies on a fully diluted basis;

Please refer Section 5.11(c)(i) of the General Information Document for the details
of the remuneration payable or paid to a director by the Issuer, its subsidiary or
associate company, and the details of the shareholding of the director in the Issuer,
its subsidiaries and associate companies on a fully diluted basis.
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(i) Appointment of any relatives to an office or place of profit of the issuer, its
subsidiary or associate company;

Please refer Section 5.11(c)(ii) of the General Information Document for the details
of the appointment of any relatives to an office or place of profit of the Issuer, its
subsidiary or associate company.

(iii) Full particulars of the nature and extent of interest, if any, of every director:
Please refer Section 5.11(c)(iii) of the General Information Document for the details
of the full particulars of the nature and extent of interest, if any, of every director.

A. in the promotion of the issuer company; or
As above.
B. in any immoveable property acquired by the issuer company in the two

years preceding the date of the issue document or any immoveable
property proposed to be acquired by it; or

As above.

C. where the interest of such a director consists in being a member of a
firm or company, the nature and extent of his interest in the firm or
company, with a statement of all sums paid or agreed to be paid to him
or to the firm or company in cash or shares or otherwise by any person
either to induce him to become, or to help him qualify as a director, or
otherwise for services rendered by him or by the firm or company, in
connection with the promotion or formation of the issuer company shall
be disclosed.

As above.

Contribution being made by the directors as part of the offer or separately in
furtherance of such objects.

Please refer Section 5.11(d) of the General Information Document for the details of
contribution being made by the directors as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of
such objects.

Any financial or other material interest of the directors, promoters, key managerial
personnel or senior management in the offer and the effect of such interest in so far as
it is different from the interests of other persons.

Not Applicable

Following details regarding the auditors of the Issuer:

Details of the auditor of the Issuer:

Please refer Section 5.13(a) of the General Information Document for the details of the
auditors of the Issuer.
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(b) Details of change in auditors for preceding three financial years and current financial
year:

Please refer Section 5.13(b) of the General Information Document for the details of change
in auditors for preceding three financial years and current financial year.

5.14  Details of the following liabilities of the issuer, as at the end of the preceding quarter,
or if available, a later date:

(a) Details of outstanding secured loan facilities as on Sep 30, 2023:
PRINCIP
TYPE AM;? UN AL REPAY CREDIT ASSET
NAME OF OF | sancti | AMOUNT | MENT RATING, | ¢ AgSIF
OUTSTA DATE / SECURITY IF
LENDER FACIL ONED ICATIO
ITY (IN INR NDING SCHED APPLIC N
LACS) (IN INR ULE ABLE
LACS)
Hypothecation of
Axis Bank Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Limited Loan 2,500.00 2,159.09 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Axis Bank Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Limited Loan 2,500.00 2,272.73 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Bajaj Finance Term book debts arising
Limited Loan 2,500.00 416.67 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Bajaj Finance Term book debts arising
Limited Loan 4,500.00 2,500.00 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Bandhan Bank Loan 27,500.00 10,714.29 Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [I[CRAJA-
Bandhan Bank Loan 15,000.00 4,285.71 Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Bandhan Bank Loan 15,000.00 15,000.00 | Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Bank Of Baroda Loan 10,000.00 3,328.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRA]JA-
Bank Of India Loan 6,000.00 500.00 Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
Bank Of Term book debts arising | [I[CRAJA-
Mabharashtra Loan 10,000.00 10,000.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @120%
Term Hypothecation of | [ICRA]JA-
Canara Bank Loan 15,000.00 5,454.55 Quarterly book debts arising (Stable) Standard
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Hypothecation of

amount (100%)

Capri Global Term book debts arising
Capital Limited Loan 2,500.00 2,291.67 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Cholamandalam Hypothecation of
Investment And | Term | 05000 | 23883 | Monthly | POOKdebtsarising |y o4 | Standard
Finance Loan out of bank's
Company Ltd. assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
CTBC Bank Co Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Lid Loan 2,500.00 2,500.00 Bullet out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
CTBC Bank Co Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Ltd Loan 2,500.00 2,500.00 Bullet out of bank's (Stabic) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Equitas Small Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Finance Bank Loan 2,500.00 2,187.25 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
HDFC Bank Ltd. Loan 40,000.00 3,555.56 Monthly out of bank's (Stabic) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
IDBI Bank Loan 5,000.00 2,500.00 Monthly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount (120%)
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
IDBI Bank Loan 5,000.00 5,000.00 Monthly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount (120%)
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Indian Bank Loan 20,000.00 6,666.67 Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
Indian Overseas Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Bank Loan 3,000.00 2,625.00 Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Indusind Bank Loan 5,000.00 3,636.36 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRA]JA-
Indusind Bank Loan 10,000.00 10,000.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
JM Financials Term book debts arising
Products Limited | Loan 3,750.00 1,707.93 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
it | Lo
Credit Solutions 5,000.00 5,000.00 Monthly ) & Unrated Standard
Limited Loan out of bank's
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Karnataka Bank Loan 5,000.00 1,875.00 Quarterly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
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Kissandban Agri | ..., book debr i
Financial 1,000.00 773.70 Monthly \ & Unrated Standard
Services Loan out of bank's
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRA]JA-
Kookmin Bank Loan 2,500.00 250.00 Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRA]JA-
Kookmin Bank Loan 2,500.00 750.00 Quarterly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount(100%)
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRA]JA-
Kookmin Bank Loan 2,000.00 2,000.00 Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
Kotak Mahindra Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Bank Loan 5,000.00 1,250.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
Kotak Mahindra Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Bank Loan 5,000.00 3,000.04 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
Kotak Mahindra Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Bank Loan 10,000.00 7,000.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Maanaveeya De Hypothecation of
velopment Term book debts arising
& Finance Loan 4,000.00 333.33 Quarterly out of bank's Unrated Standard
Private Limited assistance @105%
Maanaveeya De Hypothecation of
velopment Term book debts arising
& Finance Loan 3,000.00 2,000.00 Quarterly out of bank's Unrated Standard
Private Limited assistance @105%
Maanaveeya De Hypothecation of
velopment Term book debts arising
& Finance Loan 2,400.00 2,400.00 Quarterly out of bank's Unrated Standard
Private Limited assistance @105%
Mabhindra & Hypothecation of
Mahindra Term 15 000.00 | 2,012.34 | Monthly | Pookdebtsarising |4 | Standard
Financial Loan out of bank's
Services Ltd assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Manappuram Term book debts arising
Finance Lid Loan 3,000.00 3,000.00 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Mas Financial Term book debts arising
Services Limited Loan 1,500.00 1,125.00 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Mas Financial Term book debts arising
Services Limited Loan 1,500.00 1,312.50 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Mas Financial Term book debts arising
Services Limited Loan 1,500.00 1,437.50 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Micro Units Term Hypothecation of | [ICRA]JA-
Development & Loan 10,000.00 10,000.00 Monthly book debts arising (Stable) Standard
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Refinance out of bank's
Agency Limited assistance @100%
Hypothecation of
Term Half book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
NABARD Loan 20,000.00 400.00 Yearly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount (111%)
Hypothecation of
Term Half book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
NABARD Loan 5,000.00 200.00 Yearly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount (111.20%)
Hypothecation of
Term Half book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
NABARD Loan 25,000.00 1,000.00 Yearly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount (111.20%)
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
NABARD Loan 25,000.00 20,250.00 Quarterly out of the loan (Stabic) Standard
amount (110%)
Hypothecation of
Nabard Financial Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Services Limited Loan 2,000.00 L0711 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Nabkisan Term book debts arising
Finance Limited Loan 5,000.00 583.33 Quarterly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Nabkisan Term book debts arising
Finance Limited Loan 3,000.00 1,750.00 Quarterly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Nabkisan Term book debts arising
Finance Limited Loan 3,500.00 3,208.33 Quarterly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
National
Scheduled Castes Hypothecation of
Finance And Term book debts arising
Development Loan 750.00 562.50 Quarterly out of the loan Unrated Standard
Corporation amount (100%)
(NSFDC)
Hypothecation of
Northern Arc | Term | 506 50 | 1200.88 | Monthty | Po°Kdebtsarising |y i | Standard
Capital Loan out of bank's
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Northern Arc | Term |5 506 50 | 500000 | Monthty | Po°Kdebtsarising |y i | Standard
Capital Loan out of bank's
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Poonawalla Term book debts arising
Fincorp Limited Loan 5,000.00 5,000.00 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Qatar National book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Bank WCDL | 3,000.00 3,000.00 Bullet out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
RBL Bank Ltd. Loan 7,500.00 5,000.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @115%
SBM Bank .
(Mauritius) Term 15 20000 | 2,20000 | Quarterty | [ypothecationof | [ICRAIA- | g 4
Limited Loan book debts arising (Stable)
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Hypothecation of

Shriram Finance Term book debts arising
Lid. Loan 2,500.00 2,500.00 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
. Hypothecation of
Small Industries .
Development Term 11 5000.00 | 8,500.00 | Monthly | POk debtsarising | [ICRAIA- 1 g 4o g
Bank Of India Loan out of bank's (Stable)
assistance @110%
. Hypothecation of
Small Industries ..
Development Term 1 35 000.00 | 3500000 | Monthly | POk debtsarising | [ICRAJA- | g 4. g
Bank Of India Loan out of bank's (Stable)
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Standard Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Chartered Bank Loan 16,000.00 16,000.00 Bullet out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount @100%
Hypothecation of
Standard Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Chartered Bank Loan 14,000.00 13,993.75 Quarterly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
State Bank Of Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
India Loan 20,000.00 10,909.09 Monthly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount @115%
Hypothecation of
State Bank Of Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
India Loan 34,000.00 | 32,111.11 Monthly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount @125%
Tata Capital Hypothecation of
Financial Term book debts arising
Services Pvt. Loan 2,500.00 312.50 Quarterly out of bank's Unrated Standard
Ltd. assistance @110%
Tata Capital Hypothecation of
Financial Term book debts arising
Services Pt Loan 1,000.00 500.00 Quarterly out of bank's Unrated Standard
Ltd. assistance @110%
Tgf é{h(;?lgglizlilg Hypothecation of
Banking Term 11600000 | 416.67 Monthly | Pookdebtsarising | [ICRAIA- g4,
: Loan out of the loan (Stable)
Corporation amount (100%)
Limited (HSBC) ’
Tgf é_lhoarrllggizlilg Hypothecation of
Banking Term 110 000.00 | 333333 | Monthly | Pookdebtsarising | [ICRAIA- 1 g 4o g
: Loan out of the loan (Stable)
Corporation amount (100%)
Limited (HSBC) ’
The Hongkor'lg Hypothecation of
& Shanghai Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Banking 12,500.00 4,687.50 Monthly Standard
: Loan out of the loan (Stable)
Corporation amount (100%)
Limited (HSBC) ’
The Hongk01_1g Hypothecation of
& Shanghai Term book debts arisin [ICRA]A-
Banking 10,000.00 6,250.00 Monthly g Standard
: Loan out of the loan (Stable)
Corporation amount (100%)
Limited (HSBC) ’
ng ;l(::lggliz?g Hypothecation of
Banking Term 1 ¢ 000.00 | 533333 | Monthly | Pookdebtsarising | [ICRAIA- 1 g 4o g
: Loan out of the loan (Stable)
Corporation amount (100%)
Limited (HSBC)
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The Hongkot.lg Hypothecation of
& Shanghai Term book debts arisin; [ICRA]A-
Banking 15,000.00 15,000.00 Monthly & Standard
: Loan out of the loan (Stable)
Corporation amount (100%)
Limited (HSBC) °
Hypothecation of
The South Indian Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Bank Limited Loan 1,500.00 402.74 Monthly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount (120%)
Hypothecation of
Union Bank Of Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
India Loan 5,000.00 4,090.91 Monthly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount@111%
Hypothecation of
Union Bank Of Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
India Loan 5,000.00 5,000.00 Monthly out of the loan (Stable) Standard
amount@111%
Hypothecation of
Utkarsh Small Term book debts arising | [ICRA]A-
Finance Bank Loan 3,000.00 2,875.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
Vivriti Capital Term book debts arising
Private Limited Loan 4,000.00 3,166.67 Monthly out of bank's Unrated Standard
assistance @110%
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRA]JA-
Woori Bank Loan 3,000.00 1,500.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
. Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Woori Bank Loan 3,000.00 2,250.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
Yes Bank Term book debts arising | [ICRAJA-
Limited Loan 5,000.00 3,750.00 Monthly out of bank's (Stable) Standard
assistance @105%
Hypothecation of
WBC ECB ECB | 12432.00 | 1245870 | Quarterly | POOKdebtsarising | i | Standard
out of the loan
amount @110%
Agents for Hypothecation of
Impact - IIV book debts arising
Mikrofinanzfond ECB 8,915.00 8,793.79 Bullet out of the loan Unrated Standard
s amount @100%
Agents for Hypothecation of
Impact - DKM book debts arising
Mikrofinanzfond ECB 1,778.00 1,758.76 Bullet out of the loan Unrated Standard
s -FCP-RAIF amount @100%
Hypothecation of
Responsibility book debts arising
FII ECB 1 ECB 7,335.90 7,475.22 Bullet out of the loan Unrated Standard
amount @110%
Hypothecation of
Responsibility book debts arising
FII ECB II ECB 4,091.50 4,152.90 Bullet out of the loan Unrated Standard
amount @110%
Hypothecation of
Blue Orchard ECB | 12,315.00 | 1245870 | Bullet | Pookdebtsarising |y i | Standard
Ecb out of the loan
amount @105%
OEEB ECB ECB | 10,685.85 | 4,007.25 Half ) Hypothecation of | ;. o4 | Standard
Yearly book debts arising
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out of the loan
amount @100%

OEEB ECB - 2

ECB 3,707.13 4,152.90

Hypothecation of
book debts arising
out of the loan
amount @100%

Bullet Unrated Standard

Details of Securitization Transaction outstanding as on Sep 30, 2023:

Sr. Type of Amount Outstanding (IN INR
No Name of Lender Facility Lakhs)
1 Aditya Birla Finance Limited 3,558.75
2 Axis Bank Limited 30,198.51
3 Bandhan Bank Limited 895.44
4 Federal Bank 22,576.00
5 Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited 4,354.20
6 ICICI Bank Limited 7,168.40
7 IDBI Bank 1,488.69
8 IDFC Bank Limited 16,535.46
9 | Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Securitisation 15.730.00
10 Mas Financial Services Limited 10,014.46
1 Micro Unit Development & Refinance Agency 7.636.97
Ltd.
12 Nabsamruddhi Finance Limited 4,256.50
13 SBM Bank India Ltd 2,854.02
14 | RBL Bank Limited 1,988.41
15 Tata Capital Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 4,650.68
16 Vivriti Capital 8,118.62
GRAND TOTAL 1,42,025.10
(b) Details of outstanding unsecured loan facilities:
Name of Type of An_munt Prmmpa! Amount Repayment CREDIT RATING,
Lender Facility Sanctioned (In Outstanding (In INR Date / IF APPLICABLE
INR Lakhs) Lakhs) Schedule
IDFC First | Subordinated [ICRA]A- (Stable)/
Bank - Term Loan 20,000.00 20,000.00 Bullet [ICRAJAL
Swed
ECB 11,029.50 12,458.70 Bullet Unrated
Fund
(c) Details of outstanding non-convertible securities as on Sep 30, 2023:
SERI
ES TENO AMOUN
OF R/ T pATE | REDEM | Credi | SECUR
NON- ISIN PERIO | COUP | OUTSTA OF DATE / t ED / SECURIT
CON D OF ON NDING ALLOT SCHEDU Ratin | UNSEC Y
VER MATU (In INR MENT LE g URED
TIBL RITY Lakhs)
E
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SECU
RITI
ES
6
Months Hypothecati
Libor CARE on of book
INE&36B 60 +4.10% BBB+ debts arising
1 07402 Months | (Hedgin 3,042.86 | 14-Dec-18 | 14-Dec-23 . Secured out of the
gs@ Stable loan amount
11.10 @ 100%
%)
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 42 o BBB+ debts arising
2 07550 Months 12.16% 4,500.00 | 23-Oct-20 | 23-Apr-24 : Secured out of the
Stable loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 40 o 06-May- | BBB+ debts arising
3 07584 Months 10.50% 0.4875 16-Dec-20 24 : Secured out of the
Stable loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 36 o 30-Aug- | BBB+ debts arising
4 07626 Months 12.16% 3,730.00 | 02-Sep-21 24 : Secured out of the
Stable loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
on of book
ICRA debts arising
INES36B 18 11.2%
5 07717 Months | (XIRR) 5,000.00 | 06-Apr-23 | 06-Oct-24 A-/ Secured out of the
Stable loan
amount(110
%)
Hypothecati
on of book
ICRA debts arising
6 INE836B 18 10.90% 1,500.00 | 28-Jul-23 | 28-Jan-25 A-/ Secured out of the
07741 Months
Stable loan
amount(110
%)
Hypothecati
on of book
ICRA debts arising
7 | INE836B 21 1095% | 200000 | 2lAue | 21-May- Tt Secured | out of the
07774 23 25
Stable loan
amount(110
%)
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Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 60 o BBB+ debts arising
8 07592 Months 11.10% 1.875 22-Dec-20 | 05-Jun-25 : Secured out of the
Stable loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 72 o BBB+ debts arising
9 07659 Months 12.00% 6,800.00 15-Jun-19 | 15-Jun-25 : Secured out of the
Stable loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
on of book
ICRA debts arising
10 II\(I)];:é;;gB M24th 11.00% 2,000.00 | 22-Jun-23 | 20-Jun-25 A-/ Secured out of the
onths Stable loan
amount(110
%)
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 36 o BBB+ debts arising
11 07675 Months 12.85% 6,500.00 | 12-Dec-22 | 12-Dec-25 : Secured out of the
Stable loan amount
@105%
12.58%
FIXED Hypothecati
(Includi CARE on of book
INE836B 36 ng BBB+ debts arising
12 07691 Months | WHT - 2,060.00 | 24-Feb-23 | 24-Feb-26 : Secured out of the
Net Stable loan amount
11.688 @ 100%
%)
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 48 o 07-Mar- 07-Mar- | BBB+ debts arising
13 07634 | Months | 12#43% | 750000 2 26 ;| Seeured | it of the
Stable loan amount
@105%
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INES36B 48 o 30-Mar- 30-Mar- | BBB+ debts arising
14 07642 | Months | 12437 | 300000 22 26 ; Secured | 0Lt of the
Stable loan amount
@105%
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Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 48 o BBB+ debts arising
15 07683 Months 12.30% 2,500.00 16-Jan-23 | 16-Jan-27 : Secured out of the
Stable loan amount
@105%
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 48 o 13-Mar- 12-Mar- | BBB+ debts arising
16 07709 | Months | '172% | 784000 23 27 ;| Seeured | it of the
Stable loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
INE836B 48 08-May- ICRA d(e):‘tl)t(s)fatr)ios(i)ll;g
0, - - -
17 07733 Months 10.90% 5,382.00 | 28-Jun-23 27 A-/ Secured out of the
Stable
loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
CARE on of book
INE836B 60 o BBB+ debts arising
18 07667 Months 11.15% 9,625.00 | 24-Jun-22 | 24-Jun-27 : Secured out of the
Stable loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
ICRA on of book
INE836B 48 o 09-Aug- 09-Aug- debts arising
19 07758 Months 10.85% 2,683.00 3 27 A-/ Secured out of the
Stable
loan amount
@ 100%
Hypothecati
ICRA on of book
INE836B 48 o 14-Aug- 14-Aug- debts arising
20 07766 Months 10.85% 1,417.00 3 27 A-/ Secured out of the
Stable
loan amount
@ 100%
ICRA
21 | INE836B o1 1500% | 3880 | 29-Jun-16 | 31-Dec-23 | A-/ | Umseeur NA
08277 Months ed
Stable
CARE
INE&36B 84 o BBB+ | Unsecur
22 08202 Months 15.50% 3,000.00 | 17-Dec-19 | 31-Dec-26 : od NA
Stable
CARE
INE836B 84 o 24-Mar- BBB+ | Unsecur
23 08210 Months 13.14% 5,005.00 20 24-Apr-27 : od NA
Stable
ICRA
24 | INE836B 2 11.50% | 5,700.00 | 28-Feb-22 | 28-Feb-28 | A-/ | Umseew NA
08236 Months Stable ed
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(d) Details of commercial paper issuances as at the end of the last quarter:
OTHER
DETAI
LS VIZ.
DETAI
LS OF
ISSUIN
G AND
TENO AMOUN SEC
SER R/ T DATE l;l?ill)(l;‘z[ CREDI | URE PA(‘;{IN
IES ISIN PERIO | COU | OUTSTA OF DATE / T D/ SECU AGENT
OF DOF | PON | NDING | ALLOT | (- po | RATIN | UNS | RITY
NCS MATU (InINR | MENT ULE G ECU DETAI
RITY lakhs) RED LS OF
CREDI
T
RATIN
G
AGENC
IES
Axis
INE836 | 148 | 9.10 24-Aug [ICRA] | Unse Bank
1 N 4867.75 TOUET | 19-Jan-24 NA | Limited,
B14291 Days % 23 Al cured ICRA
Ratings
Axis
INES836 204 9.50 29-Aug 20-Mar [ICRA] Unse Bank
2 . 5076.01 e v NA | Limited,
B14309 Days % 23 24 Al cured ICRA
Ratings
(e) List of top ten holders of non-convertible securities in terms of value (in cumulative
basis):
s Holding as a % of
Face szlue Principal Total Outstanding
Sr. Name of Holder Category | of Holding Amount Non-Convertible
No. of Holder | (In INR Outstanding (In securities of the
Lakhs) INR Lakhs) .
ssuer
BLUEORCHARD N
1 MICROFINANCE FUND FII 15,480.00 15,480.00 17.04%
UTI INTERNATIONAL WEALTH o
2 CREATOR 4 FII 12,500.00 12,500.00 13.76%
3 | AAVSARL FII 21,818.50 10,007.18 11.02%
4 | MASALA INVESTMENTS FII 21,818.50 10,007.18 11.02%
S.AR.L.
5 | GLOBAL ACCESS FUND LP FII 9,257.00 9,257.00 10.19%
JAPAN ASEAN WOMEN N
6 EMPOWERMENT FUND FII 10,000.00 8,500.00 9.36%
MICROFINANCE INITIATIVE o
7 FOR ASIA (MIFA) DEBT FUND FII 3,750.00 3,750.00 4.13%
8 IKF FINANCE LIMITED Corporate 3,500.00 3,500.00 3.85%
NEDERLANDSE
9 FINANCIERINGS- FII 21,300.00 3,042.86 3.35%
MAATSCHAPPIJ] VOOR ONTWIK
THE INVESTMENT FUND FOR o
10 DEVELOPING COUNTRIES VRR FII 3,000.00 3,000.00 3.30%
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| | Grand Total 1,22,424.00 79,044.22 | 87.03%
® List of top ten holders of Commercial paper in terms of value (in cumulative basis):
S. Category of | Face Value of Holding (In | Holding as a % of Total Outstanding
No. NEe Grdie: Holder INR Lakhs) Non-Convertible securities of the issuer
Aj Ph
1 Lfﬁﬁg q arma Corporate 5,300.00 51.46%
K Fi
2 iimiggjnce Corporate 5,000.00 48.54%
Grand Total 10,300.00 100.00%
(2) Details of the bank fund based facilities/ rest of the borrowing (if any, including hybrid
debt like Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), Optionally Convertible
Debentures/ Preference Shares) from financial institutions or financial creditors as on
Sep 30, 2023:
NAME
OF
PARTY ( DATE
IN CASE | TYPE OF | AMOUN | PRINCIP
OF CRE | SECUR
OF FACILIT T AL REPAY DIT ED/ SECU
FACILIT Y/ SANCTI | AMOUNT
MENT/ | RATI | UNSEC | RITY
Y)/ INSTRU ONED/ OUTSTA SCHEDU | NG URED
NAME MENT ISSUED NDING
LE
OF
INSTRU
MENT
Nil
5.15  The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the issuer along with
name of the counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, joint venture entity, group
company, etc.) on behalf of whom it has been issued, contingent liability including debt
service reserve account guarantees/ any put option etc.
Please refer Section 5.15 of the General Information Document for the details of the corporate
guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the Issuer.
5.15A Details of any outstanding borrowings taken/ debt securities issued for consideration
other than cash. This information shall be disclosed whether such borrowing/ debt
securities have been taken/ issued:
e in whole or part,
e ata premium or discount, or
e in pursuance of an option or not.
Nil as on Sep 30, 2023.
5.16  Where the Issuer is a non-banking finance company or housing finance company, the

required disclosures on Asset Liability Management (ALM) shall be provided for the
latest audited financials:
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5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23
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Please refer Section 5.16 and Section 10 of the General Information Document for the
disclosures required in respect of Asset Liability Management (ALM) as per the audited
financial statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of
term loans, debt securities, commercial paper (including technical delay) and other
financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee or letters of comfort issued by the
company, in the preceding three years and the current financial year:

Nil

Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit
quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the issuer/promoters,
litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc.) at the time
of issue which may affect the issue or the investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest
in the non-convertible securities/ commercial paper.

Please refer Section 5.18 of the General Information Document for the details of the material
event/development or change on the financials/credit quality (e.g. any material regulatory
proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax litigations resulting in material liabilities,
corporate restructuring event etc.).

Any litigation or legal action pending or taken by a Government Department or a
statutory body or regulatory body during the three years immediately preceding the
year of the issue of the issue document against the promoter of the company:

Please refer Section 5.19 of the General Information Document for the details of the any
litigation or legal action pending or taken by a Government Department or a statutory body
or regulatory body during the three years immediately preceding the year of the issue of the
issue document against the promoter of the company.

Details of default and non-payment of statutory dues for the preceding three financial
years and current financial year:

Nil

Details of pending litigation involving the issuer, promoter, director, subsidiaries, group
companies or any other person, whose outcome could have material adverse effect on
the financial position of the issuer, which may affect the issue or the investor’s decision
to invest / continue to invest in the debt securities and/ or non-convertible redeemable
preference shares

Please refer Section 5.21 of the General Information Document for the details of the relevant
pending litigation involving the issuer, promoter, director, subsidiaries, group companies or
any other person.

Details of acts of material frauds committed against the issuer in the preceding three
financial years and current financial year, if any, and if so, the action taken by the issuer

Nil
Details of pending proceedings initiated against the issuer for economic offences, if any
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5.25

5.26
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Please refer Section 5.23 of the General Information Document for the details of the pending
proceedings initiated against the issuer for economic offences, if any.

Related party transactions entered during the preceding three financial years and
current financial year with regard to loans made or, guarantees given or securities
provided

Please refer Section 5.24 of the General Information Document for the details of related party
transactions.

In case the issuer is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) and the objects of the
issue entail loan to any entity who is a ‘group company’ then disclosures shall be made
in the following format:

S. NO. NAME OF THE AMOUNT OF PERCENTAGE OF
BORROWER (A) ADVANCES EXPOSURE (C)=
/EXPOSURES TO B/TOTAL ASSETS
SUCH BORROWER UNDER
(GROUP) (RS. MANAGEMENT
CRORE) (B)
N. A

In order to allow investors to better assess the issue, the following additional disclosures
shall be made by the issuer in the issue documents: (i) A portfolio summary with regards
to industries/ sectors to which borrowings have been granted by NBFCs. (ii) Quantum
and percentage of secured vis-a-vis unsecured borrowings granted by NBFC:s. (iii) Any
change in promoters’ holdings in NBFCs during the preceding financial year beyond
the threshold specified by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

Please refer to Section 5.26 and Section 10 of the General Information Document.
Consent of directors, auditors, bankers to issue, trustees, solicitors or advocates to the

issue, legal advisors to the issue, lead managers to the issue, Registrar to the Issue, and
lenders (if required, as per the terms of the agreement) and experts.

PARTICULARS REFERENCING
Directors Please refer Annexure VIII in respect of the resolutions
passed at the meeting of the board of directors of the
Issuer and at the meeting of working committee of the
board of directors of the Issuer.
Auditors As the Debentures will be issued by way of private
placement to identified investors in accordance with
the process prescribed by SEBI, and as no auditor's
report is being obtained in respect of this issue of
Debentures, the Issuer believes that no specific consent
from the auditor is required.
Bankers to issue As the Debentures will be issued by way of private
placement to identified investors in accordance with
the process prescribed by SEBI, no bankers have been
appointed in respect of such issue of Debentures.
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Trustees The consent letter from Debenture Trustee is provided
in Annexure II of this Key Information Document.

Solicitors /Advocates N. A.

Legal Advisors N. A.

Lead Manager N.A.

Registrar The consent letter from the Registrar is provided in
Annexure II of this Key Information Document.

Lenders of the Issuer As the Debentures will be issued by way of private

placement to identified investors in accordance with
the process prescribed by SEBI, and as no statements
or confirmations from any lenders are being obtained
in respect of this issue of Debentures, the Issuer
believes that no specific consent from the lenders of the
Issuer is required.

Experts As the Debentures will be issued by way of private
placement to identified investors in accordance with
the process prescribed by SEBI, and as no statements
or confirmations from any experts are being obtained
in respect of this issue of Debentures, the Issuer
believes that no specific consent from the lenders of the
Issuer is required.

The name(s) of the debentures trustee(s) shall be mentioned with statement to the effect
that debenture trustee(s) has given its consent for appointment along with copy of the
consent letter from the debenture trustee.

The Debenture Trustee of the proposed Debentures is Catalyst Trusteeship Limited. Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited has given its written consent for its appointment as debenture trustee to
the Issue and inclusion of its name in the form and context in which it appears in this Key
Information Document and in all the subsequent periodical communications sent to the
Debenture Holders. The consent letter from Debenture Trustee is provided in Annexure II of
this Key Information Document.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document of a
similar nature, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not
contain the detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and
receipt of payment by the investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in
the issue document.

Not Applicable.

Disclosure of cash flow with date of interest/dividend/ redemption payment as per day
count convention

(a) The day count convention for dates on which the payments in relation to the non-
convertible securities which need to be made: Actual / Actual. Please also refer to
the column on “Business Day Convention” under Section Error! Reference source
not found. (Summary Terms) of this Key Information Document.

(b) Procedure and time schedule for allotment and issue of securities: Please refer to
the column on “Issue Timing” under Section Error! Reference source not found.
(Summary Terms) of this Key Information Document.

47



KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT Private & Confidential
Date: August 16, 2023 For Private Circulation Only

5.31
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(b)

(©

(d)

(e)
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(c) Cash flows emanating from the non-convertible securities shall be mentioned in
the Key Information Document, by way of an illustration: The cashflows emanating
from the Debentures, by way of an illustration, are set out under Annexure IV
({llustration of Bond Cashflows) of this Key Information Document.

Other details:

Creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) / Capital Redemption Reserve
(CRR) - relevant legislations and applicability:

Please refer Section 5.31(a) for the details in respect of the creation of DRR.

Issue / instrument specific regulations - relevant details (Companies Act, Reserve Bank
of India guidelines etc.):

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act including the relevant notified rules thereunder, the SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations, the LODR Regulations, the SEBI Listed Debentures Circulars, the Debenture
Trustees Regulations, and the guidelines and directions issued by the RBI and SEBI,
applicable to issuance of non-convertible debentures by NBFCs on a private placement basis.

Default in payment:

Please refer to the sub-section named “Default Interest Rate” under Section Error!
Reference source not found. (Summary Terms) of this Key Information Document and
Section 7.6.1 (Consequences of Event of Default) of Section 7 of the Key Information
Document, setting out the consequences pursuant to any default in payment of Debentures.

Delay in listing:

Please refer the sub-section named "Listing (name of stock Exchange(s) where it will be listed
and timeline for listing)" of Section 5.34 (Summary Terms) in relation to the listing
requirements in respect of the Debentures and section named "Additional Disclosures (Delay
in Listing)" of Section 5.34 (Summary Terms) in respect of the default interest in the event
of delay in listing.

Delay in allotment of securities:

(1) The Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures are allotted to the respective Debenture
Holders and are credited into the demat accounts of the relevant Debenture Holders
within the timelines prescribed under the SEBI Listing Timelines Requirements.

(i1) The Debentures shall be deemed to be allotted to the Debenture Holders on October
13, 2023. All benefits relating to the Debentures are available to the Debenture
Holders from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

(iii)  Without prejudice to, and in supplement of, any other provision of the DTD, if the
Issuer fails to allot the Debentures to the Applicants following the date of receipt of
the Application Money within the time period prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 ("Allotment Period"), it shall repay the Application Money to the Applicants
within 15 (fifteen) calendar days from the expiry of the Allotment Period
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("Repayment Period").

@iv) If the Issuer fails to repay the Application Money within the Repayment Period, then
Issuer shall be liable to repay the Application Money along with interest at 12%
(twelve percent) per annum, gross of withholding taxes, from the expiry of the
Allotment Period.

Issue details: Please refer to Section Error! Reference source not found. (Summary Terms)
of this Key Information Document

Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in Section 8 of this Key Information
Document.

Disclosure prescribed under PAS-4 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities), Rules, 2014 but not contained in this schedule, if any:

The finalised form of the PPOA prepared in accordance with the Form PAS 4 prescribed
under the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 is provided in
Annexure XI. Please refer Annexure XI for all disclosures required under the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.

Project details: Gestation period of the project; extent of progress made in the project;
deadlines for completion of the project; the summary of the project appraisal report (if
any), schedule of implementation of the project:

Not Applicable.
Other matters and reports:

(a) If the proceeds, or any part of the proceeds, of the issue of the debt securities
are or is to be applied directly or indirectly:

@) in the purchase of any business; or Not Applicable

(i) in the purchase of an interest in any business and by reason of that
purchase, or anything to be done in consequence thereof, or in
connection therewith the company shall become entitled to an interest
in either the capital or profits and losses or both, in such business
exceeding fifty per cent. thereof, a report made by a chartered
accountant (who shall be named in the issue document) upon -

(A) the profits or losses of the business for each of the three financial
years immediately preceding the date of the issue of the issue
document; and

(B) the assets and liabilities of the business as on the latest date to
which the accounts of the business were made up, being a date
not more than one hundred and twenty days before the date of
the issue of the issue document.
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(b)

(c)

Not applicable.

In purchase or acquisition of any immoveable property including indirect
acquisition of immoveable property for which advances have been paid to third
parties, disclosures regarding

(0]
(i)

(iii)

@iv)

the names, addresses, descriptions and occupations of the vendors;

the amount paid or payable in cash, to the vendor and where there is
more than one vendor, or the company is a sub-purchaser, the amount
so paid or payable to each vendor, specifying separately the amount, if
any, paid or payable for goodwill;

the nature of the title or interest in such property proposed to be
acquired by the company; and

the particulars of every transaction relating to the property completed
within the two preceding years, in which any vendor of the property or
any person who is or was at the time of the transaction, a promoter or a
director or proposed director of the company, had any interest, direct
or indirect, specifying the date of the transaction and the name of such
promoter, director or proposed director and stating the amount payable
by or to such vendor, promoter, director or proposed director in respect
of the transaction:

Provided that if the number of vendors is more than five, then the
disclosures as required above shall be on an aggregated basis, specifying
the immoveable property being acquired on a contiguous basis with
mention of the location/total area and the number of vendors from
whom it is being acquired and the aggregate value being paid. Details of
minimum amount, the maximum amount and the average amount paid/
payable should also be disclosed for each immovable property

Not applicable.

If:

@

(i)

the proceeds, or any part of the proceeds, of the issue of the debt
securities are or are to be applied directly or indirectly and in any
manner resulting in the acquisition by the company of shares in any
other body corporate; and -

by reason of that acquisition or anything to be done in consequence
thereof or in connection therewith, that body corporate shall become a
subsidiary of the company, a report shall be made by a Chartered
Accountant (who shall be named in the issue document) upon —

A. the profits or losses of the other body corporate for each of the

three financial years immediately preceding the issue of the issue
document; and
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(d)

(e)

S

(g

B. the assets and liabilities of the other body corporate as on the
latest date to which its accounts were made up.

Not applicable.
The said report shall:

(@) indicate how the profits or losses of the other body corporate dealt with
by the report would, in respect of the shares to be acquired, have
concerned members of the issuer company and what allowance would
have been required to be made, in relation to assets and liabilities so
dealt with for the holders of the balance shares, if the issuer company
had at all material times held the shares proposed to be acquired; and

(i) where the other body corporate has subsidiaries, deal with the profits or
losses and the assets and liabilities of the body corporate and its
subsidiaries in the manner as provided in Section 5.32(c)(ii) above.

Not applicable.

The broad lending and borrowing policy including summary of the key terms
and conditions of the term loans such as re-scheduling, prepayment, penalty,
default; and where such lending or borrowing is between the issuer and its
subsidiaries or associates, matters relating to terms and conditions of the term
loans including re-scheduling, prepayment, penalty, default shall be disclosed.

Please refer Section 5.32(e) of the General Information Document for the broad
lending and borrowing policy of the Issuer.

The aggregate number of securities of the issuer company and its subsidiary
companies purchased or sold by the promoter group, and by the directors of
the company which is a promoter of the issuer company, and by the directors
of the issuer company and their relatives, within six months immediately
preceding the date of filing the issue document with the Registrar of Companies
are as follows.

Please refer Section 5.32(f) of the General Information Document for details of the
aggregate number of securities of the issuer company and its subsidiary companies
purchased or sold.

The matters relating to: (i) Material contracts; (ii) Time and place at which the
contracts together with documents will be available for inspection from the date
of issue document until the date of closing of subscription list

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
business carried on by the Issuer or entered into more than 2 (two) years before the
date of this Key Information Document which are or may be deemed material have
been entered into by the Issuer.

The contracts and documents referred to hereunder are material to the Issue, may be
inspected at the registered office of the Issuer between on 10.00 am to 4.00 pm
Business Days.
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(h)

)

W)

S. No. Nature of Contract

1. Certified true copy of the Memorandum of Association, the Articles of
Association, and Certificate of Incorporation of the Issuer.

2. Resolutions dated October 06, 2023 of the working committee of board
of directors
of the Issuer

3. Resolutions dated May 15, 2020 and July 10, 2023 of the board of
directors of the Issuer.

4. Resolution dated August 9, 2023 of the shareholders of the Issuer
authorizing the issue of non-convertible debentures by the Issuer.

5. Resolution dated July 6, 2019 of the shareholders of the Issuer
authorizing the borrowing by the Issuer and the creation of the
Transaction Security.

6. Annual reports of the Issuer for the last 3 (three) Financial Years.

7. Credit rating letter from the Rating Agency dated October 05, 2023,
rating rationale from the Rating Agency dated June 09, 2023 and the
press release dated June 09, 2023.

8. Letter from Catalyst Trusteeship Limited dated September 29, 2023
giving its consent to act as Debenture Trustee.

9. Letter from KFin Technologies Limited dated October 09, 2023 giving
its consent to act as Register and Transfer Agent.

10. | The tripartite agreement(s) executed between the Issuer, the Registrar
and the relevant Depositories.

11. | The application made to BSE for grant of in-principle approval for
listing of Debentures, and the in-principle approval provided by the
BSE in respect of the listing of the Debentures.

12. | The due diligence certificate(s) issued by the Debenture Trustee
pursuant to the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular and the other
SEBI Listed Debentures Circulars.

13. | The Transaction Documents (including the Debt Disclosure
Documents).

Reference to the relevant page number of the audit report which sets out the
details of the related party transactions entered during the three financial years
immediately preceding the issue of issue document.

Please refer Section 5.32(h) of the General Information Document.

The summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors
in the three financial years immediately preceding the year of issue of issue
document, and of their impact on the financial statements and financial position
of the company, and the corrective steps taken and proposed to be taken by the
company for each of the said reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks.

Please refer Section 5.32(i) of the General Information Document for the summary
of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors in the three financial
years immediately preceding the year of issue of issue document.

The details of:
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. any inquiry, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted under
the securities laws or Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) or any previous
companies law;

. prosecutions filed, if any (whether pending or not); and

. fines imposed or offences compounded,

in the three years immediately preceding the year of issue of issue
document in the case of the issuer being a company and all of its
subsidiaries.

Please refer Section 5.32(j) of the General Information Document.

9]

The details of acts of material frauds committed against the issuer in the

preceding three financial years and current financial year, if any, and actions
taken by the issuer

Please refer Section 5.32(k) of the General Information Document for the details of
acts of material frauds committed against the issuer in the preceding three financial
years and current financial year.

Please refer the sub-section on “Details of the utilization of the Proceeds” under Section 5.34

5.33  Utilization of the Issue Proceeds
(Summary Terms) of this Key Information Document.
534  Summary Terms

Security Name (Name of the

non-convertible securities
which includes
(Coupon/dividend, Issuer

Name and maturity year) e.g.
8.70% XXX 2015.

11.00% SCNL, JAN 2026

Issuer

Satin Creditcare Network Limited ("Issuer” or "Company")

Type of Instrument

Non-Convertible Debentures

Nature of Instrument
(Secured or Unsecured)

Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Transferable, Non-
Convertible Debentures

Seniority (Senior or
Subordinated)

Senior

Eligible Investors

As specified in Section 8.7 (Eligible Investors) of the Key
Information Document issued/to be issued by the Issuer ("Key
Information Document" or "KID").

As prescribed in the EBP Requirements, "Qualified Institutional
Buyers" or "QIBs" (as defined in the EBP Requirements) and non-
QIBs authorized by an issuer to participate on an issuer on the EBP
Platform are eligible participants (i.e., bidders) on an EBP Platform
to participate in a particular issue on the EBP Platform. In
furtherance of the above, to the extent applicable, the following
categories of Investors ("Eligible Investors"), when specifically
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approached, and identified upfront by the Issuer, shall be eligible to
apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling
their respective investment norms/rules and compliance with laws
applicable to them and by completing the participation/nodding
requirements prescribed for the EBP Platform and/or by submitting
all the relevant documents along with the Application Form:

(a) Mutual Funds

(b) NBFCs

(©) Provident Funds and Pension Funds
(d) Corporates

(e) Banks

® Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs)

(2) Qualified Foreign Investors (QFIs)

(h) Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)

(1) Insurance Companies

) Any other person (not being an individual or a group of
individuals) eligible to invest in the Debentures.

All potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant
regulations/guidelines applicable to them for investing in this issue
of Debentures.

Listing (name of stock
Exchange(s) where it will be
listed and timeline for listing)

(a) The Issuer shall submit all duly completed documents to
the BSE, SEBI, the jurisdictional registrar of companies or
any other Governmental Authority, as are required under
Applicable Law and obtain the listing of the Debentures
within the timelines prescribed under the SEBI Listing
Timelines Requirements ("Listing Period").

(b) The Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures continue to be
listed on the wholesale debt market segment of the BSE.

(©) The Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures at all times are
rated in accordance with the provisions of the Transaction
Documents and that the rating of the Debentures is not
withdrawn until the Final Settlement Date.

(d) In the event there is any delay in listing of the Debentures
beyond the Listing Period, the Issuer will pay to the
Debenture Holders, penal interest of 1% (one percent) per
annum over the Interest Rate, from the Deemed Date of
Allotment until the listing of the Debentures is completed.

Rating of the Instrument

“ICRA A-/Stable” (pronounced as “ICRA A Minus”) with ‘Stable’
outlook

Issue Size

5,000 (five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated
in Indian Rupees, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian
Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR
50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore) (the "Debentures")
including a green shoe option of 2,500 (Two thousand five hundred)
senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable,
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non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an
aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty
Five Crore) (the "Green Shoe Option")

Minimum Subscription

Minimum application shall be 100 (One Hundred) Debentures

Option to
oversubscription (Amount)

retain

Green shoe option of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty
Five Crore). Please refer the section named "Issue Size" above.

for which there
requirement of funds

Objects of the Issue / Purpose

is

(a) The funds raised by the Issue shall be utilized by the
Issuer for the following purposes ("Purpose™):

)
(i)

for general corporate purposes of the Issuer; and
for utilisation in the ordinary course of business of
the Issuer including for repayment or refinancing
of existing Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer.

The amount equivalent to 100% of the funds raised by the Issue
will be utilized towards the Purpose. The Issuer has not, as of the
date of this Key Information Document, determined the specific
allocation between the objects set out above.

(b) The funds raised by the Issue shall be utilised by the
Issuer solely for the Purpose and the Issuer shall not use the
proceeds of the Issue towards:

(1) any capital market instrument such as equity, debt,
debt linked, and equity linked instruments or any
other capital market related activities (whether
directly or indirectly);

(i1)
(iii)

any speculative purposes;

investment in the real estate sector/real estate
business (including the acquisition/purchase of
land);

@iv) in contravention of Applicable Law (including
without limitation, any guidelines, rules or
regulations of the RBI and SEBI); and

v) any purpose, that is not eligible for the providing
of financing by banks to non-banking financial
companies for bank finance to mnon-banking
financial companies, or, which results in a breach
of the RBI's master circular no.
DOR.CRE.REC.No0.07/21.04.172/2023-24  dated
April 3, 2023 on "Bank Finance to Non-Banking
Financial Companies (NBFCs)".

PROVIDED HOWEVER THAT until the funds raised by the Issue
are utilised by the Issuer in accordance with the Purpose, the Issuer
shall be entitled to temporarily invest the funds raised by the Issue
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in overnight and/or liquid schemes of mutual funds and/or deposits
held with scheduled commercial banks.

In case the issuer is a NBFC
and the objects of the issue
entail loan to any entity who is
a 'group company' then
disclosures shall be made in
the following format:

N. A.

Details of the utilization of the
Proceeds

(a) The funds raised by the Issue shall be utilized by the
Issuer for the Purpose.

The amount equivalent to 100% of the funds raised by the Issue
will be utilized towards the Purpose. The Issuer has not, as of the
date of this Key Information Document, determined the specific
allocation between the objects set out above.

(b) The funds raised by the Issue shall be utilised by the
Issuer solely for the Purpose and the Issuer shall not use the
proceeds of the Issue towards:

(1) any capital market instrument such as equity, debt,
debt linked, and equity linked instruments or any
other capital market related activities (whether
directly or indirectly);

(i) any speculative purposes;

(iii) investment in the real estate sector/real estate
business (including the acquisition/purchase of
land);

@iv) in contravention of Applicable Law (including
without limitation, any guidelines, rules or
regulations of the RBI and SEBI); and

) any purpose, that is not eligible for the providing

of financing by banks to non-banking financial
companies for bank finance to mnon-banking
financial companies, or, which results in a breach
of the RBI's master circular no.
DOR.CRE.REC.N0.07/21.04.172/2023-24 dated
April 3, 2023 on "Bank Finance to Non-Banking
Financial Companies (NBFCs)".

PROVIDED HOWEVER THAT until the funds raised by the Issue
are utilised by the Issuer in accordance with the Purpose, the Issuer
shall be entitled to temporarily invest the funds raised by the Issue
in overnight and/or liquid schemes of mutual funds and/or deposits
held with scheduled commercial banks.

Coupon/Dividend Rate

11.00% (Eleven decimal zero zero percent) per annum payable
monthly.
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The indicative interest payment and redemption schedule is set out
in Annexure IV of the KID.

Step Up/Step Down Coupon
Rate

(a) If the rating of the Debentures is downgraded below "ICRA
A-" (the "Rating"), the Coupon Rate shall be increased by
0.5% (zero decimal five percent) for each downgrade of 1
(one) notch from the Rating ("Step Up Rate"), and such
increased Coupon Rate shall be applicable on the
Outstanding Principal Amounts with effect from the date
of such downgrade. Step Up, in accordance with this sub-
paragraph (i) shall not require any notice, intimation or
action on behalf of the Debenture Trustee or the Debenture
Holders.
(b) Following the Step Up until the rating of the Debentures is
restored to the Rating, if the rating of the Debentures is
upgraded, the prevailing Step Up Rate shall be decreased
by 0.5% (zero decimal five percent) for each upgrade of 1
(one) notch from the rating of the Debentures (until the
rating of the Debentures is restored to the Rating) and such
decreased rate of interest shall be applicable on the
Outstanding Principal Amounts with effect from the date
of such upgrade.

PROVIDED THAT the decreased rate of interest in accordance
with this sub-paragraph (ii) cannot, in any case, be lower than the
Coupon Rate. The decrease in the rate of interest in accordance
with this sub-paragraph (ii) shall not require any notice, intimation
or action on behalf of the Debenture Trustee or the Debenture
Holders.

Frequency

(c) It is clarified that, if following the Step Up, the rating of the
Debentures is restored to the Rating, then the interest shall
be payable at the Coupon Rate, from the date that the rating
of the Debentures is restored to the Rating.
Coupon/Dividend Payment | Monthly.

The indicative interest payment schedule is set out in Annexure [V
of the KID.

Coupon/Dividend Payment
Dates

Monthly.

The indicative interest payment schedule is set out in Annexure [V
of the KID.

effective date, interest rate
cap and floor etc).

Cumulative / non cumulative, | Not applicable.
in case of dividend

Coupon Type (Fixed, floating | Fixed.

or other structure)

Coupon Reset Process | N.A
(including rates, spread,

Day Count Basis

(Actual/Actual)

Interest and all other charges shall accrue based on an actual/actual
basis.
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Interest on  Application
Money

O]

(i)

(iii)

Interest at the Interest Rate, subject to deduction of tax at
source in accordance with Applicable Law, will be paid by
the Issuer on the Application Money to the Applicants from
(and including) the date of receipt of such Application
Money up to (and including) the day occurring 1 (one) day
prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment for all valid
applications, within 5 (five) Business Days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment. Where pay-in date of the
Application Money and the Deemed Date of Allotment are
the same, no interest on Application Money will be
payable.

Where the entire subscription amount has been refunded,
the interest on Application Money will be paid along with
the refunded amount to the bank account of the Applicant
as described in the Application Form by electronic mode of
transfer such as (but not limited to) RTGS/NEFT/direct
credit.

Where an Applicant is allotted a lesser number of
Debentures than applied for, the excess amount paid on
application will be refunded to the Applicant in the bank
account of the Applicant as described in the Application
Form towards interest on the refunded money by electronic
mode of transfer like RTGS/NEFT/direct credit. Details of
allotment will be sent to every successful Applicant.

Default Interest Rate

(a)

(b)

(©

The Issuer agrees to pay additional interest at 2% (two
percent) per annum over the Interest Rate in respect of the
Debentures on the Outstanding Principal Amounts from the
date of the occurrence of a Payment Default until such
Payment Default is cured or the Secured Obligations are
repaid (whichever is earlier). Such amounts shall be
determined  separately  with  reference to the
abovementioned incremental rate and paid in addition to
the interest payable on the Debentures on the relevant Due
Date.

The Issuer agrees to pay additional interest at 2% (two
percent) per annum over the Interest Rate in respect of the
Debentures on the Outstanding Principal Amounts from the
date of the occurrence of any breach of any covenants
(including any financial covenants) set out in the DTD or
the other Transaction Documents (other than a Payment
Default) until such breach is cured or the Secured
Obligations are repaid (whichever is earlier). Such amounts
shall be determined separately with reference to the
abovementioned incremental rate and paid in addition to
the interest amounts on the relevant Due Date.

Unless specifically  provided  otherwise, any
additional/default interest payable by the Issuer in
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accordance with any provision of the DTD or any other
Transaction Document shall be in addition to and
independent of any additional/default interest payable by
the Issuer in accordance with any other provision of the
DTD or any other Transaction Document.

Tenor

27 (twenty seven) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Redemption Date

January 13, 2026

Redemption Amount

INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) per Debenture.

Subject to any early/premature redemption of Debentures in
accordance with the Transaction Documents, each Debenture shall
be fully redeemed on a pari passu basis by the Issuer by making the
payment of the Outstanding Principal Amounts on each
Redemption Date.

The illustrative redemption schedule is set out in Annexure IV of
the DTD.

Redemption
Premium/Discount

N.A.

Issue Price

INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) per Debenture

Discount at which security is
issued and the effective yield
as result of such discount

N.A.

Premium/Discount at which
security is redeemed and the
effective yield as a result of
such premium/discount.

N.A.

Put Date

N.A.

Put Price

N.A.

Call Date

N.A.

Call Price

N.A.

Put Notification Time
(Timelines by which the
investor need to intimate
Issuer before exercising the

put)

N.A.

Call Notification Time
(Timelines by which the
Issuer need to intimate
investor before exercising the
call)

N.A.

Face Value

INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) per Debenture

Minimum application and in
multiples thereafter

The minimum application size for the Issue shall be 100 (One
Hundred) Debentures and in multiples of 1 Debenture thereafter.

Issue Timing

1. Issue Opening Date

October 12, 2023, 11:00 a.m.

2. Issue Closing Date

October 12, 2023, 12:00 p.m.
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3. Date of earliest closing of
the issue, if any.

N.A.

4. Pay-in Date

October 13,2023

5. Deemed Date of Allotment

October 13,2023

Settlement Mode of the | The pay-in of subscription monies for the Debentures shall be made
Instrument by way of transfer of funds from the bank account(s) of the Eligible
Investors (whose bids have been accepted) as registered with the
Electronic Book Provider into the account of the ICCL, as specified
in this regard below and in accordance with the KID:
Name of Bank HDFC BANK
IFSC Code HDFC0000060
Account number ICCLEB
Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION
LIMITED
Name of Bank ICICI Bank Ltd.
IFSC Code ICICO000106
Account number ICCLEB
Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD
Name of Bank YES BANK
IFSC Code YESBOCMSNOC
Account number ICCLEB
Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD
Depository NSDL and CDSL
Disclosure of | The illustrative interest payment and redemption schedule is set out
Interest/Dividend/ in Annexure [V of the KID.
redemption dates
Record Date 7 (seven) calendar days prior to each Due Date.
All covenants of the issue | I REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND
(including side letters, | COVENANTS
accelerated payment clause,
etc.) I.1.  Utilisation of Proceeds of the Debentures

(a) The Issuer shall utilise the amounts received towards
subscription of the Debentures for the Purpose and procure and
furnish to the Debenture Trustee a certificate from the Issuer's
statutory auditors or a chartered accountant (as may be acceptable
to the Debenture Trustee) in respect of the utilisation of funds
raised by the issue of the Debentures.

(b)  The Debenture Trustee shall, if requested by the Debenture
Holders, provide a copy of the aforementioned certificate to the
Debenture Holders within the time period prescribed by the
Debenture Holders.

(c)  The proceeds of the Debentures will be utilised solely for
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the Purpose and will not be utilised for any purpose set out herein.
I.2. Representations and Warranties of the Issuer

The Issuer makes the representations and warranties set out in this
Section to the Debenture Trustee for the benefit of the Debenture
Holders as on the Effective Date, which representations shall be
deemed to be repeated on each Due Date until the Final Settlement
Date.

(a)  Status

It is a non-banking financial company — micro-finance institution
registered with the RBI.

(b) Binding obligations

The obligations expressed to be assumed by it under the
Transaction Documents are legal, valid, binding and enforceable
obligations.

(c) Non-conflict

The entry into and performance by it of, and the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents do not and will not
conflict with:

(i) any Applicable Law (including without limitation, the
Companies Act, and any directions/circulars issued by SEBI
and/or the RBI in respect of issuance of non-convertible
debentures);

(i1)  its Constitutional Documents; or

(iii) any agreement or instrument binding upon it or any of its
Assets, including but not limited to any terms and conditions of
the existing Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer.

(d) Power and authority

It has the power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has taken
all necessary action to authorize its entry into, performance and
delivery of, the Transaction Documents to which it is a party and
the transactions contemplated by such Transaction Documents
(including the issuance of the Debentures).

(e)  Validity and admissibility in evidence

All approvals, authorizations, consents, permits (third party,
statutory or otherwise) required or desirable:

(i)  to enable it lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights and
comply with its obligations under the Transaction Documents to
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which it is a party;

(i)  to make the Transaction Documents to which it is a party
admissible in evidence in its jurisdiction of incorporation; and

(i)  for it to carry on its business, and which are material,

have been obtained or effected and are in full force
and effect.

() No default
No Event of Default has occurred.
(g) Ranking

The Debentures rank pari passu inter se, and the payment
obligations of the Issuer under the Transaction Documents rank at
least pari passu with the claims of all of its other senior secured
creditors, except for obligations mandatorily preferred by
Applicable Law applying to companies generally.

(h)  No proceedings pending

No litigation, arbitration, investigation, or administrative
proceedings of or before any court, arbitral body or agency have
been commenced or threatened against the Issuer, which if
determined adversely, may have a Material Adverse Effect
(including in respect of the business condition (financial or
otherwise), operations, performance or prospects of the Issuer or
that may affect the Debentures).

(1)  SCORES Authentication
The Issuer has received the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Complaints Redress System (SCORES) authentication prior
to the Deemed Date of Allotment.
()  Material Adverse Effect

No fact or circumstance, condition, proceeding or
occurrence exists (including in respect of the business, condition
or operations of the Issuer) that has a Material Adverse Effect.

(k)  Illegality

It is not unlawful or illegal for the Issuer to perform any of its
obligations under the Transaction Documents.

(I)  No filings or stamp taxes

There are no stamp duties, registration, filings, recordings or
notarizations before or with any Governmental Authority required
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to be carried out in India in relation to the execution and delivery
of the Transaction Documents by the Issuer other than the:

(i)  stamping of the Transaction Documents (on or prior to
execution in New Delhi, India) in accordance with the Indian
Stamp Act, 1899 (as applicable to New Delhi, India);

(i) payment of the stamp duty in respect of the Debentures;

(iii) filing of the return of allotment of securities under Form
PAS-3 of'the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 with the ROC;

(iv) filing of the Debt Disclosure Documents with the ROC and
SEBI;

(v)  filing of Form CHG 9 with the ROC within 30 (thirty) days
from the date of creation of security interest; and

(vi) filing of Form I with CERSAI by the Debenture Trustee in
respect of each instance of creation of security interest.

(m) Confirmations pursuant to the Debt Listing Regulations

With effect from the date of filing of the draft Placement
Memorandum with the BSE, as on the date of filing of the draft
Placement Memorandum with the BSE in accordance with the
Debt Listing Regulations:

(i)  the Issuer, the Promoters of the Issuer, the Promoter Group
of the Issuer or the directors of the Issuer have not been debarred
from accessing the securities market or dealing in securities by
SEBI;

(i) no Promoter of the Issuer or director of the Issuer is a
promoter or director of any another company which is debarred
from accessing the securities market or dealing in securities by
SEBI,

(iii)) no Promoter of the Issuer or director of the Issuer is a
fugitive economic offender; and

(iv) no fines or penalties levied by SEBI or any of the stock
exchanges is pending to be paid by the Issuer.

1.3. Financial Covenants

The Issuer shall, commencing from the Effective Date until the
Final Settlement Date:

(a) maintain a Capital Adequacy Ratio of at least 16% (sixteen
percent) or such higher threshold as may be prescribed by the RBI
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from time to time;

(b) ensure and procure that is return on assets (ROA)
(determined in accordance with Applicable Accounting
Standards) is greater than 0% (zero percent) in the preceding
period of 12 (twelve) months (as on any date of determination);

(c) maintain a minimum Net Worth of INR 1250,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees One Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty Crore);

(d) maintain a ratio of the sum of A:B (expressed as a
percentage) lower than 17% (seventeen percent), where A is the
aggregate of (i) Portfolio At Risk Over 30 Days, (ii) Restructured
Loans including Client Loans that have been charged off or
expensed off in the last 12 (twelve) months, to (B) the Gross Loan
Portfolio of the Issuer;

(e) maintain a ratio of the sum of A:B (expressed as a
percentage) lower than 12% (twelve percent), where A is the
aggregate of (i) Portfolio At Risk Over 90 Days, (ii) Restructured
Loans minus Loan Loss Reserves, to (B) the aggregate Tier 1
Capital of the Issuer;

(f)  ensure and procure that the Issuer maintains a positive
profit after tax (PAT) level (determined in accordance with
Applicable Accounting Standards). This covenant shall be tested
on an annual basis;

(g) ensure and procure that the Issuer does not report a loss for
3 (three) consecutive financial quarters (determined in accordance
with Applicable Accounting Standards);

(h)  ensure that the ratio of A:B, where A is the aggregate
Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer, and B is the aggregate Equity
of the Issuer, is within 4.5 (four decimal five) times; and

(i)  comply with such other financial covenants as may be
agreed between the parties.

Other than as specified in this Section 1.3 (Financial Covenants),
the financial covenants set out in this Section 1.3 (Financial
Covenants) shall be tested on a quarterly basis on each Quarterly
Date, on the basis of the standalone financial statements of the
Issuer.

[.4. Reporting Covenants

The Issuer shall provide or cause to be provided to the Debenture
Trustee, and to any Debenture Holder (if so requested by such
Debenture Holder), including on any online reporting platform
notified to the Issuer, in form and substance reasonably
satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee, each of the following items:
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(a) as soon as available, and in any event within 60 (sixty)
calendar days after the end of each Financial Year:

(i)  acertificate signed by an independent chartered accountant
director stating that the Issuer is in compliance with all the
financial covenants prescribed in Section 1.3 (Financial
Covenants) on the basis of the audited financial statements of the
Issuer; and

(i) a certificate from an independent chartered accountant
stating that the Security Cover is maintained in accordance with
the Transaction Documents;

(b) as soon as available, and in any event within 180 (one
hundred and eighty) calendar days after the end of each Financial
Year, certified copies of its annual report for such Financial Year;

(c)  within 45 (forty five) calendar days after each Quarterly
Date, a certificate signed the person designated as the Chief
Financial Officer or an authorised officer of the Issuer acceptable
to the Debenture Holders stating that the Issuer is in compliance
with all the financial covenants prescribed in Section 1.3
(Financial Covenants) on the basis of the most recent unaudited
quarterly financial statements of the Issuer;

(d) as soon as practicable and in any event within 5 (five)
calendar days (in respect of any changes/actions requiring the
approval of the board of directors of the Issuer) and 15 (fifteen)
calendar days (in all other cases) of the occurrence of the
following events, the details of:

(i)  any change in the list/composition of the board of directors
of the Issuer;

(il) any change in the Issuer's shareholding structure;

(iii) any change in any of the senior management officials
(CXO or equivalent) of the Issuer;

(iv) details of the occurrence of any fraud amounting to more
than 1% (one percent) of the Gross Loan Portfolio;

(v)  any material change in the accounting policy of the Issuer;

(vi) any change in the Constitutional Documents other than any
changes in relation to the following:

(A) any increase in authorised share capital of the Issuer and/or
any re-classification of the share capital of the Issuer;

(B) any appointment of any observer on the board of directors
of the Issuer on behalf of any investor;
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(C) any appointment of any nominee director on the board of
directors of the Issuer on behalf of any investor; and

(D) any change in the Constitutional Documents as a result of
any amendment in the shareholders' agreement entered with any
shareholder/investor.

PROVIDED THAT the change(s) or amendment(s) referred to in
(A) to (D) above shall not be prejudicial to the interests of the
Debenture Holders; and

(e)  without prejudice to sub-paragraph (1) below, as soon as
practicable and in any event within 30 (thirty) calendar days of
receipt of a request, such additional documents or information as
the Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Holders, may reasonably
request from time to time; and

(f)  assoon as practicable and in any event within the timelines
prescribed by the Debenture Trustee (and Applicable Law), such
other information, notifications, details, documents, reports,
statements and certificates (including from chartered accountants,
auditors and/or directors of the Issuer) as may be required by the
Debenture Trustee from time to time, to ensure compliance with
the provisions of the Applicable Law, including but not limited to
the Debenture Trustees Regulations and the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

I.5.  Affirmative Covenants

The Issuer hereby undertakes and covenants as follows:
(@)  Use of Proceeds
The Issuer shall use the proceeds of the Issue only for the Purpose
and in accordance with Applicable Law and the Transaction
Documents, and shall not use the proceeds for the purposes set out
in the DTD.
(b)  Corporate Governance; Fair Practices Code
The Issuer shall comply with any corporate governance
requirements applicable to the Issuer (as may be prescribed by the
RBI, SEBI, any stock exchange, or any Governmental Authority)
and the fair practices code prescribed by the RBI.
(c)  Furnish Information to Debenture Trustee

The Issuer shall:

(i)  inform and provide the Debenture Trustee with applicable
documents in respect of the following:

(A) notice of any Event of Default or potential Event of
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Default; and

(B) any and all information required to be provided to the
Debenture Holders under Applicable Law and the listing
agreement to be entered into between the Issuer and the BSE;

(i) as soon as practicable, and in any event within 1 (one)
calendar day after the Issuer obtains actual knowledge thereof,
any notices, orders or directions any court or tribunal in relation
to any dispute, litigation, investigation or other proceeding
affecting the Issuer or its property or operations (including the
Hypothecated Assets), which, if adversely determined, could
result in a Material Adverse Effect;

(i)  within 45 (forty five) days of each Quarterly Date or within
7 (seven) days of any relevant meeting of the board of directors,
whichever is earlier, furnish reports/quarterly reports to the
Debenture Trustee (as may be required in accordance with
Applicable Law) containing the following particulars:

(A) updated list of the names and addresses of the Debenture
Holders along with the number of Debentures held by each
Debenture Holder;

(B) details of the interest due, but unpaid and reasons thereof;

(C) the number and nature of grievances received from the
Debenture Holders and resolved and unresolved by the Issuer
along with the reasons for the same; and

(D) a statement that the Hypothecated Assets are sufficient to
discharge the claims of the Debenture Holders as and when they
become due; and

(iv) promptly inform the Debenture Trustee of any major or
significant change in composition of the board of directors of the
Issuer, which may result in a change in control of the Issuer in
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011; and

(v) inform the Debenture Trustee of any amalgamation,
demerger, merger or corporate restructuring or reconstruction
scheme proposed by the Issuer.

(d)  Further Assurances

The Issuer shall:

(i)  comply with:

(A) all Applicable Law (including but not limited to the
Companies Act, the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular,
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the environmental, social and taxation related laws, all directions
issued by the RBI to non-banking financial companies), as
applicable in respect of the Debentures and obtain such regulatory
approvals as may be required from time to time;

(B) the Debenture Trustees Regulations as in force from time
to time, in so far as they are applicable to the Debentures and
furnish to the Debenture Trustee such data, information,
statements and reports as may be deemed necessary by the
Debenture Trustee in order to enable them to comply with the
provisions of Regulation 15 of the Debenture Trustees
Regulations thereof in performance of their duties in accordance
therewith to the extent applicable to the Debentures;

(C) theprovisions of the Companies Act in relation to the Issue;

(D) procure that the Debentures are rated and continue to be
rated until the Final Settlement Date; and

(E) if so required, the requirements prescribed under Chapter
XI (Operational framework for transactions in defaulted debt
securities post maturity date/ redemption date) of the Listed NCDs
Master Circular, and provide all details/intimations to the
Debenture Trustee, the Depositories, and BSE (as the case may
be) in accordance with the aforementioned requirements;

(il) to the extent applicable, it will submit to the Debenture
Trustee, on a quarterly basis, a certificate from the statutory
auditor of the Issuer giving the value of receivables/book debts
including compliance with the covenants set out in the Placement
Memorandum in such manner as may be specified by SEBI from
time to time; and

(iii) it will provide all necessary assistance and cooperation to,
and permit the Debenture Trustee to conduct periodical checks,
verifications, due diligence and other inspections (at such
frequency and within such timelines as may be determined by the
Debenture Trustee) in respect of the books and accounts of the
Issuer and the Hypothecated Assets.

(e)  Redressal of Grievances

The Issuer shall promptly and expeditiously attend to and redress
the grievances, if any, of the Debenture Holders. The Issuer
further undertakes that it shall promptly comply with the
suggestions and directions that may be given in this regard, from
time to time, by the Debenture Trustee and shall advise the
Debenture Trustee periodically of the compliance.

(f) Comply with Investor Education and Protection Fund
Requirements

The Issuer shall comply with the provisions of the Companies Act
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relating to transfer of unclaimed/ unpaid amounts of interest on
Debentures and redemption of Debentures to Investor Education
and Protection Fund ("IEPF"), if applicable to it. The Issuer
hereby further agrees and undertakes that until the Final
Settlement Date it shall abide by the regulations, rules or
guidelines/listing requirements if any, issued from time to time by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, RBI, SEBI or any other
competent Governmental Authority.

(g) Security

The Issuer hereby further agrees, declares and covenants with the
Debenture Trustee as follows:

(i)  the Debentures shall be secured by a first ranking exclusive
and continuing security by way of a first ranking exclusive and
continuing charge on the Hypothecated Assets in favour of the
Debenture Trustee for the benefit of the Debenture Holders on or
prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment;

(i)  all the Hypothecated Assets that will be charged to the
Debenture Trustee under the Deed of Hypothecation shall always
be kept distinguishable and held as the exclusive property of the
Issuer specifically appropriated to the Transaction Security and be
dealt with only under the directions of the Debenture Trustee;

(iii) the Issuer shall not create any charge, lien or other
encumbrance upon or over the Hypothecated Assets or any part
thereof except in favour of the Debenture Trustee nor will it do or
allow anything that may prejudice the Transaction Security;

(iv) to create the security over the Hypothecated Assets as
contemplated in the Transaction Documents on or prior to the
Deemed Date of Allotment by executing the duly stamped Deed
of Hypothecation;

(v)  toregister and perfect the security interest created pursuant
to the Deed of Hypothecation by filing Form CHG-9 with the
concerned ROC and ensuring and procuring that the Debenture
Trustee files the prescribed Form I with CERSAI reporting the
charge created to the CERSALI in relation thereto in accordance
with the timelines set out in the Deed of Hypothecation;

(vi) the Issuer shall, at the time periods set out in the Deed of
Hypothecation, provide a list of the Hypothecated Assets to the
Debenture Trustee over which charge is created and subsisting by
way of hypothecation in favour of the Debenture Trustee (for the
benefit of the Debenture Holders) and sufficient to maintain the
Security Cover;

(vii) to keep the Application Money in a separate bank account
in the event the DTD and the other Transaction Documents are
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not executed on or before the Deemed Date of Allotment;

(viii) the Issuer shall, within the timelines prescribed under the
Deed of Hypothecation, add fresh receivables/Client Loans to the
Hypothecated Assets, in accordance with the Deed of
Hypothecation, so as to ensure that the Security Cover is
maintained or replace such Hypothecated Assets that do not
satisfy the eligibility criteria prescribed in the Transaction
Documents;

(ix) the security interest created on the Hypothecated Assets
shall be a continuing security;

(x)  the Hypothecated Assets shall fulfil the eligibility criteria
set out in the Deed of Hypothecation;

(xi) nothing contained herein shall prejudice the rights or
remedies of the Debenture Trustee and/or the Debenture Holders
in respect of any present or future security, guarantee obligation
or decree for any indebtedness or liability of the Issuer to the
Debenture Trustee and/ or the Debenture Holders;

(xii) the Debenture Holders shall have a beneficial interest in the
Hypothecated Assets of the Issuer which have been charged to the
Debenture Trustee to the extent of the Outstanding Amounts of
the Debentures under the DTD; and

(xiii) to forthwith upon demand by the Debenture Trustee,
reimburse to the Debenture Trustee all amounts paid by the
Debenture Trustee to reasonably protect the Hypothecated Assets
and such amounts shall be deemed to be secured by the
Hypothecated Assets.

(h)  Execution of Transaction Documents/Creation of Security

In the event of any delay in the execution of any Transaction
Document (including the DTD or the Deed of Hypothecation) or
the creation and perfection of security in terms thereof, the Issuer
shall, at the option of the Debenture Holders, either:

(i) if so required by the Debenture Holders, refund the
Application Money together with interest (including interest
accrued) at the Interest Rate/discharge the Secured Obligations;
and/or

(ii) pay to the Debenture Holders additional interest at the rate
of 2% (two percent) per annum on the Outstanding Principal
Amounts in addition to the Interest Rate until the relevant
Transaction Document is duly executed or the security is duly
created and perfected in terms thereof or the Secured Obligations
are discharged (whichever is earlier).
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(i)  Internal Control
The Issuer shall maintain internal control for the purpose of:
(i)  preventing fraud on amounts lent by the Issuer; and

(i) preventing money being used for money laundering or
illegal purposes.

(3)  Audit and Inspection

The Issuer shall permit visits and inspection of books of records,
documents and accounts to the Debenture Trustee and
representatives of Debenture Holders as and when required by
them.

(k)  Books and Records

The Issuer shall maintain its accounts and records in accordance
with Applicable Law.

(I)  Listing and Monitoring Requirements

The Issuer shall comply with all covenants, undertakings and
requirements set out in Schedule V (Listing and Monitoring
Requirements).

I.6. Negative Covenants

The Issuer shall not take any action in relation to the items set out
in this Section L.6 (Negative Covenants) without the prior written
consent of the Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of
Majority Debenture Holders). In relation to the consent
requirement under this Section 1.6 (Negative Covenants), it is
agreed as follows:

(A) any request for consent under in relation to any matter
under Section 1.6 (Negative Covenants) shall be sent
simultaneously by the Issuer to both the Debenture Trustee and
the Debenture Holders. Any request under Section 1.6 (Negative
Covenants) must be accompanied by all relevant information
substantiating the request to enable the Debenture Holders to
make a reasoned decision; and

(B) within 7 (seven) calendar days after receiving any request
mentioned in sub-paragraph (A) above (or such additional time
period as may be mutually agreed between the Issuer and the
Majority Debenture Holders), the Debenture Holders shall
communicate their consent/dissent to the Debenture Trustee and
the Issuer.

(a) Change of Business/Constitutional Documents
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(i)  any change in the general nature of its business from that
which is permitted as a non-banking financial company — micro-
finance institution registered with the RBI;

(il)  undertake any new major new businesses except in relation
to financial services or diversify its business outside the financial
services sector; or

(iii)) any changes or amendments to its Constitutional
Documents other than:

(A) any increase in authorised share capital of the Issuer and/or
any re-classification of the share capital of the Issuer;

(B) any appointment of any observer on the board of directors
of the Issuer on behalf of any investor;

(C) any appointment of any nominee director on the board of
directors of the Issuer on behalf of any investor; and

(D) any change in the Constitutional Documents as a result of
any amendment in the shareholders' agreement entered with any
shareholder/investor.

PROVIDED THAT the change(s) or amendment(s) referred to in
(A) to (D) above shall not be prejudicial to the interests of the
Debenture Holders;

(b) Merger, Consolidation, etc.

enter into any merger, de-merger, consolidation, re-organization,
scheme of arrangement or compromise with its creditors or
shareholders or effect any scheme of amalgamation (except with
group companies) or reconstruction;

(c) Disposal of Assets

(i)  sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of in any manner
whatsoever any material Assets, business or division of the Issuer
(whether in a single transaction or in a series of transactions
(whether related or not) or any other transactions which
cumulatively have the same effect). PROVIDED THAT the
foregoing shall not apply to any securitization/portfolio sale of
assets undertaken by the Issuer in its ordinary course of business;
or

(il)) without prejudice to sub-paragraph (i) above, sell any
Assets, business, or division of the Issuer that has the effect of
exiting or re-structuring of the business of the Issuer from that
existing as of the Effective Date;

(d) Lending and Investments
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directly or indirectly lend to its promoters (as defined in the
Companies Act);

(e) Related Party Transactions

enter into any transactions with any related party (as defined in
the Act) of the Issuer, other than transactions which are at arm's
length basis and which are in the ordinary course of business of
the Issuer;

(f) Immunity

claim for itself or its Assets immunity from any suit, execution,
attachment (whether in aid of execution, before judgment or
otherwise) or other legal process in any jurisdiction; or

(g) Dividend

if a Payment Default has occurred and is continuing, declare or
pay any dividend to its shareholders (including holders of
preference shares) during any Financial Year unless it has paid or
made arrangements to pay (to the satisfaction of the Debenture
Trustee) all the dues to the Debenture Holders/Debenture Trustee
up to the date on which the dividend is proposed to be declared or
paid or has made satisfactory provisions thereof.

II.  EVENTS OF DEFAULT
II.1  Consequences and Remedies of an Event of Default

If one or more Events of Default occur(s), the Debenture Trustee
may, on the instructions of the Majority Debenture Holders in
accordance with the DTD, by a notice in writing to the Issuer
initiate the following course of action:

(a)  require the Issuer to mandatorily redeem the Debentures
and repay the principal amount on the Debentures, along with
accrued but unpaid interest and other costs, charges and expenses
incurred under or in connection with the DTD and the other
Transaction Documents;

(b) accelerate the redemption of the Debentures and declare all
or any of the Debentures to be due and payable immediately or on
such date as may be prescribed by the Debenture Trustee,
whereupon it shall become so due and payable;

(c) enforce the security interest created under the Transaction
Documents (including in respect of the Transaction Security) in
accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents;

(d) take any actions in respect of the SEBI Debenture Trustees
Master Circular in accordance with the provisions of the DTD;
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(e) take all such other action as is expressly permitted under
the DTD or in the other Transaction Documents or permitted
under Applicable Law (including pursuant to the (Indian)
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy (Insolvency and Liquidation Proceedings of Financial
Service Providers and Application to Adjudicating Authority)
Rules, 2019, and any other rules and regulations made thereunder
from time to time); and/or

(f)  exercise any other right that the Debenture Trustee and/or
the Debenture Holders may have under Applicable Law for the
purposes of protecting the interests of the Debenture Holders.

II.L1A Additional Consequences and Remedies of an Event of
Default

Without prejudice to Section 1.1 above, if one or more events
specified in Section II.2 (Events of Default) occur(s), the
Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of the Debenture
Holders) has the option (but not the obligation) to require the
obligors in relation to the Client Loans comprising the
Hypothecated Assets to directly deposit all interest and principal
instalments and other amounts in respect of the relevant Client
Loans in the account specified by the Debenture Trustee (acting
on the instructions of the Debenture Holders). All such payments
will be used to discharge the amounts outstanding and due from
the Issuer in respect of the Debentures.

II.2  Events of Default

Each of the events or circumstances set out in this Section 1.2
(Events of Default) below is an Event of Default.

(a)  Payment Defaults

The Issuer does not pay on any Due Date any amount payable
pursuant to the DTD and the Debentures at the place and in the
currency in which it is expressed to be payable, unless its failure
to pay is caused by technical error and payment is made within 1
(one) calendar day of such Due Date.

(b) Insolvency/Inability to Pay Debts

(i)  The Issuer is unable or admits inability to pay its debts as
they fall due, suspends making payments on any of its debts or,
by reason of actual or anticipated financial difficulties,
commences negotiations with one or more of its creditors with a
view to rescheduling any of its Financial Indebtedness.

(i) A petition for reorganization, arrangement, adjustment,
winding up or composition of debts of the Issuer is filed by the
Issuer (voluntary or otherwise).
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(ii1)) A petition for reorganization, arrangement, adjustment,
winding up or composition of debts of the Issuer in respect of the
Issuer (voluntary or otherwise) have been admitted by any
competent court or tribunal, and such proceedings are not
contested by the Issuer for staying or such proceedings are not
quashed and/or dismissed within 15 (fifteen) days.

(iv) Any proceedings for liquidating the Issuer have been
admitted by any competent court or tribunal.

(v) A moratorium or other protection from creditors is declared
or imposed on the Issuer in respect of any Financial Indebtedness
of the Issuer.

(c) Business

The Issuer without obtaining the prior consent of the Majority
Debenture Holders ceases to carry on its business or gives notice
of its intention to do so.

(d)  Misrepresentation

Any representation or warranty made by the Issuer in any
Transaction Document or in any certificate, financial statement or
other document delivered to the Debenture Trustee/Debenture
Holders by the Issuer shall prove to have been incorrect, false or
misleading in any material respect when made or deemed made.

(e) Material Adverse Effect

The occurrence of a Material Adverse Effect, in the sole
determination of the Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions
of the Majority Debenture Holders).

()  Cross Default
(i)  The Issuer:

(A) defaults in any payment of any Financial Indebtedness
beyond the period of grace, if any, provided in the instrument or
agreement under which such Financial Indebtedness was created;
or

(B) defaults in the observance or performance of any
agreement or condition relating to any Financial Indebtedness or
contained in any instrument or agreement evidencing, securing or
relating thereto or any other event shall occur or condition exist,
the effect of which default or other event or condition is to cause
or to permit the holder or holders of such Financial Indebtedness
to cause (determined without regard to whether any notice is
required) any such Financial Indebtedness to become due prior to
its stated maturity, and such Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer
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is declared to be due and payable.

(i)  Any Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer shall be declared
to be due and payable, or required to be prepaid other than by a
regularly scheduled required prepayment, prior to the stated
maturity thereof.

(g) Liquidation, Insolvency or Dissolution of the Issuer /
Appointment of Receiver, Resolution Professional or Liquidator

Any corporate action, declaration of, legal proceedings or other
procedure or step is taken in relation to:

(i)  the suspension of payments, a moratorium of any Financial
Indebtedness, winding-up, insolvency, liquidation, dissolution,
administration or re-organisation (by way of voluntary
arrangement, scheme of arrangement or otherwise) of the Issuer;

(i) a composition, compromise, assignment or arrangement
with any creditor of the Issuer;

(iii) the appointment of a liquidator, provisional liquidator,
supervisor, receiver, resolution professional, administrative
receiver, administrator, compulsory manager, trustee, or other
similar officer in respect of the Issuer or any of the Issuer's assets
or any part of the undertaking of the Issuer;

(iv) the Issuer, in respect of any reference or enquiry or
proceedings commenced, before the National Companies Law
Tribunal or under any mechanism or prescription of the RBI in
respect of resolution/restructuring of stressed assets (including
without limitation, under the Stressed Assets Framework);

(v)  the commencement of an insolvency resolution process
under the (Indian) Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read
together with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Insolvency and
Liquidation Proceedings of Financial Service Providers and
Application to Adjudicating Authority) Rules, 2019, and any
other rules and regulations made thereunder from time to time, or
under any other Applicable Law, in respect of the Issuer;

(vi) enforcement of any security over any Assets of the Issuer
or any analogous procedure or step is taken in any jurisdiction; or

(vii) any other event occurs or proceeding instituted under any
Applicable Law that would have an effect analogous to any of the
events listed in (i) to (vi) above.

(h)  Creditors' Process and Expropriation
(i)  Any expropriation, attachment, garnishee, sequestration,

distress or execution affects any Assets of the Issuer equivalent to
or exceeding 10% (ten percent) of the Total Assets of the Issuer
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and is not discharged within 30 (thirty) Business Days or as
otherwise provided in any order of any competent court or
tribunal relating to the aforementioned actions.

(i)  Any Governmental Authority, or any person by or under
the authority of any Governmental Authority:

(A) condemns, seizes, nationalises, expropriates or
compulsorily acquires all or a material part of the undertaking,
assets, rights or revenues of the Issuer;

(B) has assumed custody or control of all or substantial part of
the business or operations of the Issuer (including operations,
properties and other assets); or

(C) hastaken any action for the dissolution of the Issuer, or any
action that would prevent the Issuer, their members, or their
officers from carrying on their business or operations or a
substantial part thereof.

(i)  Judgment Defaults

One or more judgments or decrees entered against the Issuer
involving a liability (not paid or not covered by a reputable and
solvent insurance company), individually or in the aggregate,
exceeding 10% (ten percent) of the Total Assets of the Issuer
provided such judgments or decrees are either final and non-
appealable or have not been vacated, discharged or stayed
pending appeal for any period of 30 (thirty) calendar days.

(j)  Transaction Documents

The DTD or any other Transaction Document (in whole or in
part), is terminated or ceases to be effective or ceases to be in full
force or no longer constitutes valid, binding and enforceable
obligations of the Issuer.

(k) Unlawfulness

It is or becomes unlawful for the Issuer to perform any of its
obligations under the Transaction Documents and/or any
obligation or obligations of the Issuer under any Transaction
Document are not or cease to be valid, binding or enforceable.

(I)  Repudiation

The Issuer repudiates any of the Transaction Documents, or
evidences an intention to repudiate any of the Transaction
Documents.

(m) Security in Jeopardy

In the opinion of the Debenture Trustee any Hypothecated
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Asset(s) are in jeopardy.
(n)  Security

(i)  The value of the Hypothecated Assets is insufficient to
maintain the Security Cover or the Issuer fails to maintain the
Security Cover (including by way of providing
additional/alternate security to the satisfaction of the Debenture
Trustee) within the timelines prescribed in the relevant
Transaction Documents, and such default/non-compliance is not
rectified/remedies within 30 (thirty) days of occurrence.

(i)  The Issuer creates or attempts to create any mortgage,
charge, pledge, lien or other security interest securing any
obligation of any person or any other agreement or arrangement
having similar effect, over the Hypothecated Assets, without the
prior consent of the Debenture Trustee.

(o)  Fraud and Embezzlement

Any material act of fraud, embezzlement, misstatement,
misappropriation or siphoning off of the funds of the Issuer or by
the Promoters of the Issuer or revenues of the Issuer or any other
act having a similar effect being committed by the management
or an officer of the Issuer.

(p) Erosion of Net Worth

The Net Worth of the Issuer erodes by 50% (fifty percent) or
more, from that existing as of the Effective Date.

(q)  Breach of other Covenants

Any breach of any covenant or undertaking of the Issuer in the
Transaction Documents, which, to the extent capable of remedy
in the sole opinion of the Debenture Trustee (acting on the
Instructions of the Debenture Holders), is not remedied within
such time period as may be prescribed by the Debenture Trustee
(acting on the instructions of the Debenture Holders).

II.3  Notice on the Occurrence of an Event of Default

(a) Ifany Event of Default or any event which, after the notice,
or lapse of time, or both, would constitute an Event of Default,
has occurred, the Issuer shall, forthwith give notice thereof to the
Debenture Holders and the Debenture Trustee in writing
specifying the nature of such event or Event of Default.

(b) In addition to the foregoing, in accordance with the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Master Circular, the Debenture Trustee shall
send a notice to the Debenture Holders within 3 (three) days of
the occurrence of an Event of Default, in accordance with the
mode of delivery of notice mentioned therein, convening a
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meeting within 30 (thirty) days of the occurrence of an Event of
Default. PROVIDED THAT if the Event of Default is cured or
rectified within the intervening period between the date of the
aforementioned notice from the Debenture Trustee to the date the
aforementioned meeting is convened, no such meeting of the
Debenture Holders shall be required. The Debenture Trustee shall
maintain the details of the providing and receipt of such notice in
accordance with the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular.

I1.4  Additional obligations of the Debenture Trustee

In respect of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular, the
entering into, and the performance of any obligations under any
inter-creditor agreement (pursuant to the Stressed Assets
Framework) or any resolution plan shall be subject to the terms of
the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular (including without
limitation, the resolution plan being finalised within the time
period prescribed in the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master
Circular, and exiting of the inter-creditor agreement on the
occurrence of the matters prescribed under the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Master Circular.

Description regarding
Security (where applicable)
including type of security
(movable/immovable/tangible
etc.), type of charge (pledge/
hypothecation/ mortgage
etc.), date of creation of
security/ likely date of
creation of security,
minimum security cover,
revaluation

L SECURITY

(a) Hypothecated Assets

The Debentures and the Outstanding Amounts in respect thereof
shall be secured on or prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment by
way of (i) a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge to be
created in favour of the Debenture Trustee pursuant to an unattested
deed of hypothecation, dated on or about the Effective Date,
executed or to be executed and delivered by the Issuer in a form
acceptable to the Debenture Trustee ("Deed of Hypothecation")
over certain identified book debts/loan receivables of the Issuer as
described therein (the "Hypothecated Assets"), and (ii) such other
security interest as may be agreed between the Issuer and the
Debenture Holders ((i) and (ii) above are collectively referred to as
the "Transaction Security").

(b) Security Cover and Maintenance

1) The charge over the Hypothecated Assets shall at all times,
commencing from the Deemed Date of Allotment until the Final
Settlement Date, be at least 1.1 (one decimal one) times the value
of the Outstanding Amounts (the "Security Cover") and shall be
maintained at all times until the Final Settlement Date.

(i1) The value of the Hypothecated Assets for this purpose (for
both initial and subsequent valuations) shall be the amount reflected
as the value thereof in the books of accounts of the Issuer.

(©

Filings and other information
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(1) The Issuer shall create the charge over the Hypothecated
Assets on or prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment and perfect
such security by filing Form CHG-9 with the ROC within the time
period prescribed under the Deed of Hypothecation.

(i1) The Debenture Trustee shall file the prescribed Form I
with CERSAI reporting the charge created to the CERSAI within
the time period prescribed under the Deed of Hypothecation. The
Issuer will provide all information and assistance that the
Debenture Trustee may require, to enable it to file the prescribed
Form I with CERSAI within the time period prescribed under the
Deed of Hypothecation.

(d) Others

The Issuer hereby further agrees, declares and covenants with the
Debenture Trustee as follows:

1) all the Hypothecated Assets that will be charged to
the Debenture Trustee under the Deed of
Hypothecation  shall  always be  kept
distinguishable and held as the exclusive property
of the Issuer specifically appropriated to the
Transaction Security and be dealt with only under
the directions of the Debenture Trustee;

(i1) the Issuer shall not create any charge, lien or other
encumbrance upon or over the Hypothecated
Assets or any part thereof except in favour of the
Debenture Trustee nor will it do or allow anything
that may prejudice the Transaction Security;

(1i1) the Issuer shall, at the time periods set out in the
Deed of Hypothecation, provide a list of the
Hypothecated Assets to the Debenture Trustee
over which charge is created and subsisting by way
of hypothecation in favour of the Debenture
Trustee (for the benefit of the Debenture Holders)
and sufficient to maintain the Security Cover;

@iv) the Issuer shall, within the timelines prescribed
under the Deed of Hypothecation, add fresh
receivables/Client Loans to the Hypothecated
Assets, in accordance with the Deed of
Hypothecation, so as to ensure that the Security
Cover is maintained or replace such Hypothecated
Assets that do not satisfy the eligibility criteria
prescribed in the Transaction Documents;

W) the security interest created on the Hypothecated
Assets shall be a continuing security; and

(vi) the Hypothecated Assets shall fulfil the eligibility
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criteria set out in the Deed of Hypothecation.
II. SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES
(2) Type of security: Book debts/loan receivables.
(b) Type of charge: Hypothecation.

(©) Date of creation of security/ likely date of creation of
security: On or prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment.

(d) Minimum security cover: At least 1.1 (one decimal one)
times the value of the Outstanding Amounts.

(e) Revaluation: N.A.

® Replacement of security: The Issuer shall, within the
timelines prescribed under the Deed of Hypothecation, add
fresh receivables/Client Loans to the Hypothecated Assets
so as to ensure that the Security Cover is maintained or
replace such Hypothecated Assets that do not satisfy the
eligibility criteria prescribed in the Transaction
Documents.

(2) Interest over and above the coupon rate:

In the event of any delay in the execution of any Transaction

Document (including the DTD or the Deed of Hypothecation) or

the creation and perfection of security in terms thereof, the Issuer

shall, at the option of the Debenture Holders, either:

(1) if so required by the Debenture Holders, refund the

Application Money together with interest
(including interest accrued) at the Interest
Rate/discharge the Secured Obligations; and/or

(i1) pay to the Debenture Holders additional interest at
the rate of 2% (two percent) per annum on the
Outstanding Principal Amounts in addition to the
Interest Rate until the relevant Transaction
Document is duly executed or the security is duly
created and perfected in terms thereof or the
Secured Obligations are discharged (whichever is
earlier).

Replacement of security,
interest to the debenture
holder over and above the
coupon rate as specified in the
Trust Deed and disclosed in
the issue document

Please refer the sub-section named "Description regarding Security
(where applicable) including type of security
(movable/immovable/tangible etc.), type of charge (pledge/
hypothecation/ mortgage etc.), date of creation of security/ likely
date of creation of security, minimum security cover, revaluation"
above.

Transaction Documents

means, collectively:
(a) the DTD;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

€]

(h)

the Debenture Trustee Agreement;
the Deed of Hypothecation;
the Debt Disclosure Documents;

the letters issued by the, and each memorandum of
understanding/agreement entered into with, the Rating
Agency, the Debenture Trustee and/or the Registrar;

each tripartite agreement between the Issuer, the Registrar
and the relevant Depository;

all other documents, undertakings, letter-agreement(s), and
the resolutions of the Issuer comprising the Conditions
Precedent in relation to the issuance of the Debentures; and

any other document that may be designated as a
Transaction Document by the Debenture Trustee or the
Debenture Holders,

and "Transaction Document" means any of them.

Conditions
Disbursement

precedent

to

The Issuer shall, prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment, fulfil the
following conditions precedent, each in a form and manner
satisfactory and acceptable to the Debenture Trustee/the
Applicants:

AUTHORISATIONS

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

a copy of the Issuer's Constitutional Documents certified as
correct, complete and in full force and effect by an
authorised person of the Issuer;

copies of the authorisations, approvals and licenses
(governmental or otherwise) received by the Issuer from
the RBI or any other Governmental Authority;

a copy of the resolution of the Issuer's board of directors
and any resolution of any committee of the board of
directors authorising the execution, delivery and
performance of the Transaction Documents certified as
correct, complete and in full force and effect by an
authorised person of the Issuer;

a copy of the resolution of the shareholders of the Issuer in
accordance with Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act
approving the borrowing contemplated under the
Transaction Documents certified as correct, complete and
in full force and effect by an authorised person of the
Issuer;

a copy of the resolution of the shareholders of the Issuer in
accordance with Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act
approving the creation of Transaction Security in
accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents
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ii)

(e)

®

€]

(h)

O]

)

(k)

M

(m)

()

certified as correct, complete and in full force and effect by
an authorised person of the Issuer;

a copy of the resolution of the shareholders of the Issuer
under Section 42 of the Companies Act approving issuance
of non-convertible debentures by the Issuer on a private
placement basis certified as correct, complete and in full
force and effect by an authorised person of the Issuer;

TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS

execution, delivery and stamping of the Transaction
Documents (including the Debt Disclosure Documents) in
a form and manner satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee;

CERTIFICATES AND CONFIRMATIONS

a copy of the rating letter and the rating rationale issued by
the Rating Agency in relation to the Debentures;

a copy of the consent from the Debenture Trustee to act as
the debenture trustee for the issue of Debentures;

a copy of the consent from the Registrar to act as the
registrar and transfer agent for the issue of Debentures;

a copy of the tripartite agreement(s) executed between the
Issuer, the Registrar and the relevant Depository;

OTHERS

evidence that all "know your customer" requirements
prescribed by the Debenture Trustee and the Applicants
have been provided/fulfilled;

the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, and, to the extent
required by the Debenture Holders and available with the
Issuer, the most recently prepared audited/unaudited
financial statements of the Issuer for most recent financial
half-year;

a copy of the in-principle approval provided by the BSE in
respect of the listing of the Debentures or the General
Information Document;

a certificate from the authorised signatories of the Issuer
addressed to the Debenture Trustee confirming as on the
Deemed Date of Allotment/the date of the certificate, such
matters as may be agreed between the Issuer and the
Applicants; and

such other information, documents, certificates, opinions
and instruments as the Debenture Trustee and the
Applicants may request in connection with the transactions
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contemplated under the Transaction Documents.

Conditions Subsequent to
Disbursement

The Issuer shall fulfil the following conditions subsequent, to the
satisfaction of the Debenture Trustee, following the Deemed Date
of Allotment:

(a)

(®)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

the Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures are allotted to
the respective Debenture Holders and are credited into the
demat accounts of the relevant Debenture Holders within
the timelines prescribed under the SEBI Listing Timelines
Requirements;

the Issuer shall make the application for listing of the
Debentures and obtain listing of the Debentures within the
time period prescribed under the SEBI Listing Timelines
Requirements;

the Issuer shall file a return of allotment of securities under
Form PAS-3 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014 with the ROC within 15 (fifteen)
calendar days of the allotment of the Debentures along with
a list of the Debenture Holders and with the prescribed fee;

if so required, the Issuer shall maintain and file a copy of
Form PAS-5 in accordance with the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 in
respect of the issue of the Debentures;

the Issuer shall, in respect of the Deed of Hypothecation,
file a copy of Form CHG-9 with ROC and shall ensure and
procure that the Debenture Trustee files the prescribed
Form I with CERSALI, each within 30 (thirty) days from the
date of execution of the Deed of Hypothecation; and

such other information, documents, certificates, opinions
and instruments as the Debenture Trustee and the
Applicants may request in connection with the transactions
contemplated under the Transaction Documents.

Event of Default (including
manner of voting /conditions
of joining Inter Creditor
Agreement)

Please refer to the section named "All covenants of the issue
(including side letters, accelerated payment clause, etc.)"

Creation of recovery expense
fund

(a)

The Issuer hereby undertakes and confirms that it shall,
within the time period prescribed under Chapter IV of the
SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular, establish and
maintain the Recovery Expense Fund in such manner/mode
as is prescribed under Chapter IV of the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Master Circular.
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(b) The Issuer shall, promptly upon establishment, provide the
details of the Recovery Expense Fund to the Debenture
Trustee.

Conditions for breach of
covenants (as specified in
Debenture Trust Deed)

Please refer sections named "Default Interest Rate" and Section 7
below.

Provisions related to Cross
Default

The below is an Event of Default.
(1) The Issuer:

(A) defaults in any payment of any Financial Indebtedness
beyond the period of grace, if any, provided in the instrument or
agreement under which such Financial Indebtedness was created;
or

(B) defaults in the observance or performance of any
agreement or condition relating to any Financial Indebtedness or
contained in any instrument or agreement evidencing, securing or
relating thereto or any other event shall occur or condition exist,
the effect of which default or other event or condition is to cause
or to permit the holder or holders of such Financial Indebtedness
to cause (determined without regard to whether any notice is
required) any such Financial Indebtedness to become due prior to
its stated maturity, and such Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer is
declared to be due and payable.

(i1) Any Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer shall be declared
to be due and payable, or required to be prepaid other than
by a regularly scheduled required prepayment, prior to the
stated maturity thereof.

This shall be more particularly set out in the DTD and the other
Transaction Documents.

Roles and Responsibilities of
the Debenture Trustee

In addition to the powers conferred on the Debenture Trustee in the
DTD and Applicable Law, and without limiting the liability of the
Debenture Trustee, it is agreed as follows:

(a) the Debenture Trustee may, in relation to the DTD and the
other Transaction Documents, act on the opinion or advice
of or any information obtained from any solicitor, counsel,
advocate, valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, qualified
accountant or other expert whether obtained by the Issuer
or by the Debenture Trustee or otherwise. PROVIDED
THAT the Debenture Trustee may take any actions
pursuant to the foregoing only in accordance with the terms
of the Transaction Documents, and shall not take any
actions prejudicial to the rights of the Subscriber under the
Transaction Documents;

(b) subject to the approval of the Debenture Holders by way of
a Special Resolution passed at a meeting of the Debenture
Holders held for determining the liability of the Debenture
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(©)

(d)

(e)

)

(2

Trustee, the Debenture Trustee shall, as regards all trusts,
powers, authorities and discretions, have the discretion as
to the exercise thereof and to the mode and time of exercise
thereof. In the absence of any fraud, gross negligence,
willful misconduct or breach of trust the Debenture Trustee
shall not be responsible for any loss, costs, charges,
expenses or inconvenience that may result from the
aforementioned exercise or non-exercise thereof. The
Debenture Trustee shall not be bound to act at the request
or direction of the Debenture Holders under any provisions
of the Transaction Documents unless sufficient amounts
shall have been provided or provision to the satisfaction of
the Debenture Trustee has been made for providing such
amounts and the Debenture Trustee is indemnified to its
satisfaction against all further costs, charges, expenses and
liability which may be incurred in complying with such
request or direction;

with a view to facilitating any dealing under any provisions
of'the DTD or the other Transaction Documents, subject to
the Debenture Trustee obtaining the consent of the
Majority Debenture Holders, the Debenture Trustee shall
have (i) the power to consent (where such consent is
required) to a specified transaction or class of transactions
(with or without specifying additional conditions); and (ii)
to determine all questions and doubts arising in relation to
the interpretation or construction any of the provisions of
the DTD;

the Debenture Trustee shall not be responsible for the
amounts paid by the Applicants for the Debentures;

the Debenture Trustee shall not be responsible for acting
upon any resolution purporting to have been passed at any
meeting of the Debenture Holders in respect whereof
minutes have been made and signed even though it may
subsequently be found that there was some defect in the
constitution of the meeting or the passing of the resolution
or that for any reason the resolution was not valid or
binding upon the Debenture Holders;

the Debenture Trustee and each receiver, attorney,
manager, agent or other person appointed by it shall,
subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, be entitled
to be indemnified by the Issuer in respect of all liabilities
and expenses incurred by them in the execution or
purported execution of the powers and trusts thereof;

subject to the approval of the Debenture Holders by way of
a Special Resolution passed at a meeting of Debenture
Holders held for determining the liability of the Debenture
Trustee and in the absence of fraud, gross negligence,
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(h)

@

W)

9]

M

willful misconduct or breach of trust, the Debenture
Trustee shall not be liable for any of its actions or deeds in
relation to the Transaction Documents;

subject to the approval of the Debenture Holders by way of
a Special Resolution passed at a meeting of Debenture
Holders held for determining the liability of the Debenture
Trustee and in the absence of fraud, gross negligence,
willful misconduct or breach of trust, the Debenture
Trustee, shall not be liable for any default, omission or
delay in performing or exercising any of the powers or
trusts herein expressed or contained herein or in enforcing
the covenants contained herein or in giving notice to any
person of the execution hereof or in taking any other steps
which may be necessary, expedient or desirable or for any
loss or injury which may be occasioned by reason thereof
unless the Debenture Trustee shall have been previously
requested by notice in writing to perform, exercise or do
any of such steps as aforesaid given in writing by the
Majority Debenture Holders or by a Majority Resolution
duly passed at a meeting of the Debenture Holders. The
Debenture Trustee shall not be bound to act at the request
or direction of the Debenture Holders under any provisions
of the Transaction Documents unless sufficient amounts
shall have been provided or provision to the satisfaction of
the Debenture Trustee has been made for providing such
amounts and the Debenture Trustee is indemnified to its
satisfaction against all further costs, charges, expenses and
liability which may be incurred in complying with such
request or direction;

notwithstanding anything contained to the contrary in the
DTD, the Debenture Trustee shall, before taking any action
on behalf of the Debenture Holders or providing any
consent on behalf of the Debenture Holders, obtain the
written consent of the Majority Debenture Holders;

without prejudice to anything contained in this sub-section,
the Debenture Trustee shall oversee and monitor the
transaction contemplated in the Transaction Documents for
and on behalf of the Debenture Holders;

the Debenture Trustee shall forward to the Debenture
Holders copies of any information or documents from the
Issuer pursuant to the DTD within 2 (two) Business Days
of receiving such information or document from the Issuer;
and

the Debenture Trustee shall, until the Final Settlement
Date, adhere to and comply with its obligations and
responsibilities under the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master
Circular.
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PROVIDED THAT nothing contained in this sub-section shall
exempt the Debenture Trustee or any receiver, attorney, manager,
agent or other person appointed by the Debenture Trustee from or
indemnify them against any liability for breach of trust nor any
liability which by virtue of any rule or Applicable Law would
otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or
breach of trust which they may be guilty of in relation to their duties
hereunder.

Risk factors pertaining to the
issue

Please refer Section 3 of the KID.

Governing Law &
Jurisdiction

The Transaction Documents shall be governed by and will be
construed in accordance with the laws of India and any disputes
arising there from shall be subject to the jurisdiction of appropriate
courts and tribunals at New Delhi, India.

This shall be more particularly set out in the DTD and the other
Transaction Documents.

Business Day Convention

(a) Interest and all other charges shall accrue based on an
actual/actual basis.

(b) All payments in respect of the Debentures required to be
made by the Issuer shall be made on a Business Day.

(c) If any Due Date on which any interest or additional interest
is payable falls on a day which is a Sunday or is not a
Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date
shall be made on the succeeding Business Day.

(d) If any Due Date on which any Outstanding Principal
Amounts are payable falls on a day which is a Sunday or is
not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due
Date shall be made on the preceding Business Day.

(e) If the Final Redemption Date falls on a day which is a
Sunday or is not a Business Day, the payment of any
amounts in respect of the Outstanding Principal Amounts
to be made shall be made on the preceding Business Day.

® In the absence of anything to the contrary, if any day for
performance of any acts under the Transaction Documents
(other than those set out in (c) to (e) above) falls on a day
which is not a Business Day, such acts shall be performed
shall be made on the succeeding Business Day.

Early Redemption

(a) On the occurrence of an Early Redemption Event, the
Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of any
Debenture Holder(s)) shall have the option (but not the
obligation) to require the Issuer to, subject to Applicable
Law, redeem the Debenture(s) specified by such Debenture
Holder(s) and repay all other Outstanding Amounts in
respect of such Debenture(s) within 15 (fifteen) days of the
occurrence of an Early Redemption Event. The term "Early
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(®)

(c)

(d)

Redemption Event" means the rating of the Debentures
being downgraded to "ICRA BBB+" or below.

For the purposes of making any premature redemption
pursuant to this paragraph:

1) the Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions
of the relevant Debenture Holder(s)) shall
notify/confirm to the Issuer in writing of the
exercise the early redemption option in respect of
the relevant Debenture(s) ("Early Redemption
Notification") and requiring the Issuer to redeem
the Debentures referred in the Early Redemption
Notification and all other Outstanding Amounts in
respect thereof;

(i1) the Issuer shall make payment of all the
Outstanding Amounts to such accounts as may be
prescribed by the Debenture Trustee; and

(iii)  the Issuer shall comply with such other conditions
as may be prescribed by the Debenture Trustee.

This paragraph is subject to the requirements prescribed in
the Debt Listing Regulations (including any notice period
and exercise period requirements specified therein).

No prepayment penalty or prepayment premium will be
applicable to any redemption in accordance with this

paragraph.

Multiple Issuances

The Issuer reserves the right to make multiple issuances under the
same International Securities Identification Number ("ISIN") with
reference to Chapter VIII (Specifications related to ISIN for debt
securities) of the Listed NCDs Master Circular. Such issue can be
made either by way of creation of a fresh ISIN or by way of issuance
under an existing ISIN at premium/par/discount as the case may be
in line with Chapter VIII (Specifications related to ISIN for debt
securities) of the Listed NCDs Master Circular.

Right to repurchase

(@

(b)

The Issuer, subject to the Applicable Law, may, based on
mutual discussions with any Debenture Holder, repurchase
a part or all of the Debentures held by such Debenture
Holder from the secondary market or otherwise, at any time
prior to the Final Settlement Date.

In the event any or all of the Debentures are repurchased,
or redeemed under any circumstances whatsoever, the
Issuer shall have, and shall be deemed to have had, subject
to Applicable Law, the power to re-issue the Debentures
either by re-issuing the same Debentures or by issuing other
non-convertible debentures in their place.
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(c) In respect of any repurchased/redeemed Debenture, the
Issuer shall have the power to (either for a part or all of the
Debenture) cancel, keep alive, appoint nominee(s) to hold
or reissue at such price and on such terms and conditions as
it may deem fit and as is permitted under Applicable Law.

Additional Disclosures
(Security Creation)

In the event of any delay in the execution of any Transaction
Document (including the DTD or the Deed of Hypothecation) or
the creation and perfection of security in terms thereof, the Issuer
shall, at the option of the Debenture Holders, either:

(1) if so required by the Debenture Holders, refund the
Application Money together with interest (including
interest accrued) at the Interest Rate/discharge the Secured
Obligations; and/or

(i1) pay to the Debenture Holders additional interest at the rate
of 2% per annum on the Outstanding Principal Amounts in
addition to the Interest Rate until the relevant Transaction
Document is duly executed or the security is duly created
and perfected in terms thereof or the Secured Obligations
are discharged (whichever is earlier).

Additional Disclosures
(Default in Payment)

The Issuer shall pay additional interest at 2% (two percent) per
annum over the Interest Rate in respect of the Debentures on the
Outstanding Principal Amounts from the date of the occurrence of
a Payment Default until such Payment Default is cured or the
Secured Obligations are repaid (whichever is earlier). Such
amounts shall be determined separately with reference to the
abovementioned incremental rate and paid in addition to the interest
payable on the Debentures on the relevant Due Date.

Additional Disclosures (Delay
in Listing)

In the event there is any delay in listing of the Debentures beyond
the Listing Period, the Issuer will pay to the Debenture Holders,
penal interest of 1% (one percent) per annum over the Interest Rate,
from the Deemed Date of Allotment until the listing of the
Debentures is completed.

Declaration required by BSE
Limited

This Issue of Debentures does not form part of non-equity
regulatory capital mentioned under Chapter V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021.

The face value of each debt security/Debenture issued on private
placement basis shall be INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh).

Definitions

Capitalised terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have

the meanings given to them in the DTD and the other Transaction

Documents. The following capitalised terms have the following

meanings:

(a) "DTD" means the debenture trust deed entered into/to be
entered into in respect of the Debentures between the Issuer
and the Debenture Trustee.

(b) "Debenture Trustee" means Catalyst Trusteeship Limited.
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Note:

a. If there is any change in coupon rate pursuant to any event including lapse of certain time period
or downgrade in rating, then such new coupon rate and events which lead to such change should be
disclosed.

b. The list of documents which has been executed in connection with the issue and subscription of
debt securities shall be annexed.

c. While the debt securities are secured to the extent of hundred and ten per cent. of the amount of
principal and interest or as per the terms of issue document, in favour of debenture trustee, it is the
duty of the debenture trustee to monitor that the security is maintained.

d. The issuer shall provide granular disclosures in their Key Information Document, with regards to

the "Object of the Issue" including the percentage of the issue proceeds earmarked for each of the
"object of the issue".
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SECTION 6: DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

The following disclosures shall be made if the issuer or its promoter or director is
declared wilful defaulter:

(1) Name of the bank declaring the entity as a Wilful Defaulter: Nil

(i) The year in which the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: Nil

(iii) Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: Nil
(iv) Name of the entity declared as a Wilful Defaulter: Nil

) Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters: Nil

(vi) Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the Issuer in order to enable investors to
take informed decisions: Nil

(vii)  Any other disclosure as specified by SEBI: Nil

The fact that the issuer or any of its promoters or directors is a wilful defaulter shall be
disclosed prominently on the cover page with suitable cross-referencing to the pages:
Not Applicable.
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SECTION 7: KEY TERMS OF THE TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS

The following documents shall be executed in relation to the Issue (“Transaction Documents™):

(@

(®)

(©

(d)

7.1

(a)

(b)

Debenture Trustee Agreement, which will confirm the appointment of Catalyst Trusteeship
Limited as the Debenture Trustee (“Debenture Trustee Agreement”);

Debenture Trust Deed, which will set out the terms upon which the Debentures are being
issued and shall include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided
by the Issuer (“Debenture Trust Deed”);

Deed of Hypothecation whereby the Issuer will create an exclusive first charge by way of
hypothecation over the Hypothecated Property in favour of the Debenture Trustee to secure
its obligations in respect of the Debentures (“Deed of Hypothecation™); and

Such other documents as agreed between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.

Representations and Warranties of the Issuer
Utilisation of Proceeds of the Debentures

1) The Issuer shall utilise the amounts received towards subscription of the Debentures
for the Purpose and procure and furnish to the Debenture Trustee a certificate from
the Issuer's statutory auditors or a chartered accountant (as may be acceptable to the
Debenture Trustee) in respect of the utilisation of funds raised by the issue of the
Debentures.

(i1) The Debenture Trustee shall, if requested by the Debenture Holders, provide a copy
of the aforementioned certificate to the Debenture Holders within the time period
prescribed by the Debenture Holders.

(iii))  The proceeds of the Debentures will be utilised solely for the Purpose and will not
be utilised for any purpose set out herein.

Representations and Warranties of the Issuer
The Issuer makes the representations and warranties set out in this Section to the Debenture
Trustee for the benefit of the Debenture Holders as on the Effective Date, which

representations shall be deemed to be repeated on each Due Date until the Final Settlement
Date.

(1) Status

It is a non-banking financial company — micro-finance institution registered with the
RBIL

(i) Binding obligations

The obligations expressed to be assumed by it under the Transaction Documents are
legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations.
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(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Non-conflict

The entry into and performance by it of, and the transactions contemplated by the
Transaction Documents do not and will not conflict with:

(A) any Applicable Law (including without limitation, the Companies Act, and
any directions/circulars issued by SEBI and/or the RBI in respect of issuance
of non-convertible debentures);

(B) its Constitutional Documents; or

© any agreement or instrument binding upon it or any of its Assets, including
but not limited to any terms and conditions of the existing Financial
Indebtedness of the Issuer.

Power and authority

It has the power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has taken all necessary action

to authorize its entry into, performance and delivery of, the Transaction Documents

to which it is a party and the transactions contemplated by such Transaction

Documents (including the issuance of the Debentures).

Validity and admissibility in evidence

All approvals, authorizations, consents, permits (third party, statutory or otherwise)
required or desirable:

(A) to enable it lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights and comply with its
obligations under the Transaction Documents to which it is a party;

(B) to make the Transaction Documents to which it is a party admissible in
evidence in its jurisdiction of incorporation; and

© for it to carry on its business, and which are material,
have been obtained or effected and are in full force and effect.
No default
No Event of Default has occurred.
Ranking
The Debentures rank pari passu inter se, and the payment obligations of the Issuer
under the Transaction Documents rank at least pari passu with the claims of all of
its other senior secured creditors, except for obligations mandatorily preferred by
Applicable Law applying to companies generally.
No proceedings pending
No litigation, arbitration, investigation, or administrative proceedings of or before

any court, arbitral body or agency have been commenced or threatened against the
Issuer, which if determined adversely, may have a Material Adverse Effect
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(ix)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(including in respect of the business condition (financial or otherwise), operations,
performance or prospects of the Issuer or that may affect the Debentures).

SCORES Authentication

The Issuer has received the Securities and Exchange Board of India Complaints
Redress System (SCORES) authentication prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Material Adverse Effect

No fact or circumstance, condition, proceeding or occurrence exists (including in
respect of the business, condition or operations of the Issuer) that has a Material
Adverse Effect.

1llegality

It is not unlawful or illegal for the Issuer to perform any of its obligations under the
Transaction Documents.

No filings or stamp taxes

There are no stamp duties, registration, filings, recordings or notarizations before or
with any Governmental Authority required to be carried out in India in relation to
the execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents by the Issuer other than
the:

(A) stamping of the Transaction Documents (on or prior to execution in New
Delhi, India) in accordance with the Indian Stamp Act, 1899 (as applicable
to New Delhi, India);

(B) payment of the stamp duty in respect of the Debentures;

©) filing of the return of allotment of securities under Form PAS-3 of the
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 with the
ROC;

(D) filing of the Debt Disclosure Documents with the ROC and SEBI;

(E) filing of Form CHG 9 with the ROC within 30 (thirty) days from the date of
creation of security interest; and

(F) filing of Form I with CERSAI by the Debenture Trustee in respect of each
instance of creation of security interest.

Confirmations pursuant to the Debt Listing Regulations

With effect from the date of filing of the draft Key Information Document with the
BSE, as on the date of filing of the draft Key Information Document with the BSE
in accordance with the Debt Listing Regulations:

(A) the Issuer, the Promoters of the Issuer, the Promoter Group of the Issuer or
the directors of the Issuer have not been debarred from accessing the
securities market or dealing in securities by SEBI;
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(B) no Promoter of the Issuer or director of the Issuer is a promoter or director
of any another company which is debarred from accessing the securities
market or dealing in securities by SEBI;

©) no Promoter of the Issuer or director of the Issuer is a fugitive economic
offender; and

(D) no fines or penalties levied by SEBI or any of the stock exchanges is pending
to be paid by the Issuer.

Financial Covenants

The Issuer shall, commencing from the Effective Date until the Final Settlement Date:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

(@)

maintain a Capital Adequacy Ratio of at least 16% (sixteen percent) or such higher
threshold as may be prescribed by the RBI from time to time;

ensure and procure that is return on assets (ROA) (determined in accordance with
Applicable Accounting Standards) is greater than 0% (zero percent) in the preceding
period of 12 (twelve) months (as on any date of determination);

maintain a minimum Net Worth of INR 1250,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One
Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty Crore);

maintain a ratio of the sum of A:B (expressed as a percentage) lower than 17%
(seventeen percent), where A is the aggregate of (i) Portfolio At Risk Over 30 Days,
(i) Restructured Loans including Client Loans that have been charged off or
expensed off in the last 12 (twelve) months, to (B) the Gross Loan Portfolio of the
Issuer;

maintain a ratio of the sum of A:B (expressed as a percentage) lower than 12%
(twelve percent), where A is the aggregate of (i) Portfolio At Risk Over 90 Days, (ii)
Restructured Loans minus Loan Loss Reserves, to (B) the aggregate Tier I Capital
of the Issuer;

ensure and procure that the Issuer maintains a positive profit after tax (PAT) level
(determined in accordance with Applicable Accounting Standards). This covenant
shall be tested on an annual basis;

ensure and procure that the Issuer does not report a loss for 3 (three) consecutive
financial quarters (determined in accordance with Applicable Accounting
Standards);

ensure that the ratio of A:B, where A is the aggregate Financial Indebtedness of the
Issuer, and B is the aggregate Equity of the Issuer, is within 4.5 (four decimal five)
times; and

comply with such other financial covenants as may be agreed between the parties.

Other than as specified in this Section 7.2 (Financial Covenants), the financial
covenants set out in this Section 7.2 (Financial Covenants) shall be tested on a
quarterly basis on each Quarterly Date, on the basis of the standalone financial
statements of the Issuer.
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Reporting Covenants

The Issuer shall provide or cause to be provided to the Debenture Trustee, and to any
Debenture Holder (if so requested by such Debenture Holder), including on any online
reporting platform notified to the Issuer, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the
Debenture Trustee, each of the following items:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

as soon as available, and in any event within 60 (sixty) calendar days after the end
of each Financial Year:

(1) a certificate signed by an independent chartered accountant director stating
that the Issuer is in compliance with all the financial covenants prescribed in
Section 1.3 (Financial Covenants) on the basis of the audited financial
statements of the Issuer; and

(i1) a certificate from an independent chartered accountant stating that the
Security Cover is maintained in accordance with the Transaction
Documents;

as soon as available, and in any event within 180 (one hundred and eighty) calendar
days after the end of each Financial Year, certified copies of its annual report for
such Financial Year;

within 45 (forty five) calendar days after each Quarterly Date, a certificate signed
the person designated as the Chief Financial Officer or an authorised officer of the
Issuer acceptable to the Debenture Holders stating that the Issuer is in compliance
with all the financial covenants prescribed in Section 1.3 (Financial Covenants) on
the basis of the most recent unaudited quarterly financial statements of the Issuer;

as soon as practicable and in any event within 5 (five) calendar days (in respect of
any changes/actions requiring the approval of the board of directors of the Issuer)
and 15 (fifteen) calendar days (in all other cases) of the occurrence of the following
events, the details of:

1) any change in the list/composition of the board of directors of the Issuer;

(i) any change in the Issuer's shareholding structure;

(iii) any change in any of the senior management officials (CXO or equivalent)
of the Issuer;

@iv) details of the occurrence of any fraud amounting to more than 1% (one
percent) of the Gross Loan Portfolio;

v) any material change in the accounting policy of the Issuer;

(vi) any change in the Constitutional Documents other than any changes in
relation to the following:

(A) any increase in authorised share capital of the Issuer and/or any re-
classification of the share capital of the Issuer;
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(e)

®

(B) any appointment of any observer on the board of directors of the
Issuer on behalf of any investor;

©) any appointment of any nominee director on the board of directors
of the Issuer on behalf of any investor; and

(D) any change in the Constitutional Documents as a result of any
amendment in the shareholders' agreement entered with any
shareholder/investor.

PROVIDED THAT the change(s) or amendment(s) referred to in
(A) to (D) above shall not be prejudicial to the interests of the
Debenture Holders; and

without prejudice to sub-paragraph (1) below, as soon as practicable and in any event
within 30 (thirty) calendar days of receipt of a request, such additional documents or
information as the Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Holders, may reasonably
request from time to time; and

as soon as practicable and in any event within the timelines prescribed by the
Debenture Trustee (and Applicable Law), such other information, notifications,
details, documents, reports, statements and certificates (including from chartered
accountants, auditors and/or directors of the Issuer) as may be required by the
Debenture Trustee from time to time, to ensure compliance with the provisions of
the Applicable Law, including but not limited to the Debenture Trustees Regulations
and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

Affirmative Covenants

The Issuer hereby undertakes and covenants as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Use of Proceeds

The Issuer shall use the proceeds of the Issue only for the Purpose and in accordance
with Applicable Law and the Transaction Documents, and shall not use the proceeds
for the purposes set out in the DTD.

Corporate Governance; Fair Practices Code

The Issuer shall comply with any corporate governance requirements applicable to
the Issuer (as may be prescribed by the RBI, SEBI, any stock exchange, or any
Governmental Authority) and the fair practices code prescribed by the RBI.
Furnish Information to Debenture Trustee

The Issuer shall:

1) inform and provide the Debenture Trustee with applicable documents in
respect of the following:

(A) notice of any Event of Default or potential Event of Default; and
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(d)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(B) any and all information required to be provided to the Debenture
Holders under Applicable Law and the listing agreement to be
entered into between the Issuer and the BSE;

as soon as practicable, and in any event within 1 (one) calendar day after the
Issuer obtains actual knowledge thereof, any notices, orders or directions
any court or tribunal in relation to any dispute, litigation, investigation or
other proceeding affecting the Issuer or its property or operations (including
the Hypothecated Assets), which, if adversely determined, could result in a
Material Adverse Effect;

within 45 (forty five) days of each Quarterly Date or within 7 (seven) days
of any relevant meeting of the board of directors, whichever is earlier,
furnish reports/quarterly reports to the Debenture Trustee (as may be
required in accordance with Applicable Law) containing the following
particulars:

(A) updated list of the names and addresses of the Debenture Holders
along with the number of Debentures held by each Debenture
Holder;

(B) details of the interest due, but unpaid and reasons thereof;

© the number and nature of grievances received from the Debenture
Holders and resolved and unresolved by the Issuer along with the
reasons for the same; and

(D) a statement that the Hypothecated Assets are sufficient to discharge
the claims of the Debenture Holders as and when they become due;
and

promptly inform the Debenture Trustee of any major or significant change
in composition of the board of directors of the Issuer, which may result in a
change in control of the Issuer in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; and

inform the Debenture Trustee of any amalgamation, demerger, merger or
corporate restructuring or reconstruction scheme proposed by the Issuer.

Further Assurances

The Issuer shall:

(@)

comply with:

(A) all Applicable Law (including but not limited to the Companies Act,
the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular, the environmental,
social and taxation related laws, all directions issued by the RBI to
non-banking financial companies), as applicable in respect of the
Debentures and obtain such regulatory approvals as may be required
from time to time;
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(e)

)

(2

(B) the Debenture Trustees Regulations as in force from time to time, in
so far as they are applicable to the Debentures and furnish to the
Debenture Trustee such data, information, statements and reports as
may be deemed necessary by the Debenture Trustee in order to
enable them to comply with the provisions of Regulation 15 of the
Debenture Trustees Regulations thereof in performance of their
duties in accordance therewith to the extent applicable to the
Debentures;

©) the provisions of the Companies Act in relation to the Issue;

(D) procure that the Debentures are rated and continue to be rated until
the Final Settlement Date; and

(E) if so required, the requirements prescribed under Chapter XI
(Operational framework for transactions in defaulted debt
securities post maturity date/ redemption date) of the Listed NCDs
Master Circular, and provide all details/intimations to the Debenture
Trustee, the Depositories, and BSE (as the case may be) in
accordance with the aforementioned requirements;

(i1) to the extent applicable, it will submit to the Debenture Trustee, on a
quarterly basis, a certificate from the statutory auditor of the Issuer giving
the value of receivables/book debts including compliance with the covenants
set out in the Key Information Document in such manner as may be specified
by SEBI from time to time; and

(i) it will provide all necessary assistance and cooperation to, and permit the
Debenture Trustee to conduct periodical checks, verifications, due diligence
and other inspections (at such frequency and within such timelines as may
be determined by the Debenture Trustee) in respect of the books and
accounts of the Issuer and the Hypothecated Assets.

Redressal of Grievances

The Issuer shall promptly and expeditiously attend to and redress the grievances, if
any, of the Debenture Holders. The Issuer further undertakes that it shall promptly
comply with the suggestions and directions that may be given in this regard, from
time to time, by the Debenture Trustee and shall advise the Debenture Trustee
periodically of the compliance.

Comply with Investor Education and Protection Fund Requirements

The Issuer shall comply with the provisions of the Companies Act relating to transfer
of unclaimed/ unpaid amounts of interest on Debentures and redemption of
Debentures to Investor Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF"), if applicable to it.
The Issuer hereby further agrees and undertakes that until the Final Settlement Date
it shall abide by the regulations, rules or guidelines/listing requirements if any, issued
from time to time by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, RBI, SEBI or any other
competent Governmental Authority.

Security
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The Issuer hereby further agrees, declares and covenants with the Debenture Trustee
as follows:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

the Debentures shall be secured by a first ranking exclusive and continuing
security by way of a first ranking exclusive and continuing charge on the
Hypothecated Assets in favour of the Debenture Trustee for the benefit of
the Debenture Holders on or prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment;

all the Hypothecated Assets that will be charged to the Debenture Trustee
under the Deed of Hypothecation shall always be kept distinguishable and
held as the exclusive property of the Issuer specifically appropriated to the
Transaction Security and be dealt with only under the directions of the
Debenture Trustee;

the Issuer shall not create any charge, lien or other encumbrance upon or
over the Hypothecated Assets or any part thereof except in favour of the
Debenture Trustee nor will it do or allow anything that may prejudice the
Transaction Security;

to create the security over the Hypothecated Assets as contemplated in the
Transaction Documents on or prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment by
executing the duly stamped Deed of Hypothecation;

to register and perfect the security interest created pursuant to the Deed of
Hypothecation by filing Form CHG-9 with the concerned ROC and ensuring
and procuring that the Debenture Trustee files the prescribed Form I with
CERSAI reporting the charge created to the CERSALI in relation thereto in
accordance with the timelines set out in the Deed of Hypothecation;

the Issuer shall, at the time periods set out in the Deed of Hypothecation,
provide a list of the Hypothecated Assets to the Debenture Trustee over
which charge is created and subsisting by way of hypothecation in favour of
the Debenture Trustee (for the benefit of the Debenture Holders) and
sufficient to maintain the Security Cover;

to keep the Application Money in a separate bank account in the event the
DTD and the other Transaction Documents are not executed on or before the
Deemed Date of Allotment;

the Issuer shall, within the timelines prescribed under the Deed of
Hypothecation, add fresh receivables/Client Loans to the Hypothecated
Assets, in accordance with the Deed of Hypothecation, so as to ensure that
the Security Cover is maintained or replace such Hypothecated Assets that
do not satisfy the eligibility criteria prescribed in the Transaction
Documents;

the security interest created on the Hypothecated Assets shall be a continuing
security;

the Hypothecated Assets shall fulfil the eligibility criteria set out in the Deed
of Hypothecation;

nothing contained herein shall prejudice the rights or remedies of the
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(h)

O]

)

(k)

®

Debenture Trustee and/or the Debenture Holders in respect of any present or
future security, guarantee obligation or decree for any indebtedness or
liability of the Issuer to the Debenture Trustee and/ or the Debenture
Holders;

(xii)  the Debenture Holders shall have a beneficial interest in the Hypothecated
Assets of the Issuer which have been charged to the Debenture Trustee to
the extent of the Outstanding Amounts of the Debentures under the DTD;
and

(xiii)) to forthwith upon demand by the Debenture Trustee, reimburse to the
Debenture Trustee all amounts paid by the Debenture Trustee to reasonably
protect the Hypothecated Assets and such amounts shall be deemed to be
secured by the Hypothecated Assets.

Execution of Transaction Documents/Creation of Security

In the event of any delay in the execution of any Transaction Document (including
the DTD or the Deed of Hypothecation) or the creation and perfection of security in
terms thereof, the Issuer shall, at the option of the Debenture Holders, either:

(1) if so required by the Debenture Holders, refund the Application Money
together with interest (including interest accrued) at the Interest
Rate/discharge the Secured Obligations; and/or

(i1) pay to the Debenture Holders additional interest at the rate of 2% (two
percent) per annum on the Outstanding Principal Amounts in addition to the
Interest Rate until the relevant Transaction Document is duly executed or the
security is duly created and perfected in terms thereof or the Secured
Obligations are discharged (whichever is earlier).

Internal Control

The Issuer shall maintain internal control for the purpose of:

1) preventing fraud on amounts lent by the Issuer; and
(i1) preventing money being used for money laundering or illegal purposes.
Audit and Inspection

The Issuer shall permit visits and inspection of books of records, documents and
accounts to the Debenture Trustee and representatives of Debenture Holders as and
when required by them.

Books and Records

The Issuer shall maintain its accounts and records in accordance with Applicable
Law.

Listing and Monitoring Requirements
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The Issuer shall comply with all covenants, undertakings and requirements set out in
Schedule V (Listing and Monitoring Requirements).

Negative Covenants

The Issuer shall not take any action in relation to the items set out in this Section 7.5 (Negative
Covenants) without the prior written consent of the Debenture Trustee (acting on the
instructions of Majority Debenture Holders). In relation to the consent requirement under
this Section 7.5 (Negative Covenants), it is agreed as follows:

(A)

(B)

(@

(b)

any request for consent under in relation to any matter under Section 1.6 (Negative
Covenants) shall be sent simultaneously by the Issuer to both the Debenture Trustee
and the Debenture Holders. Any request under Section 1.6 (Negative Covenants)
must be accompanied by all relevant information substantiating the request to enable
the Debenture Holders to make a reasoned decision; and

within 7 (seven) calendar days after receiving any request mentioned in sub-
paragraph (A) above (or such additional time period as may be mutually agreed
between the Issuer and the Majority Debenture Holders), the Debenture Holders shall
communicate their consent/dissent to the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer.

Change of Business/Constitutional Documents

(@)

(i)

(iii)

any change in the general nature of its business from that which is permitted
as a non-banking financial company — micro-finance institution registered
with the RBI,;

undertake any new major new businesses except in relation to financial
services or diversify its business outside the financial services sector; or

any changes or amendments to its Constitutional Documents other than:

(A)

®)

©

D)

any increase in authorised share capital of the Issuer and/or any re-
classification of the share capital of the Issuer;

any appointment of any observer on the board of directors of the
Issuer on behalf of any investor;

any appointment of any nominee director on the board of directors
of the Issuer on behalf of any investor; and

any change in the Constitutional Documents as a result of any
amendment in the shareholders' agreement entered with any
shareholder/investor.

PROVIDED THAT the change(s) or amendment(s) referred to in
(A) to (D) above shall not be prejudicial to the interests of the
Debenture Holders;

Merger, Consolidation, etc.

enter into any merger, de-merger, consolidation, re-organization, scheme of
arrangement or compromise with its creditors or shareholders or effect any scheme
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(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

of amalgamation (except with group companies) or reconstruction;
Disposal of Assets

1) sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of in any manner whatsoever any material
Assets, business or division of the Issuer (whether in a single transaction or
in a series of transactions (whether related or not) or any other transactions
which cumulatively have the same effect). PROVIDED THAT the foregoing
shall not apply to any securitization/portfolio sale of assets undertaken by
the Issuer in its ordinary course of business; or

(i1) without prejudice to sub-paragraph (i) above, sell any Assets, business, or
division of the Issuer that has the effect of exiting or re-structuring of the
business of the Issuer from that existing as of the Effective Date;

Lending and Investments
directly or indirectly lend to its promoters (as defined in the Companies Act);
Related Party Transactions

enter into any transactions with any related party (as defined in the Act) of the Issuer,
other than transactions which are at arm's length basis and which are in the ordinary
course of business of the Issuer;

Immunity

claim for itself or its Assets immunity from any suit, execution, attachment (whether
in aid of execution, before judgment or otherwise) or other legal process in any
jurisdiction; or

Dividend

if a Payment Default has occurred and is continuing, declare or pay any dividend to
its shareholders (including holders of preference shares) during any Financial Year
unless it has paid or made arrangements to pay (to the satisfaction of the Debenture
Trustee) all the dues to the Debenture Holders/Debenture Trustee up to the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be declared or paid or has made satisfactory
provisions thereof.

Events of Default

Each of the events or circumstances set out in this Section 7.6 (Events of Default) below is
an Event of Default.

(a)

(b)

Payment Defaults

The Issuer does not pay on any Due Date any amount payable pursuant to the DTD
and the Debentures at the place and in the currency in which it is expressed to be
payable, unless its failure to pay is caused by technical error and payment is made
within 1 (one) calendar day of such Due Date.

Insolvency/Inability to Pay Debts
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(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(1) The Issuer is unable or admits inability to pay its debts as they fall due,
suspends making payments on any of its debts or, by reason of actual or
anticipated financial difficulties, commences negotiations with one or more
of its creditors with a view to rescheduling any of its Financial Indebtedness.

(i1) A petition for reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding up or
composition of debts of the Issuer is filed by the Issuer (voluntary or
otherwise).

(ii1) A petition for reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding up or
composition of debts of the Issuer in respect of the Issuer (voluntary or
otherwise) have been admitted by any competent court or tribunal, and such
proceedings are not contested by the Issuer for staying or such proceedings
are not quashed and/or dismissed within 15 (fifteen) days.

@iv) Any proceedings for liquidating the Issuer have been admitted by any
competent court or tribunal.

W) A moratorium or other protection from creditors is declared or imposed on
the Issuer in respect of any Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer.

Business

The Issuer without obtaining the prior consent of the Majority Debenture Holders
ceases to carry on its business or gives notice of its intention to do so.

Misrepresentation

Any representation or warranty made by the Issuer in any Transaction Document or
in any certificate, financial statement or other document delivered to the Debenture
Trustee/Debenture Holders by the Issuer shall prove to have been incorrect, false or
misleading in any material respect when made or deemed made.

Material Adverse Effect

The occurrence of a Material Adverse Effect, in the sole determination of the
Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of the Majority Debenture Holders).

Cross Default
(1) The Issuer:

(A) defaults in any payment of any Financial Indebtedness beyond the
period of grace, if any, provided in the instrument or agreement
under which such Financial Indebtedness was created; or

(B) defaults in the observance or performance of any agreement or
condition relating to any Financial Indebtedness or contained in any
instrument or agreement evidencing, securing or relating thereto or
any other event shall occur or condition exist, the effect of which
default or other event or condition is to cause or to permit the holder
or holders of such Financial Indebtedness to cause (determined
without regard to whether any notice is required) any such Financial
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(2

(h)

(i)

Indebtedness to become due prior to its stated maturity, and such
Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer is declared to be due and
payable.

Any Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer shall be declared to be due and
payable, or required to be prepaid other than by a regularly scheduled
required prepayment, prior to the stated maturity thereof.

Liquidation, Insolvency or Dissolution of the Issuer / Appointment of Receiver,
Resolution Professional or Liquidator

Any corporate action, declaration of, legal proceedings or other procedure or step is
taken in relation to:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

the suspension of payments, a moratorium of any Financial Indebtedness,
winding-up, insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, administration or re-
organisation (by way of voluntary arrangement, scheme of arrangement or
otherwise) of the Issuer;

a composition, compromise, assignment or arrangement with any creditor of
the Issuer;

the appointment of a liquidator, provisional liquidator, supervisor, receiver,
resolution professional, administrative receiver, administrator, compulsory
manager, trustee, or other similar officer in respect of the Issuer or any of
the Issuer's assets or any part of the undertaking of the Issuer;

the Issuer, in respect of any reference or enquiry or proceedings commenced,
before the National Companies Law Tribunal or under any mechanism or
prescription of the RBI in respect of resolution/restructuring of stressed
assets (including without limitation, under the Stressed Assets Framework);

the commencement of an insolvency resolution process under the (Indian)
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read together with the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy (Insolvency and Liquidation Proceedings of Financial
Service Providers and Application to Adjudicating Authority) Rules, 2019,
and any other rules and regulations made thereunder from time to time, or
under any other Applicable Law, in respect of the Issuer;

enforcement of any security over any Assets of the Issuer or any analogous
procedure or step is taken in any jurisdiction; or

any other event occurs or proceeding instituted under any Applicable Law
that would have an effect analogous to any of the events listed in (i) to (vi)
above.

Creditors' Process and Expropriation

O]

Any expropriation, attachment, garnishee, sequestration, distress or
execution affects any Assets of the Issuer equivalent to or exceeding 10%
(ten percent) of the Total Assets of the Issuer and is not discharged within
30 (thirty) Business Days or as otherwise provided in any order of any
competent court or tribunal relating to the aforementioned actions.
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(@)

Q)

(k)

M

(m)

()

(i1) Any Governmental Authority, or any person by or under the authority of any
Governmental Authority:

(A) condemns, seizes, nationalises, expropriates or compulsorily
acquires all or a material part of the undertaking, assets, rights or
revenues of the Issuer;

(B) has assumed custody or control of all or substantial part of the
business or operations of the Issuer (including operations, properties
and other assets); or

©) has taken any action for the dissolution of the Issuer, or any action
that would prevent the Issuer, their members, or their officers from
carrying on their business or operations or a substantial part thereof.

Judgment Defaults

One or more judgments or decrees entered against the Issuer involving a liability (not
paid or not covered by a reputable and solvent insurance company), individually or
in the aggregate, exceeding 10% (ten percent) of the Total Assets of the Issuer
provided such judgments or decrees are either final and non-appealable or have not
been vacated, discharged or stayed pending appeal for any period of 30 (thirty)
calendar days.

Transaction Documents

The DTD or any other Transaction Document (in whole or in part), is terminated or
ceases to be effective or ceases to be in full force or no longer constitutes valid,
binding and enforceable obligations of the Issuer.

Unlawfulness

It is or becomes unlawful for the Issuer to perform any of its obligations under the
Transaction Documents and/or any obligation or obligations of the Issuer under any
Transaction Document are not or cease to be valid, binding or enforceable.

Repudiation

The Issuer repudiates any of the Transaction Documents, or evidences an intention
to repudiate any of the Transaction Documents.

Security in Jeopardy
In the opinion of the Debenture Trustee any Hypothecated Asset(s) are in jeopardy.
Security

1) The value of the Hypothecated Assets is insufficient to maintain the Security
Cover or the Issuer fails to maintain the Security Cover (including by way
of providing additional/alternate security to the satisfaction of the Debenture
Trustee) within the timelines prescribed in the relevant Transaction
Documents, and such default/non-compliance is not rectified/remedies
within 30 (thirty) days of occurrence.
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(0)

(p)

(@

(i) The Issuer creates or attempts to create any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien
or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other
agreement or arrangement having similar effect, over the Hypothecated
Assets, without the prior consent of the Debenture Trustee.

Fraud and Embezzlement

Any material act of fraud, embezzlement, misstatement, misappropriation or
siphoning off of the funds of the Issuer or by the Promoters of the Issuer or revenues
of the Issuer or any other act having a similar effect being committed by the
management or an officer of the Issuer.

Erosion of Net Worth

The Net Worth of the Issuer erodes by 50% (fifty percent) or more, from that existing
as of the Effective Date.

Breach of other Covenants

Any breach of any covenant or undertaking of the Issuer in the Transaction
Documents, which, to the extent capable of remedy in the sole opinion of the
Debenture Trustee (acting on the Instructions of the Debenture Holders), is not
remedied within such time period as may be prescribed by the Debenture Trustee
(acting on the instructions of the Debenture Holders).

Consequences and Remedies of an Event of Default

If one or more Events of Default occur(s), the Debenture Trustee may, on the instructions of
the Majority Debenture Holders in accordance with the DTD, by a notice in writing to the
Issuer initiate the following course of action:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

require the Issuer to mandatorily redeem the Debentures and repay the principal
amount on the Debentures, along with accrued but unpaid interest and other costs,
charges and expenses incurred under or in connection with the DTD and the other
Transaction Documents;

accelerate the redemption of the Debentures and declare all or any of the Debentures
to be due and payable immediately or on such date as may be prescribed by the
Debenture Trustee, whereupon it shall become so due and payable;

enforce the security interest created under the Transaction Documents (including in
respect of the Transaction Security) in accordance with the terms of the Transaction
Documents;

take any actions in respect of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular in
accordance with the provisions of the DTD;

take all such other action as is expressly permitted under the DTD or in the other
Transaction Documents or permitted under Applicable Law (including pursuant to
the (Indian) Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
(Insolvency and Liquidation Proceedings of Financial Service Providers and
Application to Adjudicating Authority) Rules, 2019, and any other rules and
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regulations made thereunder from time to time); and/or

(f) exercise any other right that the Debenture Trustee and/or the Debenture Holders
may have under Applicable Law for the purposes of protecting the interests of the
Debenture Holders.

Additional Consequences and Remedies of an Event of Default

Without prejudice to Section 7.6.1 above, if one or more events specified in Section 7.6
(Events of Default) occur(s), the Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of the
Debenture Holders) has the option (but not the obligation) to require the obligors in relation
to the Client Loans comprising the Hypothecated Assets to directly deposit all interest and
principal instalments and other amounts in respect of the relevant Client Loans in the account
specified by the Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of the Debenture Holders). All
such payments will be used to discharge the amounts outstanding and due from the Issuer in
respect of the Debentures.

Notice on the Occurrence of an Event of Default

(a) If any Event of Default or any event which, after the notice, or lapse of time, or both,
would constitute an Event of Default, has occurred, the Issuer shall, forthwith give
notice thereof to the Debenture Holders and the Debenture Trustee in writing
specifying the nature of such event or Event of Default.

(b) In addition to the foregoing, in accordance with the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master
Circular, the Debenture Trustee shall send a notice to the Debenture Holders within
3 (three) days of the occurrence of an Event of Default, in accordance with the mode
of delivery of notice mentioned therein, convening a meeting within 30 (thirty) days
of the occurrence of an Event of Default. PROVIDED THAT if the Event of Default
is cured or rectified within the intervening period between the date of the
aforementioned notice from the Debenture Trustee to the date the aforementioned
meeting is convened, no such meeting of the Debenture Holders shall be required.
The Debenture Trustee shall maintain the details of the providing and receipt of such
notice in accordance with the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular.

Additional obligations of the Debenture Trustee

In respect of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular, the entering into, and the
performance of any obligations under any inter-creditor agreement (pursuant to the Stressed
Assets Framework) or any resolution plan shall be subject to the terms of the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Master Circular (including without limitation, the resolution plan being finalised
within the time period prescribed in the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular, and
exiting of the inter-creditor agreement on the occurrence of the matters prescribed under the
SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular

Listing and Monitoring Requirements
Monitoring
The Issuer will provide all such assistance to the Debenture Trustee as may be required by it,

to carry out the necessary continuous and periodic due diligence and monitor the security
cover in the manner as may be specified by SEBI from time to time. In this regard, in
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accordance with the Chapter VI (Periodical/ Continuous Monitoring by Debenture Trustee)
of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular, the Issuer undertakes and agrees to provide
all relevant documents/information, as applicable, to enable the Debenture Trustee to submit
the following reports/certifications to BSE in accordance with Chapter VI (Periodical/
Continuous Monitoring by Debenture Trustee) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master
Circular:

(@

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

a security cover certificate on a quarterly basis, within (i) 75 (seventy five) days from
each Quarterly Date (other than March 31 of the relevant Financial Year), and (ii) 90
(ninety) days from March 31 of the relevant Financial Year or such other timelines
as may be prescribed under Applicable Law, in the format prescribed in the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Master Circular;

(to the extent applicable) a statement of the value of the pledged securities on a
quarterly basis, within 75 (seventy five) days from each Quarterly Date (other than
March 31 of the relevant Financial Year) and within 90 (ninety) days from March 31
of the relevant Financial Year or such other timelines as may be prescribed under
Applicable Law;

(to the extent applicable) a statement of the value of the debt service reserve account
or any other form of security offered on a quarterly basis, within 75 (seventy five)
days from each Quarterly Date (other than March 31 of the relevant Financial Year)
and within 90 (ninety) days from March 31 of the relevant Financial Year or such
other timelines as may be prescribed under Applicable Law;

(to the extent applicable) a net worth certificate of the guarantor who has provided a
personal guarantee in respect of the Debentures on a half yearly basis, within 75
(seventy five) days from the end of each financial half-year or such other timelines
as may be prescribed under Applicable Law;

(to the extent applicable) the financials/value of guarantor prepared on the basis of
audited financial statement etc. of the guarantor who has provided a corporate
guarantee in respect of the Debentures on an annual basis, within 75 (seventy five)
days from the end of each Financial Year or within such other timelines as may be
prescribed under Applicable Law; and

(to the extent applicable) the valuation report and title search report for the
immovable/movable assets, as applicable, once in 3 (three) years, within 75 (seventy
five) days from the end of the Financial Year or such other timelines as may be
prescribed under Applicable Law.

Recovery Expenses Fund

(a)

(b)

The Issuer hereby undertakes and confirms that it shall, within the time period
prescribed under Chapter IV (Recovery Expenses Fund) of the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Master Circular, establish, maintain and utilize the Recovery Expense Fund
in such manner/mode as is prescribed under Chapter IV (Recovery Expenses Fund)
of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular, to enable the Debenture Trustee to
take prompt action in relation to the enforcement/legal proceedings under the
Transaction Documents.

The Issuer shall deposit cash or cash equivalents including bank guarantees towards
the contribution to Recovery Expense Fund with the designated stock exchange and
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submit relevant documents evidencing the same to the Debenture Trustee from time
to time.

(©) The Issuer shall ensure that any bank guarantees provided in respect of the Recovery
Expense Fund remain valid for a period of 6 (six) months following the maturity date
of the Debentures. The Issuer shall keep the bank guarantees in force and renew the
bank guarantees at least 7 (seven) working days before its expiry, failing which the
designated stock exchange may invoke such bank guarantee.

(d) On the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Debenture Trustee shall obtain the
consent of Debenture Holders for enforcement/legal proceedings and shall inform
the designated stock exchange of such occurrence and the obtaining of any consent
in respect thereof (if any). The amount lying in the Recovery Expense Fund may be
released to the Debenture Trustee within such time period and such manner as may
be prescribed under Chapter IV (Recovery Expenses Fund) of the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Master Circular. The Debenture Trustee shall keep a proper account of all
expenses incurred out of the funds received from Recovery Expense Fund towards
enforcement/legal proceedings under the Transaction Documents.

(e) The amounts in the Recovery Expense Fund shall be refunded to the Issuer on
repayment/redemption of the Debentures, following which a "no objection
certificate” shall be issued by the Debenture Trustee(s) to the designated stock
exchange. The Debenture Trustee shall ensure that there is no default on any other
listed debt securities of the Issuer before issuing such "no objection certificate".

Requirements under the LODR Regulations

The Issuer agrees, declares and covenants with the Debenture Trustee that it will comply with
all relevant requirements prescribed under the LODR Regulations applicable to it (including
without limitation, the provisions of Chapter II (Principles governing disclosures and
obligations of listed entity), Chapter Il (Common obligations of listed entities), Chapter [V
(Obligations of a listed entity which has listed its specified securities and non-convertible
debt securities), and Chapter V (Obligations of listed entity which has listed its non-
convertible securities) of the LODR Regulations (to the extent applicable)).

Due Diligence
(a) The Issuer acknowledges, understands, and confirms that:

(1) the Debenture Trustee shall carry out due diligence on continuous basis to
ensure compliance by the Issuer, with the provisions of the Companies Act,
the LODR Regulations, the Debt Listing Regulations, the SEBI Listed
Debentures Circulars, the Debenture Trustees Regulations, the listing
agreement of the stock exchange(s) where the Debentures are listed, the
Transaction Documents, and any other regulations issued by SEBI
pertaining to the Issue;

(i) for the purposes of carrying out the due diligence as required in terms of the
SEBI Listed Debentures Circulars, the Debenture Trustee, either through
itself or its agents, advisors, consultants, shall have the power to examine
the books of account of the Issuer and to have the Issuer's assets inspected
by its officers and/or external auditors, valuers, consultants, lawyers,
technical experts, management consultants appointed by the Debenture
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(b)

(iii)

Trustee; and

the Debenture Trustee may at any time through its authorized representatives
and agents, inspect books of account, records, registers of Issuer and the trust
property (as set out in the DTD) to the extent necessary for discharging its
obligations. The Issuer shall provide full and unimpeded access to the
records, registers and books of accounts and facilitate in the inspection and
due diligence process. Any fees, costs expenses incurred in conducting such
inspection/due diligence process shall be fully borne by the Issuer. In the
event, any fees, costs expenses are borne by the Debenture Trustee, the
above shall be reimbursed forthwith by the Issuer upon request.

The Issuer shall submit documents/ information as the Debenture Trustee may
require to conduct continuous and periodical due diligence and monitoring of the
Transaction Security or the assets on which security interest/charge is created, which
shall, inter alia, include:

O]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

periodical status/performance reports from the Issuer within 7 (seven) days
of the relevant board meeting of the Issuer or within 45 (forty five) days of
the respective quarter, whichever is earlier;

details with respect to defaults, if any, with regard to payment of interest or
redemption of Debentures;

details with respect to the implementation of the conditions regarding
creation of the Transaction Security for the Debentures, debenture
redemption reserve and Recovery Expense Fund,;

details with respect to the assets of the Issuer and of the guarantors (to the
extent applicable) to ensure that they are sufficient to discharge the interest
and principal amount at all times and that such assets are free from any other
encumbrances except those which are specifically agreed to by the
Debenture Holders;

reports on the utilization of funds raised by the issue of Debentures;
details with respect to conversion or redemption of the Debentures;

(to the extent applicable) details with respect to dispatch of the debenture
certificates and interest warrants, credit of the debentures in the demat
account of the Debenture Holders and payment of amounts upon redemption
of Debentures to the Debenture Holders due to them within the stipulated
time period in accordance with the Applicable Law;

(to the extent applicable) reports from the lead bank regarding the progress
of the project relating to the proceeds of the Issue;

details regarding monitoring of utilisation of funds raised in the issue of the
Debentures;

(to the extent applicable) certificate from the statutory auditors of the Issuer
(1) in respect of utilisation of funds during the implementation period of the
project relating to the proceeds of the Issue, and (ii) in the case of Debentures
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(©

issued for financing working capital, at the end of each accounting year; and

(xi)

such other documents or information as may be required by the Debenture

Trustee in accordance with the Applicable Law.

Without prejudice to any other provision of this Agreement and the other Transaction

Documents, the Issuer shall:

(1) provide such documents/information and assistance to the Debenture
Trustee as may be required by the Debenture Trustee to carry out the
necessary due diligence and monitor the security cover on a quarterly basis
in the manner as may be specified by SEBI from time to time;

(i)

to the extent applicable, submit a certificate from the statutory auditor on a

half-yearly basis, regarding the maintenance of security cover in accordance
with the terms of the Debt Disclosure Documents and the other Transaction
Documents including compliance with the covenants of the Debt Disclosure
Documents and the other Transaction Documents in the manner as may be
specified by SEBI from time to time;

(iii)

submit the following reports/certification (to the extent applicable) to the

Debenture Trustee within the timelines mentioned below:

REPORTS/CERTIFICATES

TIMELINES FOR
SUBMISSION
REQUIREMENTS
TO THE
DEBENTURE
TRUSTEE

TIMELINE FOR
SUBMISSION OF
REPORTS/CERTIFICATIONS
BY DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Security cover certificate

Quarterly basis
within such
timelines as may be
agreed between the
Issuer and  the
Debenture Trustee.

(To the extent applicable) A
statement of value of pledged
securities

Quarterly basis
within such
timelines as may be
agreed between the
Issuer and  the
Debenture Trustee.

(To the extent applicable) A
statement of value for Debt
Service Reserve Account or
any other form of security
offered

Quarterly basis
within such
timelines as may be
agreed between the
Issuer and  the
Debenture Trustee.

Quarterly basis within (A) 75
(seventy five) days from each
Quarterly Date (other than March
31 of the relevant Financial Year)
and (B) 90 (ninety) days from
March 31 of the relevant Financial

Year or such other timelines as
may be  prescribed under
Applicable Law, and, where
applicable, in the format

prescribed in the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Master Circular.

(To the extent applicable) Net
worth certificate of guarantor
(secured by way of personal
guarantee)

Half yearly basis
within 30 (thirty)
days from the end
of each half-year or
within such

Half yearly basis within 75
(seventy five) days from the end of
each financial half-year or such
other timelines as may be
prescribed under Applicable Law.
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REPORTS/CERTIFICATES | TIMELINES FOR TIMELINE FOR
SUBMISSION SUBMISSION OF
REQUIREMENTS | REPORTS/CERTIFICATIONS
TO THE BY DEBENTURE TRUSTEE
DEBENTURE
TRUSTEE
timelines as may be
agreed between the
Issuer and  the
Debenture Trustee.
(To the extent applicable) | Annual basis | Annual basis within 75 (seventy

Financials/value of guarantor
prepared on basis of audited
financial statement etc. of the
guarantor (secured by way of
corporate guarantee)

within 45 (forty
five) days from the
end of each
Financial Year or
within such
timelines as may be
agreed between the
Issuer and the
Debenture Trustee.

five) days from the end of each
Financial Year or within such
timelines as prescribed under
Applicable Law.

(To the extent applicable)
Valuation report and title
search  report  for  the

immovable/movable assets, as
applicable

Within such
timelines as
prescribed  under

Applicable Law or
within such
timelines as may be
agreed between the
Issuer and  the
Debenture Trustee.

Once in 3 (three) years, within 75
(seventy five) days from the end of
the Financial Year or such other
timelines as may be prescribed
under Applicable Law.

comply with all requirements applicable to it under the SEBI Debenture

Trustees Master Circular, and provide all documents/information as may be
required in accordance with the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular.

The Issuer shall ensure due compliance and adherence to the SEBI Listed Debentures

To the extent applicable and required in terms of Chapter X (Breach of Covenants,
Default and Remedies) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular, the
Debenture Trustee shall execute an "inter creditor agreement" in the manner
prescribed under Chapter X (Breach of Covenants, Default and Remedies) of the

(iv)
Others
(a)
Circulars in letter and spirit.
(b)
SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular.
(©)

To the extent required/applicable, the Issuer shall provide intimation to the
Debenture Trustee regarding (i) any default in timely payment of interest or
redemption or both in respect of the non-convertible debt securities issued by the
Issuer, and (ii) all covenants of the issue (including side letters, event of default
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(d)

(e)

provisions/clauses etc.).

The Issuer shall promptly disclose and furnish to the Debenture Trustee, all
documents/ information about or in relation to the Issuer or the Debentures, as
requested by the Debenture Trustee to fulfil its obligations hereunder or to comply
with any Applicable Law, including in relation to filing of its reports/ certification to
stock exchange within the prescribed timelines.

The Issuer and the Debenture Trustee hereby agree and covenant to comply with the
requirements prescribed under Chapter 11 (Security and Covenant Monitoring
System) of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master Circular in respect of the Debentures
and the transactions contemplated in the Transaction Documents.
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SECTION 8: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

Please refer the application procedure set out in Section 8 of the General Information Document.
Certain details in relation to the EBP process are set out below.

8.1 Issue Procedure

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder may apply for the Debentures by completing the
Application Form in the prescribed format in block letters in English as per the instructions contained
therein. The minimum number of Debentures that can be applied for and the multiples thereof shall
be set out in the Application Form. No application can be made for a fraction of a Debenture.
Application Forms should be duly completed in all respects and applications not completed in the
said manner are liable to be rejected. The name of the Applicant's bank, type of account and account
number must be duly completed by the Applicant. This is required for the Applicant's own safety and
these details will be printed on the refund orders and /or redemptions warrants.

The Applicant should transfer payments required to be made in any relation by EFT/RTGS, to the
bank account as per the details mentioned in the Application Form.

The subscription to the Debentures shall be made by the Eligible Investors through the electronic
book mechanism as prescribed by SEBI under the EBP Requirements by placing bids on the EBP
Platform during the Issue period. The Issuer will make the bidding announcement on the EBP
Platform at least 1 (one) Business Day before initiating the bidding process in accordance with the
EBP Requirements. In case the Eligible Investors are not registered on the EBP Platform, they will
have to register themselves as an "investor" on the EBP Platform (as a one-time exercise) and also
complete the mandatory "know your customer” verification process. The Eligible Investors should
also refer to the operational guidelines of the relevant EBP in this respect. The disclosures required
pursuant to the EBP Requirements are set out herein below:

Details of size of issue | 5,000 (five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
including green shoe option, | redeemable,  transferable, non-convertible debentures
if any and a range within | denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value of INR
which green shoe may be | 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face
retained (if applicable) value of INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore) including
a green shoe option of 2,500 (two thousand and five hundred)
senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable,
non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an
aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty
Five Crore).

Green Shoe Option: 2,500 (two thousand and five hundred)
senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable,
non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an
aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty
Five Crore).

Interest Rate Parameter 11.00% (eleven decimal zero zero percent) per annum payable
monthly (fixed).
Bid opening and closing date | Bid opening date: October 12, 2023
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Bid closing date: October 12, 2023

Minimum Bid Lot

100 (One Hundred) Debenture(s) (being INR 1,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees One Crore)), and in the multiples of 1 (one) Debenture
(being INR 100,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh)) thereafter

Manner of bidding in the
Issue

Closed bidding

Manner of allotment in the
Issue

Uniform Yield Allotment

Manner of settlement in the
Issue

Pay-in of funds through ICCL.

The pay-in of the Application Money for the Debentures shall be
made by way of transfer of funds from the bank account(s) of the
Eligible Investors (whose bids have been accepted) as registered
with the Electronic Book Provider into the account of the ICCL,
as specified in this regard below.

Settlement Cycle T+1, where "T" refers to the date of bidding.
Settlement of the Issue will be on October 13, 2023.
Pay-in date October 13, 2023 (i.e., T+1, where "T" refers to the date of

bidding)

Anchor Portion Details (if
any)

N. A

Process flow of settlement:

The Eligible Investors whose bids have been accepted by the Issuer and to whom a signed copy of
this Key Information Document have been issued by the Issuer and who have submitted/shall submit
the Application Form ("Successful Bidders"), shall make the payments in respect of the Application
Money in respect of the Debentures towards the allocation made to them, into the bank account of
the ICCL, the details of which are as set out below:

Name of Bank HDFC BANK
IFSC Code HDFC0000060
Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary

INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED

Name of Bank ICICI Bank Ltd.
IFSC Code ICIC0000106
Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary

INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD

Name of Bank YES BANK
IFSC Code YESBOCMSNOC
Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary

INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD

The pay-in of the Application Money by the Successful Bidders will be made only from the bank
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account(s), which have been provided / updated by them in the EBP system. Any amount received
from third party accounts or from accounts not specified in the EBP system will be refunded and no
allotment will be made against such payments. Upon the transfer of funds into the aforesaid account
of ICCL and the Issuer confirming its decision to proceed with the allotment of the Debentures in
favour of the Successful Bidders to the ICCL, the R&T Agent and the EBP and initiating the requisite
corporate action for allotment of Debentures and credit of the demat letter of allotment into the
relevant demat account of the Successful Bidders through the R&T Agent, the R&T Agent shall
provide corporate action file along with all requisite documents to the relevant Depositories by 12:00
hours and also intimate the EBP of the aforesaid actions. Upon the Depositories confirming the
allotment of the Debentures and the credit of the Debentures into the demat account of the Successful
Bidders to EBP, the subscription monies in respect of the Debentures from the aforesaid account of
ICCL shall be released into the Issuer's bank account, the details of which are as set out below:

Beneficiary Name Satin Creditcare Network Limited

Bank Account No. 10088652473

SWIFT Code N.A.

IFSC Code IDFB0020101

Bank Name IDFC-10088652473-Share Application Money A/C

Branch Address Metro Station, No 25, Lower Ground Floor Birla Tower, Barakhamba Rd,
opposite Barakhamba, New Delhi, Delhi 110001

It must be noted that all funds pay-in obligations need to be fulfilled in totality. Partial fund receipt
against any given obligation will be treated as a default and debarment penalties will be applicable
as specified by the EBP Requirements and other Applicable Law.

8.2 Eligible Investors should refer to the Operational Guidelines

The details of the Issue shall be entered on the EBP Platform by the Issuer in accordance with the
EBP Requirements and the operational guidelines of the relevant EBP. The Issue will be open for
bidding for the duration of the bidding window that would be communicated through the Issuer's
bidding announcement on the EBP Platform.

ELIGIBLE INVESTORS SHOULD REFER TO THE OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES.

THE DETAILS OF THE ISSUE SHALL BE ENTERED ON THE EBP PLATFORM BY THE
ISSUER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EBP REQUIREMENTS AND THE OPERATIONAL
GUIDELINES OF THE RELEVANT EBP. THE ISSUE WILL BE OPEN FOR BIDDING FOR
THE DURATION OF THE BIDDING WINDOW THAT WOULD BE COMMUNICATED
THROUGH THE ISSUER'S BIDDING ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE EBP PLATFORM.

8.3 Application Procedure

The Issue will be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period
covered by the Issue Schedule, and the procedure will be subject to the EBP Requirements. Where
an Eligible Investor (as defined below) is participating/bidding on the EBP Platform through an
arranger or a custodian, such Eligible Investor must follow, and must ensure that the arranger or a
custodian representing it, follows, the procedure and the bidding threshold requirements prescribed
under the EBP Requirements.

Potential Investors may also be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in
this Key Information Document during the period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue
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Closing Date (both dates inclusive). The Issuer reserves the right to change the issue schedule
including the Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any reasons.

8.4 Fictitious Applications

All fictitious applications will be rejected. Each Eligible Investor shall provide a confirmation to the
EBP that it is not using any software, algorithm, "Bots" or other automation tools, which would give
unfair access for placing bids on the EBP Platform.

8.5 Basis of Allotment

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, the Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any
application, in part or in full, without assigning any reason. The allotment and settlement amount for
the bidders shall be determined in accordance with the EBP Requirements and the operational
guidelines issued by the relevant EBP. The bids for the purposes allotment and settlement shall be
arranged on a "price time priority" basis in accordance with the EBP Requirements. If two or more
bids made by Eligible Investors have the same coupon/ price/spread and time, then allotment shall be
done on a "pro rata" basis. The investors will be required to remit the funds in the account of the
ICCL as well as submit the duly completed Application Form along with other necessary documents
to the Issuer by the Deemed Date of Allotment.

If so required by the Issuer, within 1 (one) Business Day of completion of the allotment, to enable
the Issuer to comply with the requirements applicable to it under the EBP Requirements, successful
Applicants shall provide the following details (in the form specified below) to the Issuer:

Details of Investors to whom allotment has been made
Name QIB/ Non-QIB | Category i.e. Scheduled Commercial | Amount invested (in
Banks, MF, Insurance Company, | Rs. Crore)

Pension Fund, Provident Fund, FPI,
PF1, Corporate, Others

8.6 Payment Instructions

The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire amount of INR 1,00,000 (Indian
Rupees One Lakh) per Debenture is payable along with the making of an application. Applicants can
remit the application amount on the Pay-in Date in the account of ICCL mentioned under Section 8.9
above.

8.7 Eligible Investors

As prescribed in the EBP Requirements, "Qualified Institutional Buyers" or "QIBs" (as defined in the
EBP Requirements) and non-QIBs authorized by an issuer to participate on an issuer on the EBP
Platform are eligible participants (i.e., bidders) on an EBP Platform to participate in a particular issue
on the EBP Platform. In furtherance of the above, to the extent applicable, the following categories
of Investors ("Eligible Investors"), when specifically approached, and identified upfront by the
Issuer, shall be eligible to apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling their
respective investment norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to them and by completing
the participation/nodding requirements prescribed for the EBP Platform and/or by submitting all the
relevant documents along with the Application Form:

(a) Mutual Funds
119



KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT Private & Confidential
Date: August 16, 2023 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

(b) NBFCs

(¢) Provident Funds and Pension Funds

(d) Corporates

(e) Banks

(f) Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs)

(g) Qualified Foreign Investors (QFIs)

(h) Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)

(i) Insurance Companies

(G)  Any other person (not being an individual or a group of individuals) eligible to invest
in the Debentures.

All potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to
them for investing in this issue of Debentures.

By participating/bidding in the EBP Platform, each Eligible Investor represents and confirms that it
has completed all enrolment and "know-your-customer" verification and other requirements
prescribed under the EBP Requirements in the manner prescribed in the EBP Requirements. Where
an Eligible Investor (as defined below) is participating/bidding on the EBP Platform through an
arranger or a custodian, such Eligible Investor must follow, and must ensure that the arranger or a
custodian representing it, follows, the procedure and the bidding threshold requirements prescribed
under the EBP Requirements.

Investors, who are registered on the EBP Platform and are eligible to make bids for the Debentures
of the Issuer and to whom allocation is to be made by Issuer pursuant to selection under the electronic
book mechanism for issuance of securities on private placement basis in terms of the EBP
Requirements and the Electronic Book Providers shall be considered as "identified persons" for the
purposes of Section 42(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, to whom the Issuer shall make private
placement of the Debentures and only such "identified persons" shall receive a direct communication
from the Issuer with offer to subscribe to the Debentures and only such "identified persons" shall be
entitled to subscribe to the Debentures.

Additionally, those arrangers/brokers/intermediaries etc. (as per the defined limits under the EBP
Requirements) specifically mapped by the Issuer on the EBP Platform are also eligible to
bid/apply/invest for this Issue.

All Eligible Investors are required to check and comply with Applicable Law(s) including the relevant
rules / regulations / guidelines applicable to them for investing in this Issue of Debentures. The Issuer,
is not in any way, directly or indirectly, responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any
investor, nor is the Issuer required to check or confirm the above.

Hosting of this Key Information Document on the website of the BSE/EBP should not be construed
as an offer or an invitation to offer to subscribe to the Debentures and this Key Information Document
has been hosted only as this is stipulated under the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations read with the EBP
Requirements. Eligible Investors should check their eligibility before making any investment.

All Eligible Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to
them for investing in this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential investors in the Issue may be subject to statutory and/or regulatory

requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian securities by such
categories of persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with all regulatory
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requirements applicable to them, including exchange controls and other requirements. Applicants
ought to seek independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.

8.8 Post-Allocation Disclosures by the EBP
Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the EBP shall disclose the relevant details (such as Issue Size,
coupon rate, ISIN, number of successful bidders, category of the successful bidder(s), etc.), in

accordance with the EBP Requirements and the operational guidelines of the relevant EBP. The EBP
shall upload such data, as provided by the Issuer, on its website to make it available to the public.
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SECTION 9: UNDERTAKINGS

Please refer Section 9 of the General Information Document for the undertakings by the issuer,
undertakings on security, and attestation by the directors.
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SECTION 10: SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES REQUIRED FROM NBFCs

Please refer to Section 10 of the General Information Document for the financial statements in
respect of the issuance of Debentures.
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SECTION 11: DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTORS

A. The Issuer has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
hereunder.

B. The compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder do not imply that
payment of dividend or interest or repayment of the Debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by
the Central Government.

C. The monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated in
this Key Information Document.

D. The Issuer has complied with, and nothing in the Key Information Document is contrary to, the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, and the rules and regulations made thereunder.

Investment in non-convertible securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any
funds in such securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments. Investors
are advised to take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully before investing in this
offering. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their examination of the issue
including the risks involved in it. Specific attention of investors is invited to statement of risk factors
contained under Section 3 of this Key Information Document. These risks are not, and are not
intended to be, a complete list of all risks and considerations relevant to the non-convertible securities
or investor’s decision to purchase such securities.

I am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number 9 dated July 10,
2023 to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been
complied with. Whatever is stated in this Key Information Document and in the attachments thereto
is true, correct and complete and no information material to the subject matter of this Key Information
Document has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the
promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association. It is further
declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and legibly
attached to this Key Information Document.

The Issuer declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations/guideline issued by SEBI and
other applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Key Information
Document is contrary to the provisions of the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other
applicable laws, as the case may be. The information contained in this Key Information Document is
as applicable to privately placed debt securities and subject to the information available with the
Issuer. The extent of disclosures made in this Key Information Document is consistent with
disclosures permitted by regulatory authorities to the issue of securities made by the companies in
the past.

For Satin Creditcare Network Limited

Name: Harvinder Pal Singh
Title: Chairman cum Managing Director
Date: October 10, 2023
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ANNEXURE I: RATING LETTER, RATING RATIONALE AND DETAILED PRESS
RELEASE FROM THE RATING AGENCY

Enclosed separately.
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ANNEXURE II: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE AND
REGISTRAR

Debenture Trustee:
Enclosed separately.
Registrar:

Enclosed separately.
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ANNEXURE III: APPLICATION FORM

SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LIMITED
A public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
Date of Incorporation: October 16, 1990
Registered Office: S5th Floor, Kundan Bhawan, Azadpur Commercial Complex, Azadpur, New
Delhi-110033, India
Telephone No.: 0124-4715400
Website: www.satincreditcare.com

| DEBENTURE SERIES APPLICATION FORMSERIALNO. | | | | | | | | | |

5,000 (five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable, non-
convertible debentures denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value of INR 1,00,000
(Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Fifty Crore) including a green shoe option ("Green Shoe Option') of 2,500 (two
thousand and five hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable,
non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian
Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees
Twenty Five Crore) (""Debentures') on a private placement basis (the “Issue”).

DEBENTURES APPLIED FOR:

Number of Debentures: In words: -only
Amount Rs. /-In words Rupees : Only

DETAILS OF PAYMENT:
Cheque / Demand Draft / RTGS
No. Drawn on

Funds transferred to the account specified in "Instructions" below on

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) Rs. /- (In words) Only

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS

ADDRESS

STREET

CITY
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PIN PHONE FAX

APPLICANT’S PAN/GIR NO. IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT

WE ARE () COMPANY ( ) OTHERS ( ) (Please specify)

We have read and understood the terms and conditions of the issue of Debentures including the risk

factors described in the general information document dated July 24, 2023 ("GID") and the key
information document dated October 10, 2023 ("KID"), each issued by the Issuer (collectively, the
"Debt Disclosure Documents") and have considered these in making our decision to apply. We bind
ourselves to the terms and conditions of the Debt Disclosure Documents and wish to apply for
allotment of the Debentures. We request you to please place our name(s) on the register of holders.

Name of the Authorised Designation Signature
Signatory(ies)

Applicant’s Signature:

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised form.
Details of my/our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL ( )CDSL ()

DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME

DP-ID

BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER

NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account:

(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Draft /
Pay Order / Direct Credit / ECS /
NEFT/RTGS/other permitted mechanisms)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

We understand and confirm that the information provided in the Key Information Document is
provided by the Issuer. We confirm that we have for the purpose of investing in these Debentures
carried out our own due diligence and made our own decisions with respect to investment in these
Debentures and have not relied on any representations made by anyone other than the Issuer, if any.
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We understand that: i) in case of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned
above would get credited to the extent of allotted Debentures, ii) we must ensure that the sequence
of names as mentioned in the Application Form matches the sequence of name held with our
Depository Participant, iii) if the names of the Applicant in this application are not identical and also
not in the same order as the Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository
Participant or if the Debentures cannot be credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason
whatsoever, the Company shall be entitled at its sole discretion to reject the application or issue the
Debentures in physical form.

Applicant’s Signature

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note : Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

(TEAR HERE)
ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP

| (To be filled in by Applicant) SERIAL NO. L L 1 ] ] ]

Received from

Address
Cheque/Draft/UTR # Drawn on for
Rs. on account of application of Debenture
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INSTRUCTIONS
1. Application form must be completed in full, IN ENGLISH.
2. Signatures must be made in English or in any of the Indian languages. Thumb Impressions

must be attested by an authorized official of the Bank or by a Magistrate/Notary Public under
his/her official seal.

3. Application form, duly completed in all respects, must be submitted with the respective
Collecting Bankers. The payment is required to be made to the following account of ICCL
by way of an electronic transfer, in accordance with the terms of the EBP Requirements:

Name of Bank HDFC BANK

IFSC Code HDFC0000060

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN  CLEARING  CORPORATION
LIMITED

Name of Bank ICICI Bank Ltd.

IFSC Code ICIC0000106

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD

Name of Bank YES BANK

IFSC Code YESBOCMSNOC

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD

The Issuer undertakes that the application money deposited in the above-mentioned bank
account shall not be utilized for any purpose other than

a) for adjustment against allotment of securities; or

b) for the repayment of monies where the Issuer is unable to allot securities.

4. Outstation Cheques, Cash, Money Orders, Postal Orders and Stock Invest shall not be
accepted.
5. Receipt of applicants will be acknowledged by the Issuer in the "Acknowledgement Slip"

appearing below the application form. No separate receipt will be issued.

6. All applicants should mention their Permanent Account No. or their GIR No. allotted under
Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Tax Circle/Ward/District. In case where neither the
PAN nor the GIR No. has been allotted, the fact of non-allotment should be mentioned in the
application form in the space provided. Income Tax as applicable will be deducted at source
at the time of payment of interest including interest payable on application money.

7. The application would be accepted as per the terms of the Debentures outlined in the
transaction documents for the private placement.
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ANNEXURE 1V: ILLUSTRATION OF BOND CASH FLOWS

Illustration of Bond Cash Flows

Name of the Issuer Satin Creditcare Network Limited

Face Value (per security) INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh)

Issue Date / Date of Allotment | Issue Opening Date: October 12, 2023
Issue Closing Date: October 12, 2023

Deemed Date of Allotment: October 13, 2023

Date of Redemption Redemption Date / Maturity Date: January 13, 2026

Tenure 27 (twenty seven) months form the Deemed Date of Allotment

Coupon Rate 11.00% (eleven decimal zero zero percent) per annum payable
monthly.

Frequency of the Coupon | Monthly.

Payment with specified dates
Please refer below for the interest payment dates.

Day count convention Actual/Actual

INTEREST PAYMENT AND REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Case 1 : Base issue subscription of INR 25 crore

Interest Payment Schedule

No. of
days | Amount
Day And Date For GBI in Per AKTET
. Payment Date Amount of
Cash Flows Coupon Becoming .. Coup | Debent .
(Adjusting . Coupon (in
e Business Day) on L INR)
y Perio | INR)
d
1st Coupon Monday, Monday,
Payment 13-Nov-2023 13-Nov-2023 311 93425 1 23,35,616.44
2nd Coupon Wednesday, Wednesday,
Payment 13-Dec-2023 13-Dec-2023 30| 90411 1 22,60,273.97
3rd Coupon Saturday, Monday,
Payment 13-Jan-2024 15-Jan-2024 31 931.69 | 23,29,234.97
4th Coupon Tuesday, Tuesday,
Payment 13-Feb-2024 13-Feb-2024 31 931.69 | 23,29,234.97
5th Coupon Wednesday, Wednesday,
Payment 13-Mar-2024 13-Mar-2024 29 871.58 | 21,78,961.75
6th Coupon Saturday, Monday,
Payment 13-Apr-2024 15-Apr-2024 31 931.69 | 23,29,234.97
7th Coupon Monday, Monday,
Payment 13-May-2024 13-May-2024 30 901.64 | 22,54,098.36
8th Coupon Thursday, Thursday,
Payment 13-Jun-2024 13-Jun-2024 31 931.69 | 23,29,234.97
9th Coupon Saturday, Monday,
Payment 13-Jul-2024 15-Jul-2024 30 901.64 | 22,54,098.36
10th Coupon Tuesday, Tuesday,
Payment 13-Aug-2024 13-Aug-2024 31 931.69 | 23,29,234.97
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11 }t}; nd?:rllaton 13?;;;1:_132/5()24 13.1;2336 ” 31 931.69 | 23,29,234.97
12}51211 nd?:rllaton 13%101?_%24 141\_’[(‘)’&?‘%’2 A 30 | 901.64 |22,54,098.36
13}5}; ycrgsrllaton g_eggiﬁ.‘& 1\1?1133?38%2 31 | 931.69 |23,29,234.97
14It)1:1 yCrgélrl:ton 13_%;62?5624 13_132’% ” 30 | 901.64 | 22,54,098.36
15It)1:1 yCrgélrl:ton lé\ff;ﬂ;(yfz S . %Z?ld;gz s 31 | 934.25 |23,35,616.44
16It)1:1 yCrgélrl:ton 13T.111;Lgbs.dzagz’5 13;‘;?532’ 5 31 | 934.25 |23,35,616.44
171t)1;1 yClgzrlfton 1?11\1/}; S}%’zs 1;‘;\32‘1%2 5 28 | 843.84 |21,09,589.04
18It)1:1 yCrgélrl:ton 13?;;?_32%25 1415’1{:’;2;{)’2 s 31 934.25 | 23,35,616.44
19;1; ycrgsgton 13?&;?%25 131‘;{2;1_%25 30 | 904.11 |22,60,273.97
20}51:1 yCrgélrl:ton 13523%25 | 3532362 s 31 934.25 | 23,35,616.44
21;:1 ;gzgfn 133_}1:11;_1%»2 S 13’_[;’5‘_1%’2 5 30 | 904.11 |22,60,273.97
2zggy(r:§;pton l\gffz;gg% 1"3"_?3;38?5 31 934.25 | 23,35,616.44
23;; }?n(l);lrion 1 3Sast1;;d%2 S 15%‘;‘_1%’25 31 | 93425 |23,35,616.44
24;}; nd?:rr:ton Mond%’zls -Oct- 131\_’[(‘)’35_‘%’2 5 30 | 904.11 | 22,60,273.97
25}51211 ;rgsgton lgﬁfsﬁiggés lgfggsvd%z s 31 934.25 | 23,35,616.44
26}51211 ;rgsgton 13%%:2(_1%’25 lslf’g’:ﬁ%’z s 30 | 904.11 |22,60,273.97
27{}; nd?:rllaton Blel:rSld;g% 1;‘;:;‘1;52 6 31 934.25 | 23,35,616.44
Redemption Schedule
Day And Date For Actual Redemption Anl:(;mt Total
Cash Flows Redemption Paym.e nt D ate No. of Debent Amount .Of
. INR)
insaliment How: ¥ 3 danatzs | $23 | 100000 | 250000000

Case 2 : Full subscription of INR 50 crores (Including Gree Shoe Option of INR

Interest Payment Schedule
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No. of
Day And Date For Actual Coupon d?z i An;z:nt Total
Cash Flows Coupon Becoming Paymfz nt D ate Coup | Debent Amount (')f
Due Business Dayy | o0 | uredn | ORI
Perio INR)
d

li)tagggzn 13151{?;(3}823 131}4N0§£%2 ; 31 | 93425 |46,71,232.88

2ri)ci1 S;léﬁ?n l\gfeggssggzys 1";’63255333’3 30 | 904.11 | 45,20,547.95
3§a§$i§?n 135?;1;%4 151\3‘;?_1%’2 A 31 931.69 | 46,58,469.95

et | ot | pedim | 1| e | sessaess
Sglagr?i?l?n ;’V}el\if;:_sggga 1"3"61\‘/1[‘;5383’4 29 | 871.58 | 43,57,923.50

6t}1)1a§$gt>n 138.?&%?-1%’24 155?;?%’2 . 31 | 931.69 | 46,58,469.95

7t}}>1a§§1g(tm 131_\1/{2;1;133824 131_\1’{/‘[’:;%2 A 30 | 901.64 | 45,08,196.72

8t}{1a§;irr>l<t>n 1?}‘;;%%4 1;}}1111;52?2’ . 31 | 931.69 | 46,58,469.95

9t}}>1a§§1g(tm 1??3{%%4 lé\fﬁffg‘gé A 30 | 901.64 | 45,08,196.72

10}5}; ycrgsgton 132;8;%24 132;:{3-‘(1)’24 31 | 931.69 | 46,58,469.95
11 It}; yCrgélrl:ton 132;12»024 13.1;2336 4 31 931.69 | 46,58,469.95
12;1; yCrgélrl:ton 13?(1;101?_%24 141\_’[(;’3‘_1;‘6’2 A 30 | 901.64 | 45,08,196.72
13;1; ycrgsfton Xeﬁﬁ‘f%& 1"3\’6}?3553854 31 | 931.69 | 46,58,469.95
14}51:1 yCrgélrl:ton 135;635624 . 3_1;;23’) » 30 | 901.64 | 45,08,196.72
15}51; yClgzrlfton lé\fgﬁ%’z 5 1;\_’[]‘;?;3’2 s 31 934.25 | 46,71,232.88
16151; yClgzrlfton 13;35?;(3)/2’5 1;_*};‘35?;& s 31 934.25 | 46,71,232.88
171t)1;l yClgzrlfton 1?11\1/}; S}%’zs 1;‘;\32‘1%2 5 28 | 843.84 |42,19,178.08
18;1; yCrgélrl:ton 13?;;?_32%25 1415’1{:’;‘3{)’2 s 31 934.25 | 46,71,232.88
19;1; ycrgsfton 13?&;?%25 131‘;;;1_%25 30 | 904.11 | 4520,547.95
20;1; yCrgélrl:ton 13523%25 13_1}323’)2 s 31 934.25 | 46,71,232.88
2 1;; frgzgfn 135_1]1:11;_1%’2 S 13’_13’3‘_1%’2 5 30 | 904.11 | 45,20,547.95
22ggy(ri§el;rion I\V}f;l;fggg’s l‘g’j:ggggzs 31 934.25 | 46,71,232.88
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23rd Coupon Saturday, Monday,

Payment 13-Sep-2025 15-Sep-2025 31| 93425 146,71,232.88
24th Coupon Monday, 13-Oct- Monday,

Payment 2025 13-0ct-2025 30| 90411 1 45.20,547.95
25th Coupon Thursday, Thursday,

Payment 13-Nov-2025 13-Nov-2025 31 934.25 1 46,71,232.88
26th Coupon Saturday, Monday,

Payment 13-Dec-2025 15-Dec-2025 30 904.11 | 45,20,547.95
27th Coupon Tuesday, Tuesday,

Payment 13-Jan-2026 13-Jan-2026 311 93425 146,71,232.88

Redemption Schedule
. Amount
Day And Date For Actual Redemption Per Total
A Payment Date No. of Amount of
Cash Flows Redemption .. Debent .
. (Adjusting days . Redemption
Becoming Due Business Day) ure (in (in INR)
Y INR)

Principal Tuesday, Tuesday,

Installment 13-Jan-2026 13-Jan-2026 823 1,00,000 1 50,00,00,000
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ANNEXURE V: DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATES

1. Due diligence certificate as per the format specified in the SEBI Debenture Trustees
Master Circular:

Enclosed separately.
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ANNEXURE VI: DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO THE SEBI DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

MASTER CIRCULAR

Details of assets, movable property and immovable property on which charge is
proposed to be created

Movable assets comprising the receivables arising out of identified book debts/loan
receivables of the Issuer.

Title deeds (original/ certified true copy by issuers/ certified true copy by existing
charge holders, as available) or title reports issued by a legal counsel/ advocates, copies
of the relevant agreements/ Memorandum of Understanding

No title deeds are applicable or available for movable assets of the Issuer set out above over
which security is proposed to be created by the Issuer. The details of the underlying loan
agreements will be set out in the Deed of Hypothecation.

Copy of evidence of registration with Sub-registrar, Registrar of Companies, Central
Registry of Securitization Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest (CERSAI) etc

The charge created over the movable assets set out in (a) above will be reported to the relevant
registrar of companies and the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and
Security Interest (CERSAI) within the timelines prescribed under Applicable Law. As the
charge is being created over movable assets, no filings are required to be made with the any
sub-registrar.

For unencumbered assets, an undertaking that the assets on which charge is proposed
to be created are free from any encumbrances

The Issuer hereby undertakes that the assets on which charge is proposed to be created as
security for the Debentures are free from any encumbrances.

For encumbered assets, on which charge is proposed to be created, the following
consents along-with their validity as on date of their submission:

(1) Details of existing charge over the assets along with details of charge holders,
value/ amount, copy of evidence of registration with Sub-registrar, Registrar of
Companies, CERSAI, Information Utility (IU) registered with Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Board of India (IBBI) etc. as applicable: Not applicable. Any charge
shall be created over unencumbered assets by way of an exclusive charge.

(i1) Consent/ No-objection certificate (NOC) from existing charge holders for
further creation of charge on the assets or relevant transaction documents
wherein existing charge holders have given conditional consent/ permission to
the Issuer to create further charge on the assets, along-with terms of such
conditional consent/ permission, if any: Not applicable. Any charge shall be
created over unencumbered assets by way of an exclusive charge.

(iii) Consent/ NOC from existing unsecured lenders, in case, negative lien is created

by Issuer in favour of unsecured lenders: Not applicable. Any charge shall be
created over unencumbered assets by way of an exclusive charge.
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In case of personal guarantee or any other document/ letter with similar intent is offered
as security or a part of security:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Details of guarantor viz. relationship with the Issuer: Not applicable as the
Debentures are not proposed to be supported by any personal guarantee.

Net worth statement (not older than 6 months from the date of debenture
trustee agreement) certified by a chartered accountant of the guarantor: Not
applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be supported by any personal
guarantee.

List of assets of the guarantor including undertakings/ consent/ NOC as per
para (b) and (c) above: Not applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be
supported by any personal guarantee.

Conditions of invocation of guarantee including details of put options or any
other terms and conditions which may impact the security created: Not
applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be supported by any personal
guarantee.

List of previously entered agreements for providing guarantee to any other
person along with an undertaking that there are no agreements other than those
provided in the list, if any: Not applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be
supported by any personal guarantee.

In case of corporate guarantee or any other document/ letter with similar intent is
offered as security or a part of security: Not applicable as the Debentures are not proposed
to be supported by any corporate guarantee.

O]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

Details of guarantor viz. holding/ subsidiary/ associate company etc: Not
applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be supported by any corporate
guarantee.

Audited financial statements (not older than 6 months from the date of
debenture trustee agreement) of guarantor including details of all contingent
liabilities: Not applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be supported by any
corporate guarantee.

List of assets of the guarantor along-with undertakings/ consent/ NOC as per
para (b) and (c) above: Not applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be
supported by any corporate guarantee.

Conditions of invocation of guarantee including details of put options or any
other terms and conditions which may impact the security created: Not
applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be supported by any corporate
guarantee.

Impact on the security in case of restructuring activity of the guarantor: Not

applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be supported by any corporate
guarantee.
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(@)

)

(k)

M

(m)

()

(0)
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(vi) Undertaking by the guarantor that the guarantee shall be disclosed as
"contingent liability" in the "notes to accounts" of financial statement of the
guarantor: Not applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be supported by
any corporate guarantee.

(vii)  Copy of Board resolution of the guarantor for the guarantee provided in respect
of the debt securities of the Issuer: Not applicable as the Debentures are not
proposed to be supported by any corporate guarantee.

(viii)  List of previously entered agreements for providing guarantee to any other
person along with an undertaking that there are no agreements other than those
provided in the list, if any: Not applicable as the Debentures are not proposed to be
supported by any corporate guarantee.

In case of any other contractual comforts/ credit enhancements provided for or on
behalf of the issuer, it shall be required to be legal, valid and enforceable at all times,
as affirmed by the issuer. In all other respects, it shall be dealt with as specified above
with respect to guarantees.

Not applicable.

In case securities (equity shares, etc.) are being offered as security then a holding
statement from the depository participant along with due pledge of such securities in
favour of Debenture Trustee in the depository system shall be ensured: Not applicable.

Details of any other form of security being offered viz. Debt Service Reserve Account
etc.: Please refer section named "Description regarding Security (where applicable)
including type of security (movable/immovable/tangible etc.), type of charge (pledge/
hypothecation/ mortgage etc.), date of creation of security/ likely date of creation of security,
minimum security cover, revaluation " in Section 5.34 (Summary Terms).

Any other information, documents or records required by debenture trustee with
regard to creation of security and perfection of security: Not applicable.

Declaration: The Issuer declares that debt securities shall be considered as secured only if
the charged asset is registered with Sub-registrar and Registrar of Companies or CERSAI or
Depository etc., as applicable, or is independently verifiable by the debenture trustee.

Terms and conditions of debenture trustee agreement including fees charged by
debenture trustees(s): Please refer the consent letter of the Debenture Trustee for terms and
conditions of the appointment of the Debenture Trustee and fee of the Debenture Trustee.

Details of security to be created: Please refer section named "Description regarding
Security (where applicable) including type of security (movable/immovable/tangible etc.),
type of charge (pledge/ hypothecation/ mortgage etc.), date of creation of security/ likely date
of creation of security, minimum security cover, revaluation" in Section 5.34 (Summary
Terms).

Process of due diligence carried out by the debenture trustee: The Debenture Trustee has

carried out due diligence in accordance with the manner prescribed in the SEBI Debenture
Trustees Master Circular. The due diligence broadly includes the following:
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O]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

A chartered accountant appointed by the Debenture Trustee will be conducting an
independent due diligence as per scope provided by the Debenture Trustee and the
information provided by the Issuer in respect of the security being provided by the
Issuer in respect of the Debentures.

The chartered accountant will verify and ensure that the assets provided by the Issuer
for creation of security are free from any encumbrances or necessary permission or
consent has been obtained from existing charge holders.

Periodical due diligence will be carried out by the Debenture Trustee in accordance
with the SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 and the relevant circulars
issued by SEBI from time to time (including the SEBI Debenture Trustees Master
Circular) as per the nature of security provided by the Issuer in respect of the
Debentures.

The Debenture Trustee will issue such necessary certificate(s) in relation to the due
diligence carried out by it and such certificate(s) will be available on Stock
Exchanges from time to time for information of the Debenture Holders.

Even though the Debentures are to be secured to the extent of at least 100% of the
principal and interest amount or as per the terms of this Key Information Document,
in favor of the Debenture Trustee, the recovery of 100% of the amount shall depend
on the market scenario prevalent at the time of enforcement of the security.

Due diligence will be carried out for maintenance of the prescribed security cover
depending on information provided by the Issuer and the chartered accountant
appointed by the Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Trustee will not be responsible
for misinformation provided by Issuer.

(p) Due diligence certificates as per the format specified in the SEBI Debenture Trustees
Master Circular: Enclosed as Annexure V.
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ANNEXURE VII: IN-PRINCIPLE APPROVAL RECEIVED FROM BSE

Enclosed separately.
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ANNEXURE VIII: BOARD RESOLUTION AND COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Enclosed separately.
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ANNEXURE IX: SHAREHOLDERS' RESOLUTIONS (SECTIONS 42, 180(1)(c)
AND 180(1)(a))

Enclosed separately.

142



KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT Private & Confidential
Date: August 16, 2023 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

ANNEXURE X: SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

The shareholding pattern of the Issuer as of July 21, 2023, prepared in accordance with the LODR
Regulations is enclosed separately.
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ANNEXURE XI: FORM NO. PAS-4 - PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER CUM
APPLICATION LETTER

Addressed to:
Serial No: 2023 24/001 03

FORM NO PAS-4 PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER CUM APPLICATION LETTER
("PPOA™)

[Pursuant to Section 42 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014]

Issue of 5,000 (five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable,
transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR
50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore) including a green shoe option ("Green Shoe
Option") of 2,500 (two thousand and five hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR
25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Five Crore) on a private placement basis in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for cash at par on a private
placement basis, in dematerialised form to certain identified investors ("'Issue")

10.1. General Information:

(a) Name, address, website and other contact details of the Company, indicating both
registered office and the corporate office:

Issuer / Company: Satin Creditcare Network Limited

Registered Office: 5" Floor, Kundan Bhawan, Azadpur Commercial Complex,
Azadpur, Delhi-110033

Corporate Office: Plot No. 492, Phase-III. Udyog Vihar, Gurugram, Haryana-122016

Telephone No.: 0124-4715400

Website: www.satincreditcare.com

Fax: -

Contact Person: Mr. Vikas Gupta, Company Secretary & Chief Compliance officer

Email: csteam(@satincreditcare.com

(b) Date of Incorporation of the Company:
October 16, 1990

(c) Business carried on by the Company and its subsidiaries with the details of branches or
units, if any;

Our Company was originally incorporated on October 16, 1990 in New Delhi under the
Companies Act 1956, as a private limited company under the name ‘Satin Leasing and
Finance Private Limited’ with the Registrar of Companies (“RoC”), New Delhi. During the
year 1994, our Company was converted into a public limited company, following which

144



KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT Private & Confidential
Date: August 16, 2023 For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

our name was changed to ‘Satin Leasing and Finance Limited’, and a fresh certificate of
incorporation was issued on July 1, 1994. Pursuant to a certificate of registration
issued by RBI on December 4, 1998, our Company was registered as a Non-Banking
Financial Company (“NBFC”). Later, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Satin
Creditcare Network Limited’, and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued on April
10, 2000 by Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana. Further, RBI also issued a
Certificate of Registration to the Company in the name of Satin Creditcare Network Limited
on November 2, 2000 as NBFC. Subsequently, in year 2013, our Company was converted
to an NBFC-Micro Finance Institution (“MFI”), and a fresh certificate of registration
was issued by the RBI on November 6, 2013. Our Company, currently registered as
an NBFC-MFI, is classified as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC
which is engaged in the business of providing financial services.

Subsidiaries:

Satin Housing Finance Limited (“SHFL”) was incorporated as a limited company on April
17, 2017 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide corporate identification
number: U65929DL2017PLC316143, as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. SHFL
has its registered office in New Delhi, and have started its operations after receiving a formal
approval from the regulator, i.e. National Housing Bank (NHB). SHFL is listed on Wholesale
Debt Market segment of BSE Limited.

SHFL is engaged in providing long-term finance for purchase, construction, extension and
repair of houses for the retail segment along with loans against residential property,
commercial property and plots

Satin Finserv Limited (“SFL”) was incorporated as a limited company on August 10, 2018
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide corporate identification number:
U65999HR2018PLC099128, as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. SFL is an
NBFC engaged in the business of providing various financial services to entrepreneurs,
MSMEs and individual businesses, as well as lending to other MFI companies and business
correspondence services. SFL aim is to “serve the small business owners (MSMEs) in a
manner that is mutually beneficial” by providing them loans for their business needs. SFL
has adopted a unique credit underwriting and assessment model to understand the income
source and derive eligibility of the potential customers.

The customised processes are designed to deliver speed, flexibility and simplicity to the
customers, while ensuring adequate control. The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated January
31, 2023 has allowed merger of Taraashna Financial Services Limited (Business
Correspondent) with Satin Finserv Limited, effective from March 01, 2023.

SFL’s product offerings include MSME —LAP (Loan Against Property). Loans in the
range of ¥ 1.5 Lakh to ¥ 5 Lakhs are offered to customers falling under the category
defined and against an “immovable property”. Eligibility is measured across multiple
parameters, with loan amount depending on the type, quality and market value of the
collateral security a customer is able to offer. Non-individuals, self-employed non-
professionals / professionals, businesses (registered or otherwise), lower-and middle-income
groups are the key SFL targets.
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Details of branches with address as on September 30, 2023 is as follows:

State Branches
ARUNACHAL PRADESH 1
ASSAM 57
BIHAR 135
CHHATTISGARH 32
DELHI 1
GUJARAT 39
HARYANA 30
HIMACHAL PRADESH 1
JAMMU _ KASHMIR 1
JHARKHAND 42
KARNATAKA 40
MADHYA PRADESH 96
MAHARASHTRA 26
MEGHALAYA 1
ORRISA 75
PONDICHERRY 1
PUNJAB 60
RAJASTHAN 78
SIKKIM 1
TAMIL NADU 73
TRIPURA 14
UTTAR PRADESH 208
UTTARAKHAND 14
WEST BENGAL 89
(d) Brief particulars of the management of the Company:
% Name of the Directors Designation Profile
0.
1 Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh Chairman A law graduate and fellow

cum Managing Director

of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of
India since 1984, Mr. HP
Singh has over three
decades of microfinance
experience to his credit and
is responsible for
pioneering the unique
concept of daily collection
of repayments of loans.
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Aside being an expert in
lending, particularly in the
microfinance field, Mr.
Singh also has a wealth of
experience across auditing,
accounts, project
financing, advisory
services and company law
matters. It is his financial
engineering acumen,
honed over almost thirty
years of experience that
has helped SCNL achieve
its success in operational
strategy and efficiency.
Mr. Singh also participated
in Harvard  Business
School’s Accion Program
on Strategic Leadership for
Microfinance in 2009, as
well as the leadership
program organized by
Women’s World Banking
at  Wharton  Business
School, University of
Pennsylvania in 2011. Mr.
Singh has been an
inspiration right from the
very beginning when the
company came into being
in 1990, till today where he
continues to be actively
involved in the company’s
day-to-day operations.
Under his leadership,
SCNL has grown into one
of India’s leading
microfinance institutions
in the North and is poised
to further expand its
operations  across  the
country.

2 Mr. Satvinder Singh

Promoter Director

Mr. Satvinder Singh hold
extensive consumer
marketing and finance
experience and has
developed new methods of
credit  appraisal  and
marketing for SCNL as
Company Director.
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Associated with the SCNL
since its inception in 1990,
Mr. Singh also acted as
Managing Director
between September 1995
and February 2011.

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta

Independent Director

Mr. Mehta is a science
graduate from the
University of Rajasthan
and holds a PG Diploma in
Business Administration
from Annamalai
University. He has also
earned numerous other
certifications, degrees and
diplomas in the fields of
cyber law, history, labour
laws, auto engineering and
human resources. Mr.
Mehta joined the SCNL
board in 2013 after a
versatile career spanning
14 years that saw him
working in high-capacities
roles across organizations
like the RKJ group, Escorts
Ltd., Panacea Biotech,
Bata India and Eicher
Good Earth.

Mrs. Sangeeta Khorana

Independent Director

A former Indian Civil
Services officer with a
doctorate in International
Economics  from  the
University of St. Gallen in
Switzerland and summa
cum laude  Masters’
degrees from Universities
of Berne, Switzerland and
Allahabad, India, Dr.
Khorana joined the board
in August 2013. With a
veritable  treasure  of
experience spanning more
than 15 years, Dr. Khorana
previously worked with the
Indian government, before
moving to academia and
consulting in Europe. Her
expertise on international
business is  renowned
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across the globe and she
has been invited by the
European Parliament and
the British media to offer
her valuable comments on
India-related issues. Dr.

Khorana has also
published extensively in
internationally ranked

journals, authoring books
and contributing chapters
as well.

5 Mr. Goh Colin

Independent Director

Mr. Colin is  the
Founder/CEO  of The
RICE Co. Ltd, a company
dedicated in harvesting the
arts for the under-served
children and youth in our
community, a program he
started in 2005. Today, the
RICE co. (TRCL) is a
highly diversified group of
companies that provides
education and training for
the underserved, content
making and producing,
phygital placemaking with
a focus on emergent
technology and an impact
investment company with
offices in  Singapore,
Malaysia, and The
Philippines. The company
intent will always be social
but its means highly
enterprising.

Mr. Colin serves on several
government and non-profit
organization in Singapore.
He is a member of the
Board of Governor in
Republic Polytechnic,
Chairs the School of
Technology for the Arts
(STA), and Chairs the
Innovation &
Entrepreneurship advisory
committee at Temasek
Polytechnic. In addition,
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he is a Board member of
The RICE Co Ltd, Global
Cultural Alliance, Millet
Holdings Group of
companies, The Medici
Water Mark, independent
director for Think Through
Consulting Singapore and
the corporate rep for
Netxus Global and
Nutrious Farm. He is also a
strategic advisor  to
Caregiver Asia, a
commercial champion &
mentor with the National
University of Singapore
Graduate Research &
Innovation Program
(GRIP) and a Board of
assessor for Intercultural
Theatre Institute.

Mr. Colin holds a double in
Economics & Finance and

a Master in Business
Administration (MBA)
from the University of
Technology, Sydney,
Australia.

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Bhatia

Independent Director

A Chartered Accountant
and Commerce graduate of
Delhi  University, Mr.
Bhatia has over 35 years of
rich experience across
leading corporates, starups
and BAU environments,
having worked in both
sales management and
strategy formation. At
present, he is Director —
Community Development
at Antara Senior Living
Limited and is responsible
for the development of the
upcoming communities for
progressive seniors, the
formulation of long term
strategy  and  tactical
execution and general
management. He also
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provides consultancy on
income tax, corporate tax
and corporate law matters
to various organizations. In
his past career, he has
served as Vice President
and Head of Strategic
Initiatives (Revenue) at
Max Life Insurance and
worked at companies such
as Max New York Life,
Vikas Motors Limited,
Dinker Portfolio Private
Limited, DMA of Citibank
N.A. and GE Countrywide.

7 Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra

Independent Director

With 31 years of banking
experience across leading
companies in London and
India, Mr. Kalra is
extremely well versed in
the areas of banking,
financial services,
investment banking and
infrastructure  financing.
He spent 5 years as the
Chief Executive Officer in
the Financial Services
Company in London, UK
and has been associated
with various well-known
banks and  financial
Institutions across India
and London, including
public sector banks. Prior
to this, Mr. Kalra served as
Senior Vice President in a
leading NBFC engaged in
providing financial
services to  corporates
(including asset financing,
debt syndication, corporate
advisory, merchant
banking etc.) and support
to sister companies within
the group with focus on
infrastructure projects
financing. He holds a
Finance MBA from the
Faculty of Management
Studies (FMS), Delhi

151




KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT
Date: August 16, 2023

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

University and B.Com (H)
from the Shree Ram
College of Commerce

Name

Designation

Profile

Mr. Jugal Kataria

Group Controller

Mr. Jugal Kataria is a graduate from Shree Ram|
College of Commerce and is a Cost Accountant,
Chartered Accountant and Company Secretary)|
with approx. 31 years of relevant experience. He
has participated in an ‘Internal Auditors Training
Course’ for ISO 9000 and ‘Harvard Business
School Accion Program on Strategic Leadership
for Microfinance’. He attended leadership
program organized by Women’s World Banking at
Wharton Business School, University of
Pennsylvania in 2011. Mr. Kataria had worked
with Apollo Tyres Limited and Berger Paints
(India) Limited before joining SCNL in 2000.

Mr. Rakesh
Sachdeva

Chief Financial
Officer

Mr. Sachdeva has more than 30 years of]
experience across various domains of Finance
Management, Business Operations, Human|
Resources, Project Management; Strategic
Alliances and Contract Management. He is a
versatile manager and his area of work involved
fund management, administration and project
management. He is a Fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and
worked with Apollo Tyres Ltd, Berger Group,
Arcotech Group at various designations. Mr.
Sachdeva is associated with Satin Creditcare
Network Limited as Board member from April,
1999 to November, 2020. He has served on various
committees (including Audit Committee) of the
Board of Satin Creditcare Network Limited as
Chairman and Member.

Mr. Manoj
Agrawal

Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

Mr. Manoj Agrawal is a Rank Holder Chartered
Accountant with a substantial experience of 24
years into various domains viz. operations|
management, implementation and client service,
financial controls including internal controls &
governance, accounts & finance etc. Prior to this,
he has held significant positions in reputed
organizations in financial services. He has been|
associated with J P Morgan Chase — Corporate and
Investment Bank handling roles in Operations,
Client Experience and Controls since last 13 years.
He has an international exposure for undertaking
on-site branches process reviews & regulatory|
reporting reviews. He had also worked with ICICI|
Bank Limited for around 8 years & other listed
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entities during his tenure.

4 Mr. Subir Roy
Chowdhury

Chief Human
Recourse Officer

Mr. Subir is an alumnus of INSEAD (Advanced
Management Program) and PGDHRM from
IISWBM - Kolkata with B.Com (Hons) from|
Kolkata University. He has a versatile experience
of 23 years in HR function. He has joined Satin in|
April 2016 as Chief Human Resource Officer.
Before joining SCNL, he worked with Magmal
Fincorp Ltd as Head — Business & Corporate HR|
where he has initiated the competence framework,
Talent Management, Succession Planning, PMS &
Total Rewards. He has earlier worked with ICICI
Securities Ltd, ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company Ltd, Magma Leasing Ltd, Wacker|
Metroark Chemicals Ltd and Kotak Securities.

5 Mr. Vikas Gupta

Company
Secretary &
Chief
Compliance
Officer

A law graduate and fellow of Imperial College,
London, Mr. Gupta has more than 14 years of
experience as a Company Secretary and is an
Associate Member of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. Prior to joining Satin, he
worked with Hero Group. He has extensive
experience in secretarial and compliance
functions, including private equity, rights issues,
mergers, and acquisitions. He has worked with
brands like Havells India Ltd.

6 Mr. Kalidasan
Thangaraju

Chief
Operating
Officer

Mr. Thangaraju has done M.Com from
Bharathidasan University, a financial services
professional having over 22 years standing with
varied experience in diverse conditions like
setting up the retails distribution, Sales,
Recovery, Credit for NBFC, Modern Bank and
NBFC Micro Finance. He possess strong
command in distribution network and worked for
companies like Hindustan Financial Management
Limited, Kotak Mahindra Bank(erstwhile ING
Vysya Bank Limited), Fullerton India Credit
Company Limited and his last assignment was
with Jana Small Finance Bank.
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7 Mr. Amarjit
Singh

Chief Audit
Officer

Mr. Amarjit Singh holds an eminent MBA degree
in Finance from the prestigious FMS-Delhi and a
B.Com from SGTB Khalsa College, Delhi. He is
a seasoned Banker with more than 32 years of
expertise in Operations and Retail Banking. A
strategic and enthusiastic business leader having
extensive knowledge spread across the horizons
of portfolio management, risk management,
cross- selling, branch banking operations, branch
and ATM expansion, business development and
sales management etc, he is also a motivational
speaker. He has worked with Allahabad Bank,
Axis Bank, Janalakshmi Financial Services and
Jana Small Finance Bank. He has been associated
in multiple leadership roles like Branch Head,
Zonal Retail Liability Head, Circle Head-Punjab,
Head Business Operations and Distribution
Channels for Retail Asset & Credit Card Sales.
His former assignment was with Capital Trust
Ltd as its Chief Operating Officer.

8 Mr. Dhiraj Jha

Chief Risk
Officer

Mr. Dhiraj Jha is a Financial Risk Professional
having over 17 years of experience with a varied
skill base in the field of Portfolio Management,
Risk Analytics and Management, Project
Management, Risk Assessment/Quantification
and Business Process Re-engineering. At Satin,
he spearheads the Risk Management vertical for
the company.

Prior to Satin, he has worked with Allahabad
Bank and State Bank of India. He possesses a
strong inclination toward automation in the
Financial Industry using modern techniques/tools
of Data Science.

His educational background includes a Bachelor
in Computer Application, Post Graduate in
Economics and PG Diploma in Financial
Advising. He is also a Certificated Associate of
the Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB) and
Financial Risk Management (FRM) certificate
holder of GARP-USA.
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Mr. Anil Gupta

Executive
Vice
President

With an MBA in Marketing Management from
Leeds Business School, Leeds University, UK,
and a B.Com (Hons) degree from Shri Ram
College of Commerce, Delhi University, Mr.
Gupta has spent over 40 years in the Sales,
Marketing and P&L Management across various
industries. In addition, he has attended courses at
IIM Ahmedabad and 1IM Kolkata and a Strategic
Business Management course from Duke
University, North Carolina, USA. Mr. Gupta
joined SCNL, in February 2020, as Business
Head — Products and Insurance. Prior to Satin, he
was working with Shriram Refrigeration, Honda
Power Products, Reliance Infocomm, Usha
International, Idea Cellular (Aditya Birla Group),
and Aircel. He has successfully spearheaded the
launch of telecom services in Delhi, Haryana,
UP, Rajasthan & HP besides leading them to be
profitable ventures. He has successfully turned
around the loss making businesses into profitable
ones and ensured the long-term benefits to the
Organization of the same. He has had vast
exposure in Sales, Marketing, Operations and
handling difficult situations and turning them into
profitable ventures for the Company.

10

Ms. Aditi Singh

Head —
Strategy

Ms. Singh has more than 14 years of experience
in the Financial services industry across several
functions. At Satin, her area of work involves
Strategic inputs for Management and managing
key stakeholders, managing the existing as well
as prospective shareholders, sectoral research
coverage, integrated annual reports, and all the
roles and responsibilities related to Investor
Relations. Additionally, she also leads the PR and
Communication and CSR and Social
Performance Management in which she works on
the right positioning of the company.

Prior to Satin, she has worked with CG Corp
Global as Head M&A heading projects in Middle
East, Africa, North America and South East Asia,
UV Capital Pvt. Ltd, and IFCI Venture Capital
Funds, where she attained diversified experience
and led to her 360-degree understanding of the
finance and business vertical.

She is a gold medalist in Economics (Hons.) from
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Banasthali Vidyapith and has done post-
graduation in Management of Business Finance
from the Indian Institute of Finance, Delhi.

11

Mr. Anil Kwatra

Head-
Operational
Excellence &
Innovation

With a PGPM in Marketing and a B.COM from
MD University, Rohtak, Mr. Kwatra has spent
14+ years in the Microfinance and Life insurance
space. He holds expertise in setting up business
and distribution models. Prior to joining Satin in
May 2017, he has worked with organisations like
Bharat Financial Inclusion Ltd, Max life
Insurance, Indiabulls Financial Services and
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance playing key roles
in Sales, Training & Operations verticals. Before
taking the charge as Head-Operational
Excellence & Innovation, he had served as a
Business Head for the states of Punjab, Haryana
and Rajasthan at Satin.

12

Mr. Sunil Yadav

Head —
Information
Technology

With a Masters in Computer Science from Guru
Jambheshwar University, Hisar, Mr. Sunil Yadav
has spent over 12 years in the Banking and
Finance industry and across its various functions.
He also holds a certificate in Artificial
Intelligence from IIT Roorkee.

He joined SATIN in 2016 as Solution Architect
and, currently as Head of Technology, he has
been spearheading the digital transformation and
has been instrumental in building a self-
sustaining, high-calibre  technology team
responsible for building in-house futuristic, state
of the art solutions in line with the vision of the
organization. Prior to this, he was working with
Emvantage Payment Private Limited (Acquired
by Amazon Payments) & Signet Payments
(Acquired by IRCTC), responsible for leading the
architecture of various technology solutions
catering to the payment gateway and Fintech
ecosystem.
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(e) Name, addresses, Director Identification Num (DIN) and occupations of the directors:
S. Name Designati DIN Address Occupati
No. on on
1 Mr. Chairman- 00333754 MGE-2-TW-04-03 A, Business

Harvinde | cum- 3rd Floor, Fairway
r Pal Managing East, M3M Golf
Singh Director Estate, Sector-65, DLF
QE, Gurgaon-122002,
Haryana
2 Mr. Non- 00332521 Building 1, Apartment Business
Satvinder | Executive 5B, The Hibiscus
Singh — Non- Sector 50, South City
Independe I, Gurgaon- 122018
nt Director
3 Mr. Independe 00840544 1629, Sector-29 Profession
Sundeep nt Director Noida- al
Kumar 201303 Uttar
Mehta Pradesh,India
4 Ms. Independe 06674198 59 Pottle Walk, Profession
Sangeeta | nt Director Wimborne BH21 al
Khorana 2FD,Dorset, United
Kingdom
5 Mr. Goh Independe 06963178 173 Ceylon Road Profession
Colin nt Director Singapore-429739 SG al
6 Mr. Independe 07033027 1414, Dr. Mukherjee Profession
Sanjay nt Director Nagar, Delhi 110009, al
Kumar India
Bhatia
7 Mr. Anil | Independe 07361739 Flat No. C-601, Tower | Profession
Kumar nt Director C, Prateek Stylome, al
Kalra Sector 45, Gautam
Buddha Nagar, Uttar
Pradesh-201301

10.2. MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION OF RISK FACTORS:

Please refer Section 3 of the general information documents dated July 24, 2023 ("General
Information Document") issued by the Company in respect of the current issue of 5,000
(five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable, non-
convertible debentures denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value of INR 1,00,000
(Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Fifty Crore) including a green shoe option ("Green Shoe Option") of 2,500 (two
thousand and five hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable,
non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian
Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees
Twenty Five Crore).
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10.3.

Details of defaults, if any, including the amounts involved, duration of default, and

present status, in repayment of:

1) Statutory Dues: NIL

Debentures and interest thereon: NIL

Deposits and interest thereon: NIL

Loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon: NIL

(i1)
(iii)
(iv)

10.4.

Name, designation, address and phone number, email ID of the nodal / compliance

officer of the Company, if any, for the Issue:

Name:
Designation:
Address:
Phone No.:
Email:

Mr. Vikas Gupta

Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer

Plot No. 492, Phase-I1I, Udyog Vihar, Gurugram, Haryana-122016
0124-4715400

csteam(@satincreditcare.com

10.5.
made thereunder:

Any default in annual filing of the Company under the Companies Act, 2013 or the rules

There is no default in the filing of the Company under the Companies Act, 2013 or the rules

made thereunder,

10.6. Particulars of the Offer:

Financial position of the
Company for the last 3 (three)
financial years

Please refer to CHAPTER A below.

Date of passing of Board
Resolution

Board Resolutions dated May 15, 2020, and July 10, 2023
read with the resolution passed by the Working Committee of
the Board of Directors of the Company on October 06, 2023.
A certified true copy of the said resolutions is attached hereto
as CHAPTER C.

Date of passing of resolution in
the general meeting, authorizing
the offer of securities

Shareholders resolution under Section 42 of the Companies
Act, 2013 dated August 9, 2023 and shareholders resolution
under Section and Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013 dated July 6, 2019. Certified true copies of these
resolutions are attached hereto as CHAPTER D.

Kind of securities offered (i.e.
whether share or debenture)
and class of security; the total
number of shares or other
securities to be issued

5,000 (five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value of INR
1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate
face value of INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore)
including a green shoe option of 2,500 (two thousand and five
hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable,
transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated in
INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees
One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR
25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Five Crore).
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Price at which the security is
being offered, including
premium if any, along with
justification of the price

The Debentures are being offered at face value of INR
1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) per Debenture.

Name and address of the valuer
who performed valuation of the
security offered, and basis on
which the price has been arrived
at along with report of the
registered valuer

Not Applicable as the Debentures are being offered at face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) per
Debenture.

Relevant date with reference to
which the price has been arrived
at

[Relevant Date means a date at
least 30 days prior to the date on
which the general meeting of the
Company is scheduled to be
held]

Not applicable.

The class or classes of persons to
whom the allotment is proposed
to be made

This Issue, offer and subscription to the Debentures shall be
conducted through the electronic book mechanism as
prescribed by SEBI.

Intention of promoters,
directors or key managerial
personnel to subscribe to the
offer (applicable in case they
intend to subscribe to the offer)
[Not required in case of issue of
non-convertible debentures]

Not applicable as the instruments being offered in this Issue
are non-convertible debentures.

The proposed time within which
the allotment shall be completed

Issue Opening Date: October 12, 2023

Issue Closing Date: October 12, 2023

Pay-in Date: October 13, 2023

Deemed Date of Allotment: October 13, 2023

The names of the proposed
allottees and the percentage of
post private placement capital
that may be held by them [Not
applicable in case of issue of
non-convertible debentures]

Not applicable.

The change in control, if any, in
the company that would occur
consequent to the private
placement

Not applicable as the instruments being offered in this Issue
are non-convertible debentures.

The number of persons to whom
allotment on preferential basis /
private placement / rights issue
has already been made during
the year, in terms of securities as
well as price

During the Financial Year 2023-24, Company had made an
allotment of:

1) 5,000 Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Taxable,
Redeemable, Transferable, Non-Convertible
Debentures at a face value of INR 1,00,000 each to 1
(One) investor on April 6, 2023 on private placement
basis.

(ii) 2,000 senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
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(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value
of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each to 1
(One) investor on June 22, 2023 on private placement
basis.

5,382 (five thousand three hundred and eighty two)
rated, unlisted, secured, senior, redeemable, taxable,
transferable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value
of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and
an aggregate face value of INR 53,82,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Fifty Three Crore and Eighty Two Lakh) to 2
(Two) investors on June 28, 2023 on private
placement basis.

1,500 (one thousand and five hundred senior,
secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable,
transferable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value
of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each to 1
(One) investor on July 28, 2023 on private placement
basis.

2,683 (two thousand six hundred and eighty three)
unlisted, rated, secured, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures denominated in Indian Rupees ("INR"),
having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees
One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR
26,83,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Six Crore and
Eighty Three Lakh) to 1 (One) investor on August 9,
2023 on private placement basis.

1,417 (one thousand four hundred seventeen)
unlisted, rated, secured, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures denominated in Indian Rupees ("INR"),
having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees
One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR
14,17,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fourteen Crore and
Seventeen Lakh) to 1 (One) investor on August 14,
2023 on private placement basis.

2,000 senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in Indian Rupees, having a face value
of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each to 2
(Two) investors on August 21, 2023 on private
placement basis.In addition to this, Company had
allotted:
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(viii)

(ix)

x)

32,82,052 equity shares of face value of INR 10/-
each at an issue price of INR 81.25/- pursuant to
conversion of warrants to an entity belonging to
Promoter Group category on June 13, 2023.

29,23,076 equity shares of face value of INR 10/-
each at an issue price of INR 81.25/- pursuant to
conversion of warrants to an entity belonging to
Promoter Group category on July 7, 2023.

82,05,128 equity shares of face value of INR 10/-
each at an issue price of INR 81.25/- pursuant to
conversion of warrants to an entity belonging to Non-
Promoter category on July 21, 2023.

The justification for the
allotment proposed to be made
for consideration other than
cash together with valuation
report of the registered valuer

Not applicable as each Debenture is being issued as a face
value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) for cash at

par.

Amount, which the Company
intends to raise by way of
proposed offer of securities

Up to INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore).

Terms of raising of securities:

Duration, if | Please refer Section 5.34 of the Key
applicable: Information Document.
Rate of Interest | Please refer Section 5.34 of the Key
or Coupon: Information Document.
Mode of Payment Please rgfer Section 5.34 of the Key
Information Document.
electronic clearing services
geo‘ie o | (ECSyeredit  through  RTGS
pay system/funds transfer

Proposed time schedule for
which the Issue/Offer Letter is
valid

Issue Schedule

Issue Opening Date

October 12,2023, 11:00 a.m.

Issue Closing Date

October 12,2023, 12:00 p.m.

Pay In Date October 13, 2023
Deemed Date  of | October 13,2023
Allotment

Purpose and objects of the
Issue/Offer

Please refer Section 5.34 of the Key Information Document.

Contribution being made by the
promoters or directors either as

N.A.

161



KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT
Date: August 16, 2023

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only

(This Key Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

part of the offer or separately in
furtherance of such objects

Principal terms of assets | Please refer Section 5.34 of the Key Information Document.
charged as  security, if
applicable

The details of significant and
material orders passed by the
Regulators, Courts and
Tribunals impacting the going
concern status of the Company
and its future operations

No significant and material orders have been passed by any
regulators, courts and tribunals which impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

RBI Disclaimer

The Issuer is having a valid certificate of registration dated
B-14.01394 issued by the RBI under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However, the RBI does not
accept any responsibility or guarantee about the present
position as to the financial soundness of the Issuer or the
correctness of any of the statements or representations made
or opinion expressed by the Issuer and for repayment of
deposits/discharge of liabilities by the Issuer.

The pre-issue and post-issue shareholding pattern of the Company in the following format:

S. Category Pre-issue* Post-issue
No.
No. of Percentage No. of Percentage
shares (%) of shares held | (%) of
held shareholding shareholding
A Promoters’ holding
Indian
1 Individual 17,22,345 1.73 | 17,22,345 1.73
Bodies Corporate 3,81,07,082 38.25 | 3,81,07,082 38.25
Sub-total 3,98,29,427 39.98 | 3,98,29,427 39.98
2 Foreign promoters Nil Nil
Sub-total (A) 3,98,29,427 39.98 | 3,98,29,427 39.98
B Non-promoters’
holding
1 Institutional Investors | 97,16,700 9.75 97,16,700 9.75
2 Non-Institutional
Investors
Private Corporate 2,91,79,057 29.29 |2,91,79,057 29.29
Bodies including
Foreign Companies
Directors and relatives - - -
Indian public 2,02,00,322 2,02,00,322
20.27 20.27
Others (including Non- | 7,08,875 0.71 7,08,875 0.71
resident Indians and
Non-Promotor- Non
Public shareholding)
Sub-total (B) 5,98,04,954 60.02 | 5,98,04,954 60.02
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| GRAND TOTAL | 9,96,34,381

100.00 | 9,96,34,381

100.00

*The above information is as of July 21, 2023. As the Company is a listed company, the latest
information is available only up to July 21, 2023. All relevant information will be provided to
BSE Limited within the timelines prescribed under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

10.7.  Mode of payment for subscription (Cheque/ Demand Draft/ other banking channels):

Cheque N. A

Demand Draft N. A

Other Banking Channels|\

10.8. Disclosure with regard to interest of directors, litigation, etc:

Any financial or other material
interest of the directors, promoters
or key managerial personnel in the
offer/ Issue and the effect of such
interest in so far as it is different
from the interests of other persons

The directors, promoters or key managerial personnel do not
have any financial or other material interest in the offer/ Issue.

Details of any litigation or legal
action pending or taken by any
Ministry or Department of the
Government or a statutory

There is no litigation or legal action pending or taken by any
ministry or department of the Government or a statutory
authority against any promoter of the Company during the last 3
(three) years immediately preceding the year of the circulation of

authority against any promoter of | this Offer Letter.
the Company during the last 3
(three) years immediately
preceding the year of the issue of
this Offer Letter and any direction
issued by such Ministry or
Department or statutory authority
upon conclusion of such litigation
or legal action shall be disclosed
Remuneration of directors (during
the current year and last 3 (three)
financial years) [Director FY | FY2022- FY FY
2023-24 23 (in 2021-22 | 2020-21
Q1 (in Lakhs) (in (in
Lakhs) Lakhs) | Lakhs)
Mr. 38.68 154.31 140.32 136.72
Harvinder
Pal Singh
Mr. 1.05 5.55 7.60 7.70
Sundeep
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Kumar
Mehta

Mr. 0.85 4.35 6.00 5.75
Satvinder
Singh

Ms. 0.80 2.80 3.70 4.40
Sangeeta
Khorana

Mr. Goh 1.05 4.55 5.80 3.90
Colin

Mr. Sanjay 1.05 4.55 6.10 5.50
Kumar
Bhatia

Mr. Anil 0.60 3.90 5.00 4.15
Kumar
Kalra

Related party transactions entered | Please refer to CHAPTER E below.
during the last 3 (three) financial
years immediately preceding the
year of issue of this Offer Letter
including with regard to loans
made or, guarantees given or
securities provided

Summary of reservations or | Nil
qualifications or adverse remarks
of auditors in the last 5 (five)
financial  years immediately
preceding the year of issue of this
Offer Letter and of their impact on
the financial statements and
financial position of the Company
and the corrective steps taken and
proposed to be taken by the
Company for each of the said
reservations or qualifications or
adverse remark

Details of any inquiry, inspections | Nil
or investigations initiated or
conducted under the Companies
Act or any previous company law
in the last 3 (three) years
immediately preceding the year of
circulation of the Offer Letter in
the case of the Company and all of
its subsidiaries. Also if there were
any were any prosecutions filed
(whether pending or not) fines
imposed, compounding of offences
in the last 3 (three) years
immediately preceding the year of
this Offer Letter and if so, section-
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wise
Company and all of its subsidiaries

details thereof for the

Details of acts of material frauds
committed against the Company in
the last 3 (three) years, if any, and
if so, the action taken by the
company

Nil

1.2

Financial Position of the Company:

The capital structure of the company in the following manner in a tabular form:

The authorized, issued, subscribed
and paid up capital (number of
securities, description and aggregate
nominal value)

Share Capital INR
Authorised In Lakhs
Equity share capital 10500.00
Preference share capital 7500.00
TOTAL 18000.00
Issued

Equity share capital 9975.97
Preference Shares 0.00
TOTAL 9975.97
Subscribed

Equity share capital 9975.93
Preference Shares 0.00
TOTAL 9975.93
Paid Up Capital

Equity Share Capital (Fully 9963.43
Paid Up)

TOTAL 9963.43

Size of the Present Offer

Up to INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore).

Paid-up Capital:

After the offer:

After the conversion of
Convertible Instruments (if
applicable)

Equity Share Capital: 9963.43 Lakhs
Preference Share Capital: 0.00

Not applicable as the Debentures are non-convertible
debentures

Share Premium Account:

Before the offer:

b. After the offer:

INR 19,730/- Lakhs

There will be no change to the share premium account as
each Debenture is a non-convertible debt instrument
which is being offered at face value.
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Details of the existing share capital of the Issuer including details of allotments made by the
Company in the last one year prior to the date of this Offer Letter for consideration other
than cash and details of the consideration in each case:

Fac | Iss . Form of Cumulative Paid Up
Consider . .
Noof |e ue . Consider Capital
Date . . | ation . Nature .
Equit | Val | Pri . ation No of Equit
of ue ce received of Eaquit | Equit
Allot | ¥ till Allotm | 4wt | Lquity 1y
Share | (In | (In y Share Share
ment March ent . .
S IN |IN 31. 2023 Share | Capital | Premi
R) | R) i s um
25-01- | 30769 | 10 | 81.| 24.99Cror Cash Prefere | 75018 | 75.02Cr | 21.92
2022 16 25 es ntial 997 ores | Crores
28-09- | 41025 | 10 | 81. 33.33 Cash Conver | 79121 79.12 | 51.15
2022 64 25 Crores sion 561 Crores | Crores
29-12- | 41025 | 10 | 8l1. 33.33 Cash Conver | 83224 83.22 | 80.38
2022 64 25 Crores sion 125 Crores | Crores
16-03- | 20000 | 10 | 8I1. 16.25 Cash Conver | 85224 8522 | 94.63
2023 00 25 Crores sion 125 Crores | Crores
13-06- | 32820 | 1° 8215' 2667 | Conver 88?23 C88'5 ! ”8“1)
2023 52 Crores sion rores
Crores
07-07- | 20230 | 10| Sl 2375 | M conver | V152 213138
2023 76 Crores sion
Crores
21-07- | 8205 | 10 | 8I. 66.67 Cash Conver | 99634 | 99.63 197.3
2023 128 25 Crores sion 381 Crores 0
Crores

*Kindly note the preference shares mentioned above are of different classes.

The details of allotments made prior to January 25, 2022 are available with the Issuer and can be
provided on request.

Details of allotments made by | Please refer the sections of this PPOA named "Details of the
the Company in the last one | existing share capital of the Issuer including details of
year prior to the date of this | allotments made by the Company in the last one year prior to
Offer Letter for consideration | the date of this Offer Letter for consideration other than cash
other than cash and details of | and details of the consideration in each case" and "The
the consideration in each case. | number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis /
private placement / rights issue has already been made during
the year, in terms of securities as well as price" for details of
the allotments were made in the last one year preceding the
date of this private placement offer cum application letter.

No allotments were made by the Issuer in the last one year
prior to the date of this PPOA for consideration other than cash
and details of the consideration in each case.
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Profits of the Company, before
and after making provision for 31- 31- 31-
tax, for the 3 (three) financial Mar-
. . . Mar-22 | Mar-21
years immediately preceding || Year 23
the date of circulation of this Rsin Rs in Rs in
Offer Letter Cr Cr Cr
Profit Before Tax | 341.00 | 59.36 (9.76)
Profit After Tax 264.33 | 40.23 (13.55)
Depreciation 16.21 13.79 13.01
Dividends declared by the
Company in respect of the said | | Type of Share | Type of | Period Dividend
3 (three) financial years; Dividend Amount
interest coverage ratio for last per share
three years (cash profit after (in INR)
tax plus interest paid/interest || 12.10% Rated, | Interim April 1, | 1.21
paid) Cumulative, Dividend 2020 to
Non- April 22,
Convertible 2021
and
Compulsorily
Redeemable
Preference
Shares
12.10% Rated, | Final April 1, | 1.21
Cumulative, Dividend 2019 to
Non- March 31,
Convertible 2020
and
Compulsorily
Redeemable
Preference
Shares
12.10% Rated, | Final April 1, | 1.21
Cumulative, Dividend 2018 to
Non- March 31,
Convertible 2019
and
Compulsorily
Redeemable
Preference
Shares
0.01% Final April 1, | 0.001
Optionally Dividend 2018 to
Convertible March 31,
Cumulative 2019
Redeemable
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Preference
Shares

Interest Coverage Ratio (Amount in INR
Lakh except
ratio)
Particulars
Cash profit
after tax
Interest
paid on
borrowings
(excl.
interest
paid on
borrowings)
Interest
coverage
ratio

2022-23
68,282,70

2021-22
22,943.73

2020-21
27,467.07

56,225.82 59,649.24 | 61,527.73

1.21 0.384 0.45

A summary of the financial
position of the Company as in
the 3 (three) audited balance
sheets immediately preceding
the date of circulation of this
Offer Letter

Please refer CHAPTER A to this Private Placement Offer
cum Application Letter.

Audited Cash Flow Statement
for the 3 (three) years
immediately preceding the date
of circulation of this Offer
Letter

Please refer CHAPTER B to this Private Placement Offer
cum Application Letter.

Any change in accounting
policies during the last 3 (three)
years and their effect on the
profits and the reserves of the
Company

During the quarter ended June 30, 2022 the Company has
changed its accounting policy for valuation of its investments
in 3 wholly owned subsidiaries from cost basis to fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL) basis.

The Company believes that this change to fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL) is preferable as it reflects value of the
Company’s investment on current market price basis and it is
in sync with the cost of funds involved in it and charged to the
statement of profit and loss account by the Company. Hence,
it provides reliable and more relevant information to the users
of financial statements about the Company's Value of
Investment on an on-going basis.
In accordance with Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, this change in accounting
policy is required to be retrospectively applied to all prior
periods presented, unless impracticable to do so. The same has
been explored as per below mentioned facts -

Significant assumptions and estimations are involved in the
fair valuation of the investments. Considering the fact that
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March 31, 2021 was covid impacted year, when the economic
conditions were uncertain, it is not possible for the
management to accurately consider the assumptions and
estimates in the valuation of investments for that prior period
without the use of hindsight. Use of hindsight is not the
intention of Ind AS 8. Hence, it is not practicable for the
management to calculate the fair valuation of investments for
the prior periods.

In view of above, one of the conditions, as given in Ind AS 8,
for impracticability is satisfied, hence entity qualifies for the
exemption of retrospective application. Therefore, in view of
above the change in accounting policy is made effective on a
prospective basis from the quarter ended June 30, 2022.
Following is the impact i.e. increase/decrease of the said
change in policy on each item of statement of profit and loss
for the quarter ended June 30, 2022:

Particulars Amount (Z in Lakhs)

Increase in profit before tax 35,101.76
Increase in deferred tax charge 8,031.28
Increase in profit after tax 27,070.48
Increase in EPS — Basic 36.08
Increase in EPS — Diluted 33.35

Following is the impact .i.e. increase/decrease of the said
change in policy on each item of Balance Sheet as on June

30, 2022 :
Particulars Amount (X in Lakhs)
Incr§a§e in value of investment in 35.101.76
subsidiaries
Increase in Deferred Tax
Liability 8,031.28

10.9.

(1)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

PART B (To be filed by the Applicant)

Name:

Father’s name: N/A;

Complete Address including Flat / House Number, Street, Locality, Pin Code:

Phone number; if any:
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v) Email ID, if any:
(vi) PAN Number:
Bank Account details:

Name of Final Beneficiary:
Bank Name:

IFSC Code:

Address:

Account:

(vii)  Tick whichever is applicable:

(a) The applicant is not required to obtain Government approval under the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 prior to subscription of shares /
securities:

v

(b) The applicant is required to obtain Government approval under the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 prior to subscription of shares and the
same has been obtained, and is enclosed herewith: Not applicable.

Signature

Initial of the Officer of the Company designated to keep the record
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DECLARATION (To be provided by the Directors)

(a) The Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder.

(b) The compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder do not imply
that payment of dividend or interest or repayment of preference shares or debentures, if
applicable, is guaranteed by the Central Government.

(c) The monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated
in this private placement offer cum application letter.

I am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolutions number 9 dated July 10,
2023 and the working committee of the board of directors of the Company dated October 06, 2023,
to sign this Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and declare that all the requirements of
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter and matters incidental thereto have been complied with.

Whatever is stated in this Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and in the attachments
thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to the subject matter of this Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original
records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly
and legibly attached to this private placement offer cum application letter.

Enclosed

Copy of Board Resolution

Copy of Working Committee Resolution

Copy of Shareholders Resolutions

Application form: Please refer the application form enclosed in the Key Information Document
Chapter A - Summary of Financial Position

Chapter B - Audited Cash Flow Statement

Chapter C- Board Resolution and Working Committee Resolution

Chapter D-Shareholders’ Resolutions

Chapter E-Related party transactions entered during the last 3 (three) financial years immediately
preceding the year of issue of this Offer Letter including with regard to loans made or, guarantees
given or securities provided

Optional Attachments, if any
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CHAPTER A: FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AS IN THE 3 (THREE)
AUDITED BALANCE SHEETS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE DATE OF
CIRCULATION OF THIS PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER CUM APPLICATION
LETTER

Please refer Annexure V of the General Information Document for the audited financial statements
of the Issuer for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2023.
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CHAPTER B: AUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE 3 (THREE) YEARS
IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE DATE OF CIRCULATION OF THIS PRIVATE
PLACEMENT OFFER CUM APPLICATION LETTER

Please refer Annexure V of the General Information Document for the audited financial statements
of the Issuer for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2023.
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CHAPTER C: CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF BOARD RESOLUTIONS AND CERTIFIED
TRUE COPY OF WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Attached separately.
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CHAPTER D: CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF SHAREHOLDERS RESOLUTIONS

Attached separately.
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CHAPTER E: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ENTERED DURING THE LAST 3
(THREE) FINANCIAL YEARS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE YEAR OF ISSUE OF
THIS OFFER LETTER INCLUDING WITH REGARD TO LOANS MADE OR,
GUARANTEES GIVEN OR SECURITIES PROVIDED

Please refer Section 5.24 of the General Information Document for the details of related
party transactions.
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ANNEXURE XII: UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTER
ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 ALONG WITH THE LIMITED REVIEW REPORT OF THE
STATUTORY AUDITOR
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ICRA ICRA Limited

ICRA/ Satin Creditcare Network Ltd./05102023/1
October 05, 2023

Mr. Rakesh Sachdeva

Chief Financial Officer

Satin Creditcare Network Limited
Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase —lI,
Gurugram, Haryana — 122003, India

Dear Sir,

Re: ICRA rating for Rs 575-crore NCD Programme (of which Rs. 340.18 crore is yet to be placed) of Satin
Creditcare Network Ltd. (instrument details in Annexure)

Please refer to your request dated September 28, 2023 for revalidating the rating letter issued for the captioned
programme.

We confirm that the [ICRA]A- (pronounced as ICRA A minus) rating with a Stable outlook assigned to your
captioned programme and last communicated to you vide our letter dated June 7, 2023 stands. Instruments with
this rating are considered to have high degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such
instruments carry very low credit risk.

The other terms and conditions for the rating of the aforementioned instrument shall remain the same as
communicated vide our letter Ref: ICRA/Satin Creditcare Network Ltd./07062023/1 dated June 7, 2023.

The rating, as aforesaid, however, should not be treated as a recommendation to buy, sell or hold long term
debt/non-convertible debenture to be issued by you.

We look forward to further strengthening our existing relationship and assure you of our best services.

With kind regards,

Yours sincerely,
For ICRA Limited

Anil Gupta

Senior Vice President

Co-Group Head — Financial Sector Ratings
anilg@icraindia.com

Electric Mansion, 3rd Floor Tel.: +91.22.61693300 Website: www.icra.in
Appasaheb Marathe Marg CIN : Email: info@icraindia.com
Prabhadevi, Mumbai-400025 L.749999D1.1991PLC042749 Helpdesk: +91 9354738909

Registered Office: B-710, Statesman House, 148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi 110001.Tel. :+91.11.23357940-45

RATING RESEARCH INFORMATION


mailto:anilg@icraindia.com

Annexure

LIST OF ALL INSTRUMENT RATED (WITH AMOUNT OUTSTANDING)

Rated Instrument/ Rated Amount Amount Outstanding Rating Action

ISIN (In Rs. crore) (In Rs. crore)

NCD

INE836B07477/ 25.00 0.00 [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
INE836B07717 50.00 50.00 [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
INE836B07725 20.00 20.00 [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
INE836B07733 53.82 53.82 [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
INE836B07741 15.00 15.00 [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
INE836B07766 14.17 14.17 [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
INE836B07758 26.83 26.83 [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
INE836B07774 30.00 30.00 [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
Proposed issuance 100.00 - [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
Yet to be placed 240.18 - [ICRA]A- (Stable); Revalidated
Total 575.00 209.82

ARedeemed in Jul 2023

Electric Mansion, 3rd Floor
Appasaheb Marathe Marg

Prabhadevi, Mumbai-400025
Registered Office: B-710, Statesman House, 148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi 110001.Tel. :+91.11.23357940-45

RATING

Tel.: +91.22.61693300
CIN:
L749999DL1991PLC042749

RESEARCH

Website: www.icra.in

Email: info@icraindia.com
Helpdesk: +91 9354738909

INFORMATION



ICRA

June 09, 2023

Satin Creditcare Network Ltd.: Ratings assigned/reaffirmed and outlook revised to
Stable from Negative; Rating reaffirmed and withdrawn for Rs. 60-crore sub-debt
programme

Summary of rating action

Previous Rated Amount Current Rated Amount

o . .
Instrument o) (Rs. crore) Rating Action
Commercial paper 200.00 200.00 [ICRAJAL; Reaffirmed
[ICRA]A- (Stable); Reaffirmed and
Non-convertible debentures 75.00 75.00 outlook revised to Stable from
Negative
Non-convertible debentures - 500.00 [ICRAJA- (Stable); Assigned
[ICRA]A- (Stable); Reaffirmed and
Subordinated debt 40.00 40.00 outlook revised to Stable from
Negative
[ICRA]A- (Stable); Reaffirmed and
subordinated debt 60.00 ) outloqk reV|seq to Stable from
Negative and simultaneously
withdrawn
[ICRA]A- (Stable); Reaffirmed and
Long-term/sh?rt-term fund-based 2,500.00 2.500.00 outloqk revised to Stable from
term bank facilities programme Negative

[ICRA]AL; Reaffirmed
Long-term fund-based term
loan facilities programme

Total 2,915.00 3,355.00

40.00 40.00 [ICRA]A (CE) (Stable); outstanding

*Instrument details are provided in Annexure |
For the credit enhanced rating of the entity, refer to the rationales given in the structured finance section here

Rationale

The revision in the outlook factors in the gradual waning of the impact of Covid-19 pandemic-induced disruptions on Satin
Creditcare Network Ltd.’s (SCNL) overall credit profile. Earlier, the Negative outlook had factored in the impact of the pandemic
on the company’s growth, asset quality and profitability. However, SCNL has now increased its disbursements, which has led
to a growth of ~20% in its consolidated assets under management (AUM) to Rs. 9,115 crore as on March 31, 2023. It also
witnessed a gradual improvement in its asset quality and profitability in the last few quarters, though the same remains
moderate.

The ratings continue to factor in SCNL's established presence in the Indian microfinance landscape as it is one of the largest
players in the sector as per portfolio size. Further, its healthy geographical diversification, experienced management team and
diversified funding profile support its credit profile.

ICRA notes that SCNL's asset quality metrics and profitability indicators remain subdued, but have been improving quarter-on-
quarter. ICRA expects the trend to continue. On the asset quality front, SCNL’s gross monitorable book, which includes the
standard restructured book of Rs. 41 crore, security receipts (SRs) of ~Rs. 86 crore (net SRs of Rs. 59 crore) and gross non-
performing assets (GNPAs) of Rs. 185 crore as on March 31, 2023, declined to 5% of the standalone on-book portfolio as on
March 31, 2023 from ~25% as on March 31, 2022. In addition, SCNL was carrying adequate provision for the same.

SCNL also witnessed an improvement in its consolidated profitability in Q4 FY2023 as it reported a profit after tax (PAT) of Rs.
99 crore during the quarter. Nonetheless, its annual PAT for FY2023 stood at Rs. 5 crore, translating into a return on average
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managed assets (RoOMA) of 0.0% against Rs. 21 crore and 0.2%, respectively, in FY2022. ICRA expects the profitability to
continue improving and SCNL'’s ability to contain its credit costs while improving its operational efficiency shall remain key for
its profitability. The ratings also remain constrained by the high consolidated managed gearing of 5.5 times as on March 31,
2023 compared to 5.0 times as on March 31, 2022. SCNL raised some equity in FY2023 and is expected to raise further equity
in the current fiscal. Nevertheless, ICRA expects the company to raise further equity in the near term to support its growth
plans, to improve its gearing and to have adequate cushion for future contingencies.

The ratings continue to factor in the risks associated with the unsecured nature of microfinance loans, the marginal borrower
profile, which is susceptible to income shocks, and the political and operational risks inherent in the microfinance business.

The outstanding rating on SCNL’s Rs. 60-crore subordinated debt programme has been withdrawn in accordance with ICRA’s
policy on the withdrawal of credit ratings and as requested by the company. The rated instrument was fully repaid and no
amount is outstanding against the same.

Key rating drivers and their description

Credit strengths

Established track record and healthy scale of operations — SCNL has an established track record of operations of more than
three decades in the finance industry and is one of the largest players in the microfinance industry with a consolidated AUM
of Rs. 9,115 crore as on March 31, 2023 compared to Rs. 7,617 crore as on March 31, 2022, up ~20%. SCNL’s standalone AUM
grew ~24% in FY2023, leading to an AUM of Rs. 7,929 crore as on March 31, 2023. Through its subsidiaries, SCNL has diversified
its product base into other asset classes like affordable housing (ticket size of up to Rs. 40 lakh), micro, small and medium
enterprise (MSME) finance (ticket size of up to Rs. 15 lakh). Satin Housing Finance Limited (SHFL) and Satin Finserv Limited
(SFL) are profitable while operating at low leverage levels and have better asset quality so far. However, these subsidiaries are
in a nascent stage of operations and their ability to grow their scale while improving/maintaining the aforementioned
parameters shall be key for SCNL’s consolidated profile.

Diversified funding profile — SCNL has a well-diversified funding profile comprising of 65 active lenders as on March 31, 2023.
Its funding profile has improved steadily over time with term loans from banks and non-banking financial companies
(NBFCs)/financial institutions (FIs) accounting for ~51%, outstanding non-convertible debentures (NCDs) accounting for ~16%
and assignment and other sources accounting for the balance (~33%) as on March 31, 2023. Nevertheless, further traction on
fund raising through multiple sources would be needed to achieve the stated growth targets.

Geographically diversified operations — SCNL has a wide geographical reach with a presence in 24 states and Union Territories
(UTs) across 405 districts through 1,287 branches (consolidated level) as on March 31, 2023. At the district level, 96% of SCNL's
districts had a share of less than 1% of the AUM, as on March 31, 2023 and only one district had a share of more than 2% of
the AUM. The diversification at the district level has improved over the years and is expected to improve further as the
company expands more in the states which currently have a lower share in the AUM.

Credit challenges

Subdued, albeit improving, asset quality and profitability metrics — SCNL reported standalone GNPAs on its on-book portfolio
of 3.3% as on March 31, 2023 compared to 8.0% as on March 31, 2022. The improvement in the GNPAs was on account of
substantial write-offs in FY2023. SCNL’s standard restructured loan book declined to around 1% of its standalone loan book as
on March 31, 2023, driven by recoveries and write-offs. SCNL also had outstanding SRs of Rs. 86 crore (net SRs of Rs. 59 crore)
as on March 31, 2023. Its total monitorable book (GNPA + standard restructured book and SRs) reduced to 5% as on March 31,
2023 from 27% as on March 31, 2022, though it remains moderate. The company’s ability to reduce/contain further slippages
shall remain a key monitorable.

With elevated credit costs, the company’s profitability also declined. It reported a consolidated PAT of Rs. 5 crore in FY2023
vis-a-vis Rs. 21 crore in FY2022. However, the profitability has been improving quarter-on-quarter and ICRA expects the trend
to continue with the expectation of limited incremental credit costs. The company’s ability to do so would remain a
monitorable.
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High managed gearing — SCNL’s consolidated managed gearing® was 5.5 times as on March 31, 2023 compared to 5.0 times as
on March 31, 2022. The increase was on account of lower rise in the consolidated net worth in FY2023 against the higher
increase in the AUM. ICRA notes that the company is in the process of raising capital of around Rs. 88 crore? in the near term.
ICRA expects that additional capital, over and above the capital raise in the pipeline, would be required to support the
consolidated growth and provide cushion for the absorption of any further credit losses.

Marginal borrower profile and limited product and revenue diversification — Although SCNL has ventured into housing and
MSME lending through its subsidiaries, its product diversification remains low with the concentration primarily being in the
microfinance segment. Also, the company’s portfolio remains relatively risky, given the unsecured nature of the same.
Unsecured lending to the marginal borrower profile and the political and operational risks associated with microlending may
result in high volatility in the asset quality indicators. The microfinance industry is prone to socio-political and operational risks,
which could negatively impact the company’s operations and thus its financial position as has been seen during the pandemic.
SCNL’s ability to onboard borrowers with a good credit history, recruit and retain employees and maintain geographical
diversity would be a key rating sensitivity.

Environment and social risks

Environmental — While microfinance institutions (MFIs) like SCNL do not face material physical climate risks, they are exposed
to environmental risks indirectly through their portfolio of assets. If the borrowers, to whom such MFIs have an exposure, face
livelihood disruption because of physical climate adversities, it could translate into credit risks for the MFIs. However, such risk
is not material for SCNL as it benefits from adequate geographical diversification in its portfolio. Further, the lending is for
loans with a tenure of around 2 years, which will allow it to adapt and take incremental exposure on borrowers facing relatively
fewer downside environmental risks.

Social — With regard to social risks, data security and customer privacy are among the key sources of vulnerability for MFls, as
any material lapse could be detrimental to their reputation and invite regulatory censure. SCNL has not faced such lapses over
the years, which highlights its sensitivity to such risks. Further, it contributes to promoting financial inclusion by lending to
underserved women borrowers largely in rural areas.

Liquidity position: Strong

SCNL had a free cash and liquid balance of Rs. 1,029 crore as on March 31, 2023 with debt obligations (including interest) of
Rs. 1,740 crore due over the next six months. Factoring in collections of Rs. 1,674 crore due over the next six months, SCNL’s
liquidity position is strong. Even with NIL collections, the company’s liquidity along with unavailed sanctions (Rs. 580 crore as
on March 31, 2023) would be sufficient to cover three months of debt obligations.

Rating sensitivities

Positive factors — ICRA could revise the outlook to Positive or upgrade the ratings if the company is able to grow its scale of
operations and improve its profitability indicators (with RoMA of more than 2.5%) and asset quality indicators while
maintaining a prudent capitalisation profile on a consistent basis.

Negative factors — Pressure on the ratings could arise if there is deterioration in the asset quality metrics, which could affect
the profitability, going forward (RoMA of less than 1.5%), on a sustained basis. Further, weakening of the capitalisation profile
with a managed gearing of more than 6 times or a stretch in the liquidity could exert pressure on the ratings.

1 Managed gearing = (on-book debt + off-book portfolio) / net worth
2 SCNL raised Rs. 62 crore in FY2023; Rs. 88 crore planned to be raised is part of outstanding share warrants issued under preferential issue
approved in January 2021
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Analytical approach

Analytical Approach Comments

Rating methodology for non-banking finance companies
Applicable rating methodologies Policy on Withdrawal of Credit Ratings
Rating approach — Consolidation

Parent/Group support Not applicable

Consolidation/Standalone The ratings are based on the consolidated financial profile of the company

About the company

SCNL, set up in 1990 to provide individual business loans to urban shopkeepers, started providing group lending services to
the rural poor in 2008. It was registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a deposit-taking NBFC under the name, Satin
Leasing and Finance Company Limited. Following its conversion into a public limited company in 1994, the company was
renamed Satin Creditcare Network Ltd. In 2000. It stopped accepting public deposits from November 2004 and the RBI changed
its classification to Category B (non-deposit taking) from Category A (deposit-taking) in February 2009 and converted it into an
NBFC-microfinance institution (NBFC-MFI) in November 2013. The company’s microfinance operations are based on the
Grameen Bank joint liability group (JLG) model and were spread across 1,078 branches in the country as on March 31, 2023
on a standalone basis and 1,287 branches for the group as a whole.

SCNL is listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). As on March 31, 2023,
the company’s consolidated AUM stood at Rs. 9,115 crore. It reported a net profit of Rs. 5 crore in FY2023 against Rs. 21 crore
in FY2022 at the consolidated level.

Key financial indicators (consolidated; audited)

Satin Creditcare Network Ltd. FY2021 FY2022 FY2023
Accounting as per Ind AS Ind AS Ind AS
Total income 1,3741 1,381 1,559
Profit after tax (14) 21 5
Net worth 1,452 1,548 1,594
Gross AUM 8,379 7,617 9,115
Total managed assets 10,682 9,988 10,595
Return on average managed assets -0.1% 0.2% 0.0%
Return on average net worth -1.0% 1.4% 0.3%
On-book gearing (times) 4.3 3.7 3.7
Managed gearing (times) 5.9 5.0 5.5
GNPA (standalone) 8.4% 8.0% 3.3%
NNPA (standalone) 4.7% 2.4% 1.5%
Solvency (NNPA/Net worth) 17.8% 7.6% 4.4%
CRAR (standalone) 25.3% 27.8% 26.6%

Source: Company, ICRA Research; All ratios as per ICRA’s calculations; Amount in Rs. crore

Managed gearing = (on-book debt + off-book portfolio) / net worth; Net worth is adjusted for goodwill

Total managed assets = Total of balance sheet + ECL provision + Off-book portfolio — Goodwill; For Mar-23, the value does not include ECL provision
GNPA, NNPA, NNPA/Net worth and CRAR are on standalone basis
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Status of non-cooperation with previous CRA: Not applicable
Any other information:

SCNL also faces prepayment risk, given the possibility of debt acceleration upon the breach of covenants, including financial,
operating and rating-linked covenants. Upon failure to meet the covenants, if the company is unable to get waivers from the
lenders/investors or the lenders/investors do not provide it with adequate time to arrange for alternative funding to pay off
the accelerated loans, the ratings would face pressure.

Rating history for past three years

Current Rating (FY2024) Chronology of Rating History
for the Past 3 Years

Date &
Amount Rating in L Date & Rating in Date & Rating
Outstanding Ing i Date & Rating in FY2023

as of Apr 30, FY2024 FY2022 in FY2021

2023 Mar 28 Sep19, | Apri2, Jul 20, Aug 4, 2020
U} '’
(Rs. crore) 2023 2022 2022 2021 &

Commercial Short [ICRA]AL
1 200 0 [ICRA]AL [ICRA]JA1 [ICRA]AL [ICRA]JA1 | [ICRA]JA1 [ICRA]AL
paper term
[ICRA]A-
, Neo Long - 0 (stable) [ICRAJA- = [ICRAJA-  [ICRAJA- = [ICRAJA- | [ICRA]A- [ICRA]A-
programme term (Negative) (Negative) (Negative) (Negative) (Stable) (Stable)
[ICRA]A-
3 Subordinated | Long 20 20 (stable) [ICRAJA- = [ICRAJA-  [ICRAJA- = [ICRAJA-  [ICRA]A- [ICRA]A-
debt term (Negative) (Negative) (Negative) (Negative) (Stable) (Stable)
Lon, ICRA]A-
Fund-based & [ ! [ICRA]A-
. term/ (Stable)/ N
4 bank facilities 2,500 2,241.72 (Negative)/
Short [ICRA]AL
programme [ICRA]JAL
term
NCD L [ICRAIA- [ICRAJA
on -
5 & 50 50 (Stable)
programme term (Negative)
NCD . [ICRA]A-
6 oM 500 ) (Stable)
programme term
[ICRA]A-
; Subordinated | Long - (stable); [ICRAJA- = [ICRAJA-  [ICRAJA- = [ICRAJA-  [ICRA]A- [ICRA]A-
debt term withdram;n (Negative) (Negative) (Negative) (Negative) (Stable) (Stable)

Complexity level of the rated instruments

Instrument Complexity Indicator

NCD programme Simple
Subordinated debt Moderately complex
Commercial paper Very simple
Fund-based bank facilities programme Simple

The Complexity Indicator refers to the ease with which the returns associated with the rated instrument could be estimated.
It does not indicate the risk related to the timely payments on the instrument, which is rather indicated by the instrument's
credit rating. It also does not indicate the complexity associated with analysing an entity's financial, business, industry risks or
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complexity related to the structural, transactional or legal aspects. Details on the complexity levels of the instruments are
available on ICRA’s website: Click Here
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Annexure I: Instrument details

(SIN Instrument Name Date of Coupon Maturity Amount Rated Current Rating and
Issuance Rate (Rs. crore) Outlook
Not issued CP programme NA NA NA 200.00 [ICRA] A1
INE836B07477  NCD programme Jul-31-2020 10.95%  Jul-31-2023 25.00 [ICRA]A- (Stable)
INE836B07717  NCD programme Apr-6-2023 NA Oct-6-2024 50.00 [ICRA]A- (Stable)
To be issued NCD programme NA NA NA 500.00 [ICRA]A- (Stable)
INE836B08046  Subordinated debt Jul-29-2016 15.00%  Jun-30-2021 25.00 [ICRAJA- (Stable);
withdrawn
INE836B08061  Subordinated debt Dec-30-2015 15.50%  Apr-13-2022 25.00 [ICRAJA- (Stable);
withdrawn
INE836B08095  Subordinated debt Jun-28-2016 15.50%  Sep-28-2022 10.00 [ICRAJA- (Stable);
withdrawn
INE836B08269° Subordinated debt  Jun-29-2016 15.00%  Sep-30-2023 10.00 [ICRAJA- (Stable)
INE836B08277°  Subordinated debt Jun-29-2016 15.00%  Sep-30-2023 10.00 [ICRAJA- (Stable)
INE836B08244° Subordinated debt Jun-29-2016 15.00%  Sep-30-2023 10.00 [ICRAJA- (Stable)
INES36B08251° Subordinated debt  Jun-29-2016 15.00%  Sep-30-2023 10.00 [ICRAJA- (Stable)

LT/ST fund-based
bank facilities

[ICRAJA- (Stable)/ [ICRAJA1

NA NA NA NA 2,500

Source: Company

Please click here to view details of lender-wise facilities rated by ICRA

Annexure ll: List of entities considered for consolidated analysis

Company Name SCNL Consolidation
pany Ownership Approach
Satin Finserv Limited 100.00% Full Consolidation
Satin Housing Finance Limited 100.00% Full Consolidation

3 IsIn changed from INE836B08103
41sIN changed from INE836B08111
> ISIN changed from INE836B808129
6 ISIn changed from INE836B08137
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Believe in yourself... Trust us! "E;;._
CL/DEB/23-24/553/003 Date : 29-Sep-2023
To,

Harsh Shah,

Satin Credit Care Network Limited,
Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase - llI,
Gurgaon, Haryana,

India 122016.

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Re: Consent to act as a Debenture Trustee for Private Placement of Fully Paid, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable, Transferable, Secured, Non-Convertible Debentures of X 25.00 Crores with green shoe
option of X 25.00 Crores aggregating upto % 50.00 Crores.

We refer to your letter dated 29.09.2023, requesting us to convey our consent to act as the Debenture
Trustee for captioned issue of Debentures.

We hereby convey our acceptance to act as Debenture Trustees for the said issue Debentures,
subject to execution of Debenture Trustee Agreement as per Regulation 13 of SEBI (Debenture
Trustee) Regulations, 1993, thereby agreeing to execute Debenture Trust Deed and to create the
security if applicable within the timeline as per relevant Laws / Regulations and in the Offer
Document / Information Memorandum / Disclosure Document / Placement Memorandum and
company agreeing / undertaking to comply with the provisions of SEBI ( Debenture Trustee )
Regulations, 1993, SEBI (Issue and Listing o f Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations 2021, SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
thereunder and other applicable laws as amended from time to time.

Fee Structure for the proposed transaction will be as per annexure A.

Assuring you of the best professional services.
Thanking you.

Yours faithfully,

N P
Y

Name : Rohit Sisodia

Designation : Senior Manager

b

\ )

| Rl
CATALYST TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED (FORMERLY GOA TRUSTEESIIP UkTED) ' : o SRS e SMIB0:8001 Company
Mumbai Office Windsor, 6" Floor, Office No. 604, C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400 098 Tel 191 (022) 4922 0555 Fax +91 (022) 4922 0505 E] ' E
Regd. Office GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune 411 038 Tel 191 (020) 25280081 Fax +91 (020) 25280275 D
Delhi Office  Office No. 810, 8th Floor, Kailash Building, 26, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi - 110001 Tel 11 430 29101/02
CIN No. U74999PN1997PLCI0262 Email di@ctitrustee.com Waebsite www.catalysttrustee.com [u]

Pune | Mumbal | Bengaluru | Delhi | Chennal
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ERIENCE TRANSFORMATION

October 9, 2023

To,

SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LIMITED
Address: Plot No. 492, Phase-lll,

Udyog Vihar, Gurugram, Haryana-122016

Sub: Our Consent to act as registrar and transfer agent for NCDs issue

Dear Sir,

With reference your letter dated October 9, 2023, we, KFin Technologies Limited, give our consent to
act as Registrar for issue of 5,000 (five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable,
transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated in Indian Rupees ("INR"), having a face value
of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 50,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees Fifty Crore) including a green shoe option ("Green Shoe Option") of 2,500 (two
thousand and five hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable, redeemable, transferable, non-
convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One
Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Five Crore)
(“Debentures”) on private placement basis, in accordance with SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, including, amendments, if any and sections 42, 71, 179 (3)
(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with Rule
14(2) and other applicable provisions of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules,
2014, Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

Further, we give our consent for inclusion of our name as "Registrar to the Issue" in the Disclosure
Document and /or applications to be made or to be filed by Stock Exchange(s) and/or Depositories in
this regard.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
For KFin Technologies Limited

-y

Shaibal Haripada Roy
Corporate Registry

KFin Technologies Limited
Registered & Corporate Office:
Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,

Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India, 500032.
| CIN: L72400TG2017PLC117649 |
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CTL/23-24/03138
(Annexure Il A)

DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE TO BE GIVEN BY THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE AT THE TIME OF FILING THE
DRAFT OFFER DOCUMENT OR PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM/ INFORMATION MEMORANDUM
(Applicable for Secured and Unsecured Issuances)

To,

The Manager,

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400001.

Dear Sir / Madam,

SUB.: ISSUE UP TO 5,000 (FIVE THOUSAND) SENIOR, SECURED, RATED, LISTED, TAXABLE,
REDEEMABLE, TRANSFERABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES DENOMINATED IN
INDIAN RUPEES ("INR"), HAVING A FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES ONE
LAKH) EACH AND AN AGGREGATE FACE VALUE OF INR 50,00,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES
FIFTY CRORE) INCLUDING A GREEN SHOE OPTION OF 2,500 (TWO THOUSAND AND FIVE
HUNDRED) SENIOR, SECURED, RATED, LISTED, TAXABLE, REDEEMABLE, TRANSFERABLE,
NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES DENOMINATED IN INR, HAVING A FACE VALUE OF INR
1,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH) EACH AND AN AGGREGATE FACE VALUE OF INR
25,00,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES TWENTY FIVE CRORE) FOR CASH AT PAR ON PRIVATE
PLACEMENT BASIS BY SATIN CREDITCARE LIMITED.

We, the debenture trustee(s) to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue state as follows:

1) We have examined documents pertaining to the said issue and other such relevant documents,
reports and certifications.

2) On the basis of such examination and of the discussions with the Issuer, its directors and other
officers, other agencies and on independent verification of the various relevant documents, reports
and certifications:

We confirm that:

a) The Issuer has made adequate provisions for and/or has taken steps to provide for adequate
security for the debt securities to be issued and listed.

b) The Issuer has obtained the permissions / consents necessary for creating security on the said
property(ies).

c) The Issuer has made all the relevant disclosures about the security and its continued obligations
towards the holders of debt securities.

d) Issuer has adequately disclosed all consents/ permissions required for creation of further charge
on assets in offer document or private placement memorandum/ information memorandum and
all disclosures made in the offer document or private placement memorandum/ information
memorandum with respect to creation of security are in confirmation with the clauses of
debenture trustee agreement.

An 1S0:9001 Company

CATALYST TRUSTEESH]P L‘MITED (FORMERLY GDA TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED)

Mumbai Office Windsor, 6" Floor, Office No. 604, C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400 098 Tel +91 (022) 4922 0555 Fax +91 (022) 4922 0505
Regd. Office GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune 411 038 Tel +91 (020) 25280081 Fax +91 (020) 25280275

Delhi Office Office No. 810, 8th Floor, Kailash Building, 26, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi - 110001 Tel 11 430 29101/02.

CIN No. U74999PN1997PLC110262 Email dt@ctltrustee.com Website www.catalysttrustee.com

Pune | Mumbai | Bengaluru | Delhi | Chennai
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e) Issuer has given an undertaking that charge shall be created in favour of debenture trustee as per
terms of issue before filing of listing application.

f) Issuer has disclosed all covenants proposed to be included in debenture trust deed (including any
side letter, accelerated payment clause etc.), offer document or private placement
memorandum/ information memorandum and given an undertaking that debenture trust deed
would be executed before filing of listing application.

g) Alldisclosures made in the draft offer document or private placement memorandum/ information
memorandum with respect to the debt securities are true, fair and adequate to enable the
investors to make a well-informed decision as to the investment in the proposed issue.

Place: Mumbai
Date: October 09, 2023
For Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

For CATALYST TRU

HIP LIMITED

Authorised Signatory

Ms. Kalyani Pandey
Compliance Officer

An 1S0:9001 Company
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EXPERIENCE THE NEW

DCS/COMP/PG/IP-PPDI/180/23-24 July 24,2023

SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LIMITED
5th Floor, Kundan Bhawan

Azadpur Commercial Complex

Azadpur, New Delhi-110033

Dear Sir/Madam

Re: Private Placement of Rated, Listed, Taxable, Redeemable, Transferable, Non-Convertible
Debentures having a face value of Rs. 1 Lakh each (The Issue) (GID No. 2023-24/001)

We acknowledge receipt of your application on the online portal on July 20, 2023 seeking In-principle
approval for issue of captioned security. In this regard, the Exchange is pleased to grant In-principle
approval for listing of captioned security subject to fulfilling the following conditions at the time of
seeking listing:

1. Filing of listing application.

2. Payment of fees as may be prescribed from time to time.

3. Compliance with SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 read with
SEBI Circular No SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 and circulars issued thereunder

and also Compliance with provisions of Companies Act 2013.

4. Receipt of Statutory & other approvals & compliance of guidelines issued by the statutory authorities
including SEBI, RBI, DCA etc. as may be applicable.

5. Compliance with change in the guidelines, regulations, directions, circulars of the Exchange, SEBI or
any other statutory authorities, documentary requirements from time to time.

6. Compliance with below mentioned circular dated June 10, 2020 issued by BSE before opening of the
issue to the investors:
https://www.bseindia.com/markets/Marketinfo/DispNewNoticesCirculars.aspx?page=20200610-31

7. Issuers, for whom use of EBP is not mandatory, specific attention is drawn towards compliance with

Chapter XV of SEBI Circular No SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 and BSE Circular

No 20210519-29 dated May 19, 2021. Accordingly, Issuers of privately placed debt securities in terms

of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 or ILDM Regulations for whom

accessing the electronic book platform (EBP) is not mandatory shall upload details of the issue with any

one of the EBPs within one working day of such issuance. The details can be uploaded using the ‘
following links Electronic Issuance - Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (bseindia.com).

BSE Limited (Formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Lid.)
Reg|5tered Office : Floor 25 P J Towers, Dolql Sireei Mumbai 400 GGI lndlc_ k




EXPERIENCE THE NEW
8. It is advised that Face Value of NCDs issue through private placement basis should be kept as per

Chapter V of SEBI Circular No SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 and SEBI Circular _
No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2022/00144 dated October 28, 2022. ‘ !

9. Issuers are hereby advised to comply with signing of agreements with both the depositories as per
Regulation 7 of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI
Circular No SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021.

10. Company is further requested to comply with SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-
RACPOD1/CIR/P/2023/56 dated April 13, 2023, (if applicable) read along with BSE Circular
https://www.bseindia.com/markets/Marketinfo/DispNewNoticesCirculars.aspx?page=20230428-18
and ensure compliance of the same.

This In-Principle Approval is valid for a period of 1 year from the date of issue of this letter or period of
1 year from the date of opening of the first offer of debt securities under the shelf placement
memorandum and General information Document, which ever applicable. The Exchange reserves its |
right to withdraw its in-principle approval at any later stage if the information submitted to the Exchange |
is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/misleading/false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and
Regulations of the Exchange, SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021
read with SEBI Circular No SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 and circulars issued
thereunder, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Guidelines/Regulations issued by the statutory authorities etc. Further, it is subject to payment of all
applicable charges levied by the Exchange for usage of any system, software or similar such facilities
provided by BSE which the Company shall avail to process the application of securities for which
approval is given vide this letter.

Yours faithfully,
For BSE Limited

—

Tushar Kamath _ Akshay Arolkar
Deputy General Manager Deputy Manager

S&P®3SE
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CSATIN SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LTD.

Reaching out!

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE FIRST MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21 HELD ON
FRIDAY, MAY 15, 2020 THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING

CONSIDERATION, DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF THE REVISION IN THE COMPOSITION, SCOPE AND
FUNCTIONS OF WORKING COMMITTEE OF THE COMPANY

RESOLVED THAT in suppression of all earlier resolution(s) passed in this regard, the consent of the Board of Directors of
the Company be and is hereby accorded to revise the composition of ‘Working Committee’, with the following

Directors/officials:

SIL. Category/Designation of Directors/ Officials of the | Current Name of Designation

No. Company who is eligible to become member Members

1. Chairman cum Managing Director Mr. H P Singh Chairman

2 Promoter, Non-Executive Director Mr. Satvinder Singh Member o

3 Group Controller Mr. Jugal Kataria Member

4 Chief Financial Officer Mr Krishan Gopal Member ;

5 Head - Accounts Mr Amit Kumar Member I
Gupta

6 | Head - Finance Mrs. Urvashi Tyagi Member

7 . Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Mr. Adhish Swaroop Secretary to the Committee

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Working Committee shall meet as often as required and the quorum for the meeting

shall be any three members or such other number as determined by Chairman of the Working Committee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 and RBI Guidelines (to the extent of its applicability) and applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and in suppression of earlier resolution(s) passed in this regard, ‘scope and function’ of Working

Committee of the Company as placed hereunder before the Board be and is hereby considered, discussed and approved:
Scope and Function of Working Committee:

i. Accepting Loan from various Banks/Financial Institutions/entity both domestic and foreign;

ii. Transaction related to securitization/ assignment and External Commercial Borrowings/ issuance of Non-Convertible
Debentures and through any other way as stipulated and permissible under laws;

iii. Raising of funds through issuance of Commercial Papers upto face value of INR 1,000 Crore (within overall borrowing
limit as approved by members of the Company from time to time in terms of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013;

iv. To invest the funds of the Company to the extent permissible under applicable laws;

v. To open/apply for placing fixed deposit with any Bank/financial institutions/Non-Banking Financial Companies, to the
extent permissible under applicable laws;

vi. To grant loans or give guarantee or provide security in respect of loans to the extent permissible under applicable laws;

vii. To open demat/trading account with any depository participant(s) and to do all necessary needful in this regard;

viii.  Pledge, Mortgage and/or Charge in all or any part of the movable or immovable properties of the Company and the
whole or part of the undertaking of the Company of every nature and kind whatsoever;

ix.  Allotment of Securities to the extent permissible under the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws;

o N
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LSATIN SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LTD.

Affixation of common seal in terms of Articles of Association of the Company, wherever required to Iﬁﬂﬂdﬂiﬂg out!
transactions;
xi.  Opening of Current Accounts at different places in India;
xil.  Any changes in authorised signatories who operate such accounts;
xiii.  Apply for Net Banking and consequent changes in their authority to operate;
xiv.  Any closure of existing Current Account of the Company;
xv. Any other matter relating to the operations of various bank accounts and other general purposes of the Company;
xvi. To invest funds of the Company by way purchase of portfolio from other NBFC-MFI in compliance with applicable
laws and Board approved policy in this regard;
xvil. To undertake hedges (including and not limited to Interest Rate Swaps, Currency Swaps, Options (Vanilla & Cost
Reduction, Forward Contracts) in relation to External Commercial Borrowings or other Foreign Currency Borrowings;
xviii. Adoption/ implementation of Company’s policies, business/ operations/ administrative/ compliance requirement to run
the business smoothly on the day to day basis; and

Xix. Any other general purpose related to grant authorization to perform day to day affairs of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Working Committee of the Company be and is hereby authorised to borrow for growing
needs of business with various Banks/Financial Institutions/entities both domestic and international with any one lender in one
or more tranches from time to time without any limit and upto the limit as granted to the Board by members of the Company

from time to time pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Working Committee of the Company be and is hereby further authorized to pledge,
mortgage and/or charge in all or any part of the moveable or immovable properties of the Company and the whole or part of
the undertaking of the Company of every nature and kind whatsoever and/or creating a floating charge in all or any movable
or immovable properties of the Company and the whole of the undertaking of the Company to or in favour of Banks/Financial
Institutions, any other lenders or debenture trustees to secure the amount borrowed by the Company or any third party from
time to time for the due payment of the principal together with interest, charges, costs, expenses and all other monies payable
by the Company or any third party in respect of such borrowings upto the limit as granted to the Board by members of the
Company from time to time pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to applicable laws, the Working Committee be and is hereby further authorized to
give power to any Director, official/employee or any other person to execute the necessary documents in this regard on behalf

of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT copy of the foregoing resolution certified to be true under the hands of any Director or
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company for the time being in office be submitted to all those who may

need the same for the purpose of their reference, record and acting in accordance therewith.”

For Satin Creditcare Nétwork Limited

,

Company, Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
M.No.: 4 QA2

-2 K ==

Date: August 11, 2023
Place: Gurugram
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cSATIN SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LTD.

Reaching out!

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE MEETING OF BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OF SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LIMITED HELD ON MONDAY,
JULY 10, 2023 AT PLOT NO. 492, UDYOG VIHAR, PHASE-III, GURUGRAM-122016,
HARYANA, INDIA

APPROVAL FOR ISSUANCE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES UPTO INR 5,000
CRORE

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 23, 42, 71 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, including any
statutory modification(s), amendment(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021, as amended, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10,2021 on “Operational Circular for issue and listing
of Non-Convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt
Securities and Commercial Paper”, each as amended and the enabling provision of the listing
agreements entered into with the stock exchanges where the shares or other securities of the Company
are listed, the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) Master Directions on Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 and all other rules, regulations, guidelines, notifications, clarifications and circulars,
if any, issued by any statutory/regulatory authority, as may be applicable, the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company and subject to such consents, approvals, permissions and sanctions of
the concerned statutory and regulatory authorities, if any and to the extent necessary, and subject to
approval of the Shareholders of the Company, the consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded to
create, offer, invite for subscription, issue and allot non-convertible debentures ((a) subordinated, (b)
listed or unlisted, (c) senior secured, (d) senior unsecured, () unsecured, (f) market linked debentures,
(g) perpetual or non-perpetual, and/or (h) any others (as may be determined)) (“NCDs”) by way of
private placement, in | (one) or more series or tranches, from time to time, to any category of investors
eligible to invest in the NCDs, provided that the aggregate amount to be raised through the issuance of
NCDs shall not collectively exceed an overall limit of INR 5,000,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five
Thousand Crore only) (“Limit”) on such terms and conditions including the price, coupon, premium /
discount on face value, redemption premium, tenor etc., and at such times whether at
par/premium/discount, as may be determined by the Board to such person or persons including one or
more company(ies), bodies corporate, foreign portfolio investor(s), overseas fund(s), statutory
corporation(s), commercial bank(s), domestic and multilateral lending agency(ies), financial
institution(s), insurance company(ies), mutual fund(s), alternative investment funds, pension/provident
funds, family office(s), and individual(s), as the case may be or such other person/persons/investors as
the Board may so decide/approve in its absolute discretion, for a period of 1 (one) year, from the date
of approval of this resolution by the Shareholders of the Company and the Limit shall be subject to the
overall borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the Shareholders of the Company from time
to time under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act.

<
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CSATIN SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LTD.

Reaching out!

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, Chairman cum
Managing Director and Working Committee of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized
and empowered to arrange, settle and determine the terms and conditions of issue of NCDs including
but not limited to determining size, issue price, timing, tenure, interest rate of NCDs, listing of NCDs,
if required, creation of security, utilization of the issue proceeds, appointment of debenture trustee(s),
Registrar and Transfer Agent, Legal Counsel and other agency(ies) etc., as it may think fit and to do all
necessary acts and things and to execute all deeds, documents, instruments, papers and writings as may
be required to give effect to these resolutions and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may
arise in this regard in its sole and absolute discretion as may be deemed fit and to delegate all or any of
its powers herein conferred to any committee of the Board, Director(s) and/ or officer(s) of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Chairman cum Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to
file necessary forms with the jurisdictional Registrar of Companies or other regulatory authorities and
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary or desirable for giving effect to this
resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT copies of the foregoing resolutions certified to be true copies by any
director or Company Secretary of the Company be furnished to such persons as may be deemed
necessary.”

2\

For Sxti\n Creditcafe Network Limited

A
(Vikas Gupta)
' tary & Chief Compliance Officer

Date: August 11, 2023
Place: Gurugram
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CSATIN SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LTD.

Reaching out!

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE 384™ MEETING OF
THE WORKING COMMITTEE ("COMMITTEE") OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
("BOARD™") OF SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LIMITED ("COMPANY") HELD ON
FRIDAY, OCTOBER 6,2023, AT PLOT NO. 492, UDYOG VIHAR, PHASE-II1, GURUGRAM-
122016, HARYANA, INDIA

APPROVAL OF PROPOSED ISSUANCE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, including any statutory modifications
or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force (the "Companies Act"), the rules, regulations,
guidelines, notifications, and circulars prescribed by the Government of India, all applicable
regulations, directions, guidelines, circulars and notifications of the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI"), the
Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), including the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,
1956, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 ("NCS
Regulations"), the SEBI master circular bearing the reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/119 dated August 10, 2021 on "Master Circular for issue and
listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt
Securities and Commercial Paper", each as amended, modified or restated from time to time ("Listed
NCDs Master Circular") or any other regulatory authority, whether in India or abroad, and in
accordance with the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company and
the listing agreements entered into with the stock exchange(s) (the "Stock Exchange(s)") where the
securities of the Company may be listed, and subject to approvals, consents, sanctions, permissions as
may be required from any appropriate statutory and regulatory authorities, and the approval of the
shareholders of the Company as may be required in accordance with the Companies Act, the approval
of the Committee be and is hereby accorded for:

() offer, issue and allotment of up to 5,000 (five thousand) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated in Indian Rupees ("INR"),
having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face
value of INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore) including a green shoe option ("Green
Shoe Option") of 2,500 (two thousand and five hundred) senior, secured, rated, listed, taxable,
redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures denominated in INR, having a face value
of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR
25,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Five Crore) or such other number, face value, amount as
may be determined by the Company ("Debentures"), at a coupon/interest rate of 11.00%
(eleven decimal zero zero percent) per annum payable monthly or such other interest/coupon
rate as may be determined (subject to such step up rate as may be agreed), payable monthly or
at such other interest periods as may be agreed, subject to deduction of taxes at source in
accordance with applicable law, with or without gross up, for a period of 27 (twenty seven)
months or such other tenure/maturity as may be determined, at par, on a private placement basis
to the successful bidders who have applied for subscription of the Debentures on the electronic
book platform in accordance with the SEBI EBP Requirements (as defined below) and which
shall be deemed to be the persons identified by the Company for the purposes of Section 42 of
the Companies Act ("Investor(s)") for raising debt for (i) general corporate purposes of the
Company, (ii) utilisation in the ordinary course of business of the Company including for
repayment/re-financing of existing financial indebtedness of the Company, and/or (iii) such
other purposes as may be agreed with the Investor(s); and 3
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Reaching out!

(b) securing the amounts to be raised pursuant to the issue of the Debentures, together with all
interest and all other amounts and charges thereon (at such ranking/priority and up to such limits
and security cover as may be agreed with the Investor(s)) by one or more of the following: (i)
hypothecation of certain identified book debts/loan receivables and/or other assets of the
Company, and/or (ii) such other security/contractual comfort as may be agreed between the
Company and the Investor(s) ((i) and (ii) are collectively referred to as the ("Transaction
Security")).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh (Chairman cum Managing Director), Mr.
Rakesh Sachdeva (Chief Financial Officer), Mr. Manoj Agrawal (Deputy Chief Financial Officer), Mr.
Manish Kumar Mittal (VP — Finance), Mr. Sunny Shah (GM — Finance), Mr. Deepak Sharma (DGM —
Finance), and Mr. Shamim Akhter (DGM - Finance) (hereinafter referred to as “Authorised Persons”)
be and are hereby severally authorised to do such acts, deeds and things as they deem necessary or
desirable in connection with the finalisation of the terms of, and completing all applicable requirements
for the offer, issue and allotment of the Debentures, including:

(a) seeking, if required, any approval, consent or waiver from any/all concerned governmental and
regulatory authorities and any other person (including any lenders of the Company), and/or any
other approvals, consent or waivers that may be required in connection with the offer, issue and
allotment of the Debentures;

(b) executing the term sheet in relation to the Debentures;

(c) negotiating, approving and deciding the terms of the issue of Debentures and all other related
matters;

(d) seeking and obtaining in-principle approval, if required, from any Stock Exchange;

(e) to offer the Debentures through the electronic book mechanism process pursuant to the

guidelines and circulars issued by the SEBI in this respect (including without limitation, the
requirements prescribed in Chapter VI (Electronic Book Provider platform) of the Listed NCDs
Master Circular ("SEBI EBP Requirements")), and taking all such action and steps as may be
required for the purposes of complying with relevant guidelines, including making all relevant
disclosures to the "electronic book provider";

(f) seeking the listing of any of the Debentures on any Stock Exchange, submitting the listing
application and taking all actions that may be necessary in connection with obtaining such
listing in accordance with the NCS Regulations;

(g) preparing and finalising the Debt Disclosure Documents (as defined below), in accordance with
all applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines (including any amendments, variations or
modifications of the Debt Disclosure Documents, as may be considered desirable or expedient),
and approving the Debt Disclosure Documents (including any amendments, variations or
modifications thereof);

(h) finalising the terms and conditions of the appointment of an arranger (if so required), a
debenture trustee, a registrar and transfer agent, a credit rating agency, legal counsel, a valuation
agent, a depository and such other intermediaries as may be required including their successors
and their agents;

(i) finalising the terms of, and completing all applicable requirements for the offer, issue and
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Reaching out!
allotment of the Debentures;
() entering into arrangements with the depositories in connection with issue of Debentures in
dematerialised form;
(k) creating and perfecting the Transaction Security as required in accordance with the terms of the

Transaction Documents in relation to the offer, issue and allotment of the Debentures;
1)) finalising the deemed date of allotment of the Debentures;

(m) to negotiate, execute, file and deliver any documents, instruments, deeds, amendments, papers,
applications, notices or letters as may be required in connection with the offer, issue and
allotment of the Debentures and deal with regulatory authorities in connection with the offer,
issue and allotment of the Debentures including but not limited to the RBI, SEBI (if so
required), any Stock Exchange, the jurisdictional registrar of companies, the Central Registry
of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India, the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, or any depository, and such other authorities as may be required;

(n) to execute all documents to, file forms with, and submit applications to, the jurisdictional
registrar of companies, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Central Registry of Securitisation
Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India, any Stock Exchange or any depository;

(o) to sign and/or dispatch all documents and notices to be signed and/or dispatched by the
Company under or in connection with the Transaction Documents;

(p) create the recovery expense fund in accordance with the requirements of Chapter IV (Recovery
Expenses Fund) of the SEBI master circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD1/P/CIR/2023/109 dated March 31, 2023 on "Master Circular for Debenture Trustees" (as
amended, modified, supplemented and/or restated from time to time, "Debenture Trustees
Master Circular") read with guidance note(s) issued by the Stock Exchange(s) in this regard,;

(q) complying with the requirements prescribed under the Listed NCDs Master Circular and the
Debenture Trustees Master Circular;

{r) to take all steps and do all things and give such directions as may be required, necessary,
expedient or desirable for giving effect to the Transaction Documents, the transactions
contemplated therein and the resolutions mentioned herein, including without limitation, to
approve, negotiate, finalise, sign, execute, ratify, amend, supplement and/or issue the following,
including any amendments, modifications, supplements, restatements or novations thereto
(now or in the future):

(i) the general information document, the key information document in respect of the
issuance of Debentures, and the private placement offer cum application letter for the
offer, issue and allotment of the Debentures (collectively, the "Debt Disclosure
Documents");

(i) the debenture certificate(s) for the Debentures (if required);
(iii) the debenture trust deed, the debenture trustee agreement, the deed of hypothecation,

and any other documents required for the creation of security interest over the
Company's movable properties and assets or the providing of any guarantee or
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contractual comfort, or the offer, issue and allotment of the Debentures (including any
powers of attorney in connection thereto), and any other document in relation thereto
(together with the Debt Disclosure Documents, the "Transaction Documents");

(iv) any other documents required for the purposes of the offer, issue and allotment of the
Debentures and the transactions contemplated thereby, including but not limited to
letters of undertaking, declarations, agreements, reports; and

(v) any other document designated as a Transaction Document by the debenture trustee
and/or the holders of the Debentures;

(s) to do all acts necessary for the finalisation of the terms of, and completing all applicable
requirements for the offer, issue and allotment of the Debentures in accordance with the terms
set out in the Transaction Documents; and

(t) to generally do any other act or deed, to negotiate and execute any documents, applications,
agreements, undertakings, deeds, affidavits, declarations and certificates in relation to the offer,
issue and allotment of the Debentures, and to give such directions as it deems fit or as may be
necessary or desirable with regard to the finalisation of the terms of, and completing all
applicable requirements for the offer, issue and allotment of the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authorised to
take all necessary steps relating to the creation, perfection and registration of charges and also to sign
and submit the necessary forms in relation to the Transaction Security and/or the offer, issue and
allotment of the Debentures with any Stock Exchange, the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset
Reconstruction and Security Interest of India, the jurisdictional registrar of companies, the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, or any depository, the SEBI, or any other governmental authority.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authorised to pay
all stamp duty required to be paid for the offer, issue and allotment of the Debentures and the
Transaction Documents, including through any intermediaries such as the Stock Exchanges, clearing
corporations or any depositories that may be authorised in this regard, in accordance with the laws of
India and procure the stamped documents from the relevant governmental authorities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Committee hereby approves and ratifies all such acts, deeds and
actions taken by the Company till date for the purpose of the offer, issue and allotment of the
Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authorised to
record the name of the holders of the Debentures in the register of debenture holders and to undertake
such other acts, deeds and acts as may be required to give effect to the finalisation of the terms of, and
completing all applicable requirements for, the offer, issue and allotment of the Debentures and the
listing of the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authorised to
approve and finalise, sign, execute and deliver the Transaction Documents and such other agreements,
deeds, undertakings, indemnity and documents as may be required, or any of them in connection with
the Debentures to be issued by the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authorised to
register or lodge for registration upon execution documents, letter(s) of undertakings, declarations, and
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agreements and other papers or documents as may be required in relation to any of the above with any
registering authority or governmental authority competent in that behalf.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authorised to
delegate the powers to any other employee/representative/agent as may be deemed necessary to do such
acts and execute such documents as may be required in connection with any of the matters relating to
the finalisation of the terms of, and completing all applicable requirements for the offer, issue and
allotment of the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authorized to
affix the Common Seal of the Company, in the presence of any Director(s) of the Company and/or any
Authorised Persons and/or the Company Secretary of the Company who shall sign/ countersign the
same in token thereof in accordance with the articles of association of the Company, on any of the
Transaction Documents, and/or any other agreements and documents that may be required in relation
to the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copies of the foregoing resolutions certified to be true copies by
Chairman cum Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary & Chief
Compliance Officer of the Company be furnished to such persons as may be deemed necessary."

Certified True Copy

FOrSn Creditc eRetwork Limited

A
S
@y
o

M.No.:\AZ42Z81 ™ ;
Address: Address: Plot No.492, Udyog Vihar,
Phase 111, Gurugram - 122006

Date: October 9, 2023
Place: Gurugram
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN THE TWENTY NINTH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LIMITED
HELD ON SATURDAY, JULY 6, 2019 AT “LITTLE THEATRE GROUP AUDITORIUM, 1,
COPERNICUS MARG, NEW DELHI-110001

1. CREATION OF CHARGES ON THE MOVABLE AND IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES OF THE
COMPANY, BOTH PRESENT AND FUTURE, IN RESPECT OF BORROWINGS U/S 180(1)(A) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

“RESOLVED THAT consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded pursuant to section
180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 67 of the Articles
of Association of the Company and the rules made thereunder, to the Board of Directors of the Company to
pledge, mortgage and/or charge on all or any part of the Moveable or [Immovable properties of the Company
and the whole or part of the undertaking of the Company of every nature and kind whatsoever and/or creating
a fixed or floating charge on all or any Movable or Immovable properties of the Company and the whole of the
undertaking of the Company to or in favour of Banks, Financial Institutions, any other Lenders or Debenture
Trustees to secure the amount borrowed by the Company or any third party from time to time for the due
payment of the Principal together with interest, charges, costs, expenses and all other monies payable by the
Company or any third party in respect of such borrowings provided that the maximum extent of the
indebtedness secured by the properties of the Company does not exceed Rs. 15,000 Crore (Rupees Fifteen
Thousand Crore Only) at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do such
acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents, undertakings as may be necessary for giving effect to the
above resolution.”

2. TO INCREASE THE BORROWING POWER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION
180(1)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

“RESOLVED THAT consent of the members be and is hereby accorded pursuant to section 180(1)(c) and
other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder read with Article
67 of the Articles of Association of the Company, to the Board of Directors of the company to raise or borrow
from time to time such sum or sums as they may deem appropriate for the purposes of the Company
notwithstanding that the monies already borrowed and the monies to be borrowed (apart from temporary loans
obtained from company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) will exceed the paid-up capital of the
company, free reserves and securities premium of the company not set apart for any specific purpose provided
that the total amount upto which monies may be borrowed by the Board of Directors shall not exceed Rs. 15,000
Crore (Rupees Fifteen Thousand Crore Only) at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do
such acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents, undertakings as may be necessary for giving effect to
the above resolution.”

Certified True Cop

Date: August 11,2023
Place: Gurugram

CORPORATE OFFICE: REGISTERED OFFICE: CIN : L65991DL1990PLC041796
Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, 5th Floor, Kundan Bhawan, Landline No : 0124-4715400

Phase — |ll, Gurugram, Azadpur Commerclal Complex, E-Mall ID : inffo@satincreditcare.com
Haryana — 122016, India Azadpur, New Dethl — 110033, Indla Webslte : www.satincredltcare.com

e, N N, N



‘SATIN SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LTD.

Reaching out!
CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE THIRTY THIRD
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SATIN CREDITCARE
NETWORK LIMITED HELD ON WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 9, 2023 THROUGH VIDEO
CONFERENCING / OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS

ISSUE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDS), IN ONE OR MORE
SERIES/TRANCHES ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier special resolution passed at the 32*¢ Annual
General Meeting of the Members’ of the Company held on August 10, 2022 and pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 23, 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014
and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended, including any statutory
modification(s), amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021,
as amended, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing' Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021 on “Operational Circular for issue and
listing of Non-Convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal
Debt Securities and Commercial Paper”, each as amended and the enabling provision of the listing
agreements entered into with the stock exchanges where the shares or other securities of the
Company are listed, the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) Master Directions on Non-Banking
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and all other rules, regulations, guidelines, notifications,
clarifications and circulars, if any, issued by any statutory/regulatory authority, as may be applicable,
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such consents,
approvals, permissions and sanctions of the concerned statutory and regulatory authorities, if any
and to the extent necessary, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall include any
committee constituted / may be constituted by the Board to exercise its powers including the powers
conferred under this resolution) to create, offer, invite for subscription, issue and allot secured/
unsecured/subordinated/senior, rated/unrated, listed/unlisted, perpetual or non-perpetual,
redeemable (including market linked debentures), cumulative or non-cumulative non-convertible
debentures (“NCDs”) by way of private placement, in 1 (one) or more series or tranches, from time
to time, to any category of investors eligible to invest in the NCDs and the aggregate amount to be
raised through the issuance of NCDs shall not collectively exceed an overall limit of upto INR
5,000,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Thousand Crore only) (“Limit”) on such terms and
conditions including the price, coupon, premium/discount, tenor etc., and at such times whether at
par/premium/discount, as may be determined by the Board to such person or persons including one
or more company(ies), bodies corporate, foreign portfolio investor(s), overseas fund(s), statutory
corporation(s), commercial bank(s), domestic and multilateral lending agency(ies), financial
institution(s), insurance company(ies), mutual fund(s), alternative investment fund(s),
pension/provident fund(s), family office(s), and individual(s), as the case may be or such other
person/persons/investors as the Board may so decide/approve in its absolute discretion, for a period
of 1 (one) year or for such other period as permissible under applicable laws, from the date of
approval of this resolution by the Members of the Company and the Limit shall be subject to tl

overall borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the Members of the Company from tiphe
to time under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act. s Y,
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be
and is hereby authorised to determine the terms of issue of NCDs including but not limited to
determining size, issue price, timing, tenure, interest rate, listing, if required, creation of security,
utilization of the issue proceeds, appointment of debenture trustee(s), registrar and transfer agent,
legal counsel and other agency(ies) and to do all necessary acts and things and to execute all deeds,
documents, instruments, papers and writings as may be required and to settle all questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard in its sole and absolute discretion deem fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of'its
powers conferred herein to any committee authorised by the Board, or any Director(s) or
executive(s)/officer(s) of the Company.”

Certified True Copy
For Satin Creditcarj_e;,_N_ tqran_l:_k Limited

e

Comp tary & Chief Compliance Officer

Date: August 11, 2023
Place: Gurugram
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013

Pursuant to Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is required to
obtain the approval of its members by way of a special resolution, before making any offer or invitation
for issuance of NCDs on a private placement basis. The said approval shall be the basis for the Board
of Directors of the Company (“Board”) to determine the terms and conditions of any issuance of NCDs
by the Company for a period of 1 (one) year from the date on which the members have provided the
approval by way of the special resolution.

In order to augment resources for on-lending by the Company, repayment/refinance of existing debt,
working capital requirement, purchase of assets, investments, general corporate purposes, and for any
other purposes, the Company may invite subscription for secured / unsecured / subordinated / senior,
rated / unrated, listed / unlisted, perpetual or non-perpetual, redeemable (including market linked
debentures), cumulative or non-cumulative non-convertible debentures (“NCDs”), in 1 (one) or more
series / tranches on private placement basis. The NCDs proposed to be issued, may be issued either at
par or at premium or at a discount to face value and the issue price (including premium, if any) shall be
decided by the Board on the basis of various factors including the interest rate / effective yield
determined, based on market conditions prevailing at the time of the issue(s).

The disclosures required pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 are set out herein below:

Particulars of the offer | The third proviso to the Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Prospectus
including date of passing | and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (“Prospectus and
Board Resolution Allotment Rules”), prescribes that where the proposed amount to
be raised through offer or invitation of NCDs (as defined above)
exceeds the limit prescribed under Section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013, it shall be sufficient if the Company passes
a previous special resolution only once in a year for all the offers
or invitations for such NCDs during such year.

In view of this, pursuant to this resolution under Section 42 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the specific terms of each offer/issue of
NCDs [whether secured/unsecured/subordinated/senior,
rated/unrated, listed/unlisted, perpetual or non-perpetual,
redeemable (including market linked debentures) NCDs] shall be
decided from time to time, within a period of 1 (one) year from the
date of the aforementioned resolution. In line with Rule 14(1) of
the Prospectus and Allotment Rules, the date of the relevant
resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”)
shall be mentioned/disclosed in the private placement offer cum
application letter for each offer/issue of the NCDs. The particulars
of each offer shall be determined by the Board (including any
committee duly authorized by the Board), from time to time.

Kind of securities offered and | Non-convertible debt instruments/NCDs.
the price at which the security
is being offered The non-convertible debt instruments/NCDs will be offered/issued
either at par or at premium or at a discount to face value, which
will be decided by the Board (including any committee duly

CORPORATE OFFICE: REGISTERED OFFICE: CIN : L65991DL1990PLC041796
Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, 5th Floor, Kundan Bhawan, Landline No : 0124-4715400

Phase - lll, Gurugram, Azadpur Commercial Complex, E-Mall ID : inffo@satincreditcare.com
Haryana - 122016, India Azadpur, New Delhl — 110033, India Waebsite : www.satincreditcare.com

1 N . Ny, Nun, T e DS T Nl



SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LTD.

Reaching out!

c SATIN

authorized by the Board) for each specific issue, on the basis of the |
interest rate/effective yield determined, based on market conditions
prevailing at the time of the respective issue.

Basis or justification for the
price (including premium, if
any) at which the offer or
invitation is being made

Not applicable, as the securities proposed to be issued (in a single
issue or multiple issues/tranches) are non-convertible debt
instruments/NCDs which will be issued either at par or at premium
or at adiscount to face value in accordance with terms to be decided
by the Board (including any committee duly authorized by the
Board), in discussions with the relevant investor(s).

Name and address of valuer
who performed valuation

Not applicable as the securities proposed to be issued (in a single
issue or multiple issues/tranches) are non-convertible debt
instruments/NCDs.

Amount which the Company
intends to raise by way of
securities

The specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs shall be decided
from time to time, for a period of 1 (one) year from the date of the
aforementioned resolution, provided that the amounts of all such
NCDs at any time issued during such period of 1 (one) year from
the date of passing of the aforementioned special resolution shall
not exceed in the aggregate, the limit specified in the resolution
under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. upto 5,000 crore
(Rupees Five Thousand Crore only) and shall be subject to the
overall borrowing limits of the Company as approved by the
members of the Company from time to time under Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Material terms of raising of
securities, proposed time
schedule, purposes or objects
of offer, contribution being
made by the promoters or
directors either as part of the

offer or separately in
furtherance of objects;
principle terms of assets

charged as securities

The material/specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs and the
other information being sought herein shall be decided by the
Board (including any committee duly authorized by the Board)
from time to time within the period of 1 (one) year from the date
of the aforementioned resolution, in discussions with the respective
investor(s). These disclosures will be specifically made in the
respective transaction documents executed in respect of each
offer/issue.

Accordingly, consent of the Members of the Company is sought in connection with the aforesaid issue
of NCDs and they are requested to authorize the Board to issue such NCDs for a period of 1 (one) year
on private placement basis upto 25,000 Crore (Rupees Five Thousand Crore only) as stipulated above,
in one or more series/tranches on private placement basis within subject to the overall borrowing limits
of the Company, the overall borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the members of the
Company from time to time under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Certified True Copy

For Satin Creditcare Network Limited

(Vikas Gupta)

Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
M.No.: A24281

Date: August 11, 2023

Place: Gurugram
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Independent Auditor’s Limited Review Report on unaudited standalone financial results
of Satin Creditcare Network Limited for the quarter ended June 30, 2023, pursuant to the
Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

To the Board of Directors of
Satin Creditcare Network Limited

1.  We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited standalone financial results
of Satin Creditcare Network Limited (‘the Company') for the quarter ended June 30, 2023
(‘the Statement’) attached herewith, being prepared and submitted by the Company
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
(‘the Listing Regulations’), which has been initialed by us for identification purpose.

2.  This statement, which is the responsibility of the Company’s Management and has been
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been prepared in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting
Standards 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” (Ind AS 34), prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant Rules issued thereunder and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, read with the Listing
Regulations. Our responsibility is to issue a conclusion on the Statement based on our
review.

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagement (SRE) 2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (‘the ICATI’"). This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain
moderate assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A
review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries primarily of person
responsible for financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope then an audit conducted in accordance
with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that
we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

4, Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the accompanying Statement, prepared in all material respects in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Bect, 2013, as amended read with relevant rules issued thereunder including the



amendments thereof and other recognized accounting practices and policies generally
accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations including the manner in
which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756N

Naveen Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 094380
UDIN : 23094380BGUNAZ9558

Place : Gurugram
Date : July 28, 2023
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presented

AL

Harvinder Pal Singh
Chairman cum Managing Director
DIN: 00333754







4.

The Statement includes the financial results of the following entities :

Wholly owned subsidiaries
A. Satin Housing Finance Limited;
B.  Satin Finserv Limited.

Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above
and paragraph 6 below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principle laid down in the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) prescribed
under Section 133 the Act as amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information
required to be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations including the manner in which
it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

We did not review the financial results of 2 (two) wholly owned subsidiaries included in
the Statement, whose financial results reflect total revenues of Rs. 4,382.96 Lakhs, total net
profit/ (loss) after tax of Rs. 199.36 Lakhs and total comprehensive income/ (loss) of Rs.
(16.19) Lakhs for the quarter ended June 30, 2023. These financial results have been
reviewed by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management
and our conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these wholly owned subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of
the other auditors and the procedures performed by us as stated in paragraph 3 above.
According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, these
financial results are not material to the Group.

Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of matter stated in paragraph
above.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756N

Naveen Aggarwal

Partner
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone audited financial results of Satin Creditcare
Network Limited for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2023, pursuant to the Regulations 33
and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

To the Board of Directors of
Satin Creditcare Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Annual Financial Results

Opinion

1

We have audited the accompanying annual standalone financial results of Satin Creditcare
Network Limited (‘the Company’) for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and year to date results
for the period from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 (‘the Statement’) attached herewith, being
submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulations 33 and Regulation 52
read with Regulation 63 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 20185, as amended (“the Listing Regulations"), which has been initialled by us for the
identification purpose.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Statement:

1 presents financial results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations;
and
ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards

(‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), relevant
rules issued thereunder, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India read
with the Listing regulations, of the net profit and other comprehensive income and other
financial information of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and the year to
date results for the period from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023.

Basis for opinion

3.

We conducted our audit of the Statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’)
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement” section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) and the rules thereunder, together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by usis
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Statement

4.

This Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual audited financial
statements and has been approved by the Company's Board of Directors.

The Company’s management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view of the net profit and
other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under Section
133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, and in compliance with the Listing Regulations.
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view and is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing Company'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement

5

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section
143(10) of the Act, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has in place
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
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on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Statement that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial results may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
results.

1. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

8. We also provide those charged with governance with a Statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Otherx Matters

DELH!

SATIN | Audit Report - March’2023 (Standalone) Page3 | 3



el |
\U:<New ELH\> ) % GURGRON |G
p O A




TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

7.64.539.65

7.37.540.50




// AT DI RE ETWORK LTD

Notes:
Cash and cash equivalents 21,33516 1,04,900 58
Less: Overdrafi facility against term deposits (19,418 55)

21,335.16 85,482.03

YR KGR
2 [ e DgLHY Q 2
w, NE “ }éf ' 1‘?:



V /4

AT

RED

RE E WORKLTD

7B  AON




7

ATI REDT RE E WORKLTD
e
P Y e
& ) <[ curbaoN | o
% o\ “UREAON)
o | NEWDE ;‘é) OO )



Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Annual Financial Results of Satin Creditcare
Network Limited for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2023 pursuant to the Regulations
33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

To the Board of Directors
Satin Creditcare Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Annual Financial Results
Opinion

1 We have audited the accompanying consolidated annual financial results of Satin Creditcare
Network Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’), for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and
year to date results for the period from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 (‘the Statement’)
attached herewith, being submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the requirements
of Regulations 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (‘the Listing Regulations”),
which has been initialled by us for identification purpose.

2 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of other auditors on separate audited
financial statements of the subsidiaries, as referred to in paragraph 11 below, the Statement:

(i) includes the annual financial results of the following wholly owned subsidiaries: -

a Satin Housing Finance Limited (SHFL); and
b Satin Finserv Limited (SFL)

(ii) presents financial results in accordance with the requirements the Listing Regulations;
and

(iii) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with relevant
Rules issued thereunder, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated net profit and other comprehensive income and other financial
information of the Group, for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and year to date results
for the period from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion
3. We conducted our audit of the Statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing

(‘SAs") specified under Section143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement” section
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of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the ICAT’) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Statements under the provisions of the Act,
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us and that obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in paragraph 11 of the “Other Matter” section below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Matters relating to subsidiary company - Satin Finserv Limited

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note no. 03 to the statements which explain that, during the year,
Taraashna Financial Services Limited (amalgamating entity) was amalgamated with Satin
Finserv Limited vide Hon’ble NCLT Order dated January 31, 2023. The scheme got effective
from March 01, 2023. The Appointed Date of Scheme is April 01, 2021. By the effect of
Appointed Date (i.e., April 01, 2021), the financial numbers of SFL for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022, are also restated due to amalgamation of the merged entity i.e. TFSL
with the SFL.

We further draw attention to Note No 04 to the consolidated financial results which explains
that due to the amalgamation of the amalgamating entity with the SFL, which is registered
as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC), as on March 31, 2023, SFL is not fulfilling
Principal Business Criteria laid down by the RBI. As per the criteria, at least 50% of total
assets of the company should be financial assets and at least 50% of the gross income should
be from financial activities. SFL meets the first criteria but does not meet the second criteria
as on March 31, 2023.

However, the RBI vide letter dated July 22, 2022, has granted to the SFL time till March 31,
2024, for fulfilling the said criterion.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Statement

The Statement, which is the responsibility of the Holding Company’s management and has
been approved by the Holding Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared on the
basis of the consolidated annual audited financial statements.

The Holding Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view of the
consolidated net profit and consolidated other comprehensive income, and other financial
information of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
Rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in
compliance with the Listing Regulations.
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The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act, for safequarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively, for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement , that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial
results have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Statement, the respective Management and the Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the respective Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the companies included in the
Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement

6. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, will always detect a material misstatement, when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error, and are considered material if, individually, or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this Statement.

7 As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the group has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and the Board
of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management and Board of directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/ financial
information/ financial statements of the entities within the Group of which we are the to
express an opinion on the Statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision,
and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in the
Statement, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in
the Statement, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors
remains responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial results.

8 We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and the
subsidiary included in the Statement of which, regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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10.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

We also performed procedures in accordance with SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019
dated March 29, 2019, issued by the SEBI under Regulation 33 (8) of the Listing Regulations
to the extent applicable.

Other Matter

11

12.

The accompanying Statement includes the audited financial statement and other information
in respect of the subsidiaries , whose financial results reflects total assets of¥81,217.68 lakhs
as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of ? 4,586.39 lakhs and ¥ 16,837.90 lakhs, total net profit/
(loss) after tax of ¥ 519.10 lakhs and % 1,198.66 lakhs, total comprehensive income/(loss) of
510.42 lakhs and ¥ 1036.80 lakhs for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the period
from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 respectively, and cash Inflow (net) of ¥ 802.13 lakhs for
the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the Statement. These annual financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose audit reports have been furnished to
us by the management, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on the audit reports of such other
auditors, and the procedures performed by us as stated in paragraph 10 above.

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors.

The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 being the balancing
figures between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31, 2023
and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the nine months period ended
December 31, 2022, which were subjected to a limited review by us, as required under the
Listing Regulations.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. - 000756N

Naveen Aggarwal

AN

Partner
Membership No. - 094380
UDIN: 23094380BGUMXU65117

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 29, 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Satin Creditcare Network Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1) We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Satin Creditcare Network
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Stalement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equily for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

2) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under section
133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its loss (including cther
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3) We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. QOur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Res:gonsibililigs for lhﬂr Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of






As at 31 March 2021, the Company has financial [ Our  audit focused on assessing the
assets (loans) amounting to Rs. 551,496.23 lakh | appropriateness of management's judgment and
includina laane which ara rarried at fair value | estimates used in the impairment analvsis throuah

rabégnise allowance for expectéd credit losses on a) performed a walkthrough of the impairment
financial assets. loss allowance process and assessed the
design effectiveness of controls;
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aeveioping iNe EuL mouer,
The Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") is measured at

12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at | d) obtained the policy on moratorium of loans

lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. approved by the Board of Directors pursuant

Significant management  judgement  and to the RBI circulars and ensured such policy

assumptions involved in measuring ECL is is in compliant with the requirements of the
required with respect to: RBI circular;

e) evaluated the appropriateness of the

» determining the criteria for a significant Company's determination of significant

increase in credit risk increase in credit risk in accordance with the

applicable accounting standard considering

= factoring in future economic assumptions the impact of COVID-19 on account of benefit

extended by the Company lo select borrowers
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credit losses, we have identified this as a key
audit matter for current year audit.

We also draw altention to Note 54 of the
accompanying standalone financial statements,
regarding uncertainties involved due to outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic with respect to the
measurement of expected credit loss on such loan
assets which are significantly dependent on
uncertain future developments as the same is
fundamental to the understanding of the users of
financial statements.
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the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsiblilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

11)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
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matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

15)  From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those malters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repori because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

weidd i g : 2l et -



information and accoraing 10 Ine expianaucns givern w us,

i} the Company, as detailed in note 51 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigation(s) on its financial position as at 31 March 2021;

i) the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021,

iii) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021; and

iv) the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 20186, which are not relevant to
these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No:001076N/N500013

-
-

Manish Gujral
Partner
Membership No: 105117



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(c

b)

c)

—

In accordance with this program, certain nxed asseis were Verntiea auring e year @nua nv
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head 'Property,
plant and equipment’) are held in the name of the Company except for the following property
which was transferred as a result of amalgamation of companies as stated in the Note 14 to
the Standalone Financial Statements wherein the tittle deeds are in the name of the erstwhile
Company:

(Amount in lakh)

Nature Total Whether Gross Net block as | Remarks
of number | leasehold | block as on | on 31 March
property | of cases |/ freehold 31 March 2021
2021
Building 1 Freehold 292.00 149.02 The said property is in

the name of Satin
Intellicomm  Limited,
an erstwhile Company
that merged with the
Company.

The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the
Order are not applicable.

Ihe Company has granted secured and unsecured loans to companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act; and with respect to the same:

in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial
to the Company’s interest;

the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and, in our
opinien, repayments/receipts of the principal amount and the interest are regular; and

there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.






(x) No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or

reported during the period covered by our audit except for few instances of misappropriation of
SR PR | N i BN b scms nnAd athar farme nf amhazzlamant nf rach hv tha amnlovaess.

Act, 1934 and such registranion nas Deen oplainedu vy e wompdity.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013

-

Manish Gujral
Partner
Membership No:105117

UDIN:21105117TAAAADKGBEE

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14 June 2021
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Auditing issued by the ICAl prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAl, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequale internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing precedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with referenca to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
i ko A e Maa Andibada Bidaamant  incliodine tha acencemaont nf tha ricks of
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8)

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal cantrol stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAL.



SATIN CREDITOARE NETWORK LIMITED
Standbalone Balance Shect asal Mareh 31, 2021
AL amoimis in 1akbs unless atherwase stated)

ASSETS
neial nsscis

Casloand cash equuvalents
ank batances other than cash and cash equivalents
Derivative financial instruments

Trade receivahles

Lonnhs

Investinents

Other financial agscls

Non-linancial assets

Current tax asscls {nel)
Difered fax assets (net)
Ivestment Property

Property. plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other intanpible asscis

Other non-fimmeial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUNTY
LIABIL
Financial linh
Payables
Trade poyables
(1) total outstanding dues of inicro enterprises and small enterpnises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small citerprises
Other pavables
(1) 1otal autstanding dues of micro enteiprises and small enteiprises
{11y total outstanding des of ereditors other than micre enterpises and sall entemprises
Debt securities
Borrowings {other than debl secunties)
Subordinated liabi
Oither financial liabilities

{3

Non-financial liabilities
Current tax fiahilities {net)
Pravisions

Notes

18

19
20
21

b d

23
4

Asal
Mareh 31, 202

|12.068.58
74,195,531
3413
146192
551,490.23
28,318 30
3,156:42

Asal
ALireh 31, 2020

| 16,732,027
G5,434,15
47163
61314
ATI39 10
$1,533445
1,758.77

T70,720.8%

T01,484.26

315299

4,600 86 -

093,73 -
838437 524124
364.96 340304
2RETY 37817
2379.82 1.752.61
16,721,558 13,938.65
TR7 451,42 T15,422.91
= 8138
9162 300.99
223 90 22771
143408 122008
170507, 14 8638614
381.043.15 400,213.72
5041279 5430813
304437 44 2400091
635,446.72 567,139.06

f93.52 -
1.316.16 108640



SATIN CREMTCARE NETWORK LIMITED
Standalone *

(AN amounts i Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

L Income
Heven
Interest
Driviclend income
Fees ani commission income
MNet gain on [air value chanues

{rinm operat
e

et gain on derecognition of fimancial instruments
Onher operating ineome

Other income
Total income

11, Expenses
Finance cosis
et Toss oo fair value changes
Impairment an financial instruments
Employee benefils expenses
Dreprecintion and amonisalion
Other expenses

Total expenses

(Loss)/profit hefore tax
Tax expense:

Curront 1ax

Dreferred tax charne
Tutal

(Loss)/profit after tax
Other comprehensive inceme

Ttems that will not he veclassified 10 profit or loss
Re-meazurenents of the defined benefit plans
Income tax rebating to shove ileins

Tteis that will be veclassified to profit or loss
Changes in fair value of loan assets
Income tax relating to above item
Cash Mow hedye reserve
Income tax relating to above ftem

itement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Noles

35
i
36
17
I8
3%

40

FFor the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021

Fur the year ended
Marck 31, 2020

111,680 08 107,844.38
- 231
2,160.16 7078.65
E 1,237.44
1104273 23,608 14
204.93 186.20
127,102.90 139,957.11
204 62 133.30
127,307.52 140,090.41
61,760 83 57,686.12
645,30 S
2752124 14882 89
28,141 88 29,666 70
1,301.32 1,519.84
891323 11.018.01
128,283.80 118,773.65
(976.28) 21,316.76
4,962,714 547497
(4,383 .53) 215,08
379.21 5,690.05
(1,355,49) 15,626,71
86,62} R7.80
21.80 (22.10)
(6:4.82) 65,70
14,189.73} 577141
1,129.99 {1.452.55)
(65.89) 9337
16,58 (23.50)
(3,409,05) 4,388.73




Net gain on derecognition of propey, plant aud equipment
Pt value gam on mutual fusds
Unrealised (gain)oss on fair value changes of dervatives and vesiments

First loss default guarantee expenses
Share based payment 1o employees
Effective interest rate adjustment [or finaneial inslruments

rnen e e e

(9.37)
(1.91)
650,21

PN

1,155.20
19,02
2,198,538

anen

(2.90)
(1,368.20)
130.76

1.278.78
147.97
2,087.29

vavnn




SATIN CREDITCARE NETWORK LINMITED
Standalone cash Now statement Tor the vear ended Mareh 31, 2021
(AT amounts 2 Lakhs, unless olherwise stated)

fr) Refer wrte 21 fur recoancifiateny of Dabities arising from flaneng aeivibies.
(1) Refer note 3 for restricted caxl and coh eqnnvadents,

This Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report ol even date,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the yeéar ended
March 31,2020
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of India (“RBI") in November 2013.°T hc Company is engaged pumduly I proy jdmg micra finance scrvices to women

in the rural arcas of India who are enrolled as members and organized as Joint Liability Groups (JLG'). The Company

1 St Tt s ban weianind T i cibeatad ae 8l Blane Kandan Rhawan Avadioe Coammercial Comnles

Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
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Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depteciation and impairment

losses, DLPL(‘C]AL[()H on pmpnt) plant and equipment is provided on the written down value method over the useful

L TR - B crd i Biat 2 AFQalaadinla TT Af the (Tamnaniee Aot 13

Building 60 years

Electrical equipment 10-25 years




<)

Intangible assets

criteria are met and directly attributable cOSE 0T DFNGING INE A55CL L0 115 WOLIILY COLIUOUT LUL LHE THLLHLGAL Uk,

Subsequent tieasurement (amortisation welbod, wsefil fves and revidal vetlree)
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Lrag

Dividend income is recognised at the time when the 1ight to receive is established by the reporting date.

MEERE Bai ey

Misceltunvons fncome
A et T i min i amninsal Raoie: wlen thaes e naaneesckaintr in the nltimate tealization fealloetion.

Borrowing cots consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Bortowing costs charged to the Statement of Prolit and Loss on the basis of effective interest rate method.

g) Taxation



e e = e - , . . X )
the absences are expected to oceur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of the period i which the
il samdas thaealatad camreoe and nanomanetare henafite for eneeent emnlovees are estimated and measured

Post-employment benent PIAnS are CIASSHICU 110 UCHIEU UEHEIIS PIals iU UCHISU CULILIZUUUL pians a2
under:

ety . . O . o . z e ] ;S T BRI, NS - A CIRSPRSS S L D T e



[iinancial guarantees are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, the lability is measured at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less



Oiher financal assets
Tn tespect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit visk on those financial assets has mcreased

B s e a5 dmminisioin TE tha sendil viel hae nat increacad clonificantle ginee initial cecomnition. the

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expectred life

of the [inancial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
A S i e

. ~ s R 1o AR



e the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the ecconomic benefits from use of the identibied asset
thronghour the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract the Company
has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.



TR R g e . *
¢ of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

of minimum lease payments Lo fair valu

A Pmancial mstrament (s any CONTract AL FIVES ISC 10 4 IHTALICTAL 45501 UL ULIC CLILILY @10 UG L IEELLTLY UL G LY

instrument of another entty.

Ot T

e The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecring

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
s The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPT test
FVOCT debr instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses atising due to changes in fair

value recognised in OCI. Tnterest income are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets

measured at amortised cost,
Investments in equity instruments — Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are

iif.

classified as at fair value through profit or loss (V'ITPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company makes

an irrevocable choice upon initial recogaition, on an instrument by instrument basis, to classify the same either
a [ i 1 1 - * il S8 tas iy SR L STl b A B R LT R s FEYTTTIT Y
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with all changes recognized in the P&l

recognised [Le. temoved from the Lompany's Dalance SNCETj WNCN e CONTACLUAL IS L0 LECEIVE UIE LadlL 110w
from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are
transferred. [further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also de-recognise the financial asset and
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Derivative contracts

Hedge Accounting




Basic earnings per share is caleulated by d ividing the ner profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders

(after deducting artributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
il R ] SRR S RS et a

P o mabataindine dnsias the sasad foadinetod Forsvante inclndine a hanme

associated) for the period atiributable to equity shareholders and the Welgnred average NuInuen OL SIRLEs DUty
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equiry shares.




Business model assessment - The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achicve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement
- . i L

wl = ALl sl i wE sleid ks s aealivarad sad fhaie moefaamanecs

prio[ to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consisient wirn e
objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoting is part of the Company's continuous assessment
of whether the business model for swhich the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it

o Estahlishing the number and relative WeEIgNTINGS O [OIWAIO-IOOKILY SCEUALIUS UL Catm Lype o
product/market and the associated ECL; and
e [Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis of the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities, However, the acrual
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Siendficant estiniates

Uscful lives of depreciable/amortisahle assets — Management teviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Pait value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active matket quotes are not available). This involves developing cstimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.
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T | 112,068.58 | 11,732,02 |

T I Asal Asat |
Deposils will Fernaiming malirity more Inar 1.2 monins JU—
Halunee with banks and finaneial msttutions (o the extent held as margin money deposits against borrowings and guarantees 6342443 6402701

L Tatal 74,195.31 65¢134.15
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I"articulars Mareh 31,2021 Alareh 31,2020
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Total 1 = 1 B B |
LAw— Asal Asat
AriLiL 2 anan Alicak 11 2000
1 -~ ' . '
R L 1 2LL94 | R Ay |
Fair valuation of |oan assets through other cemprehensive meome 243919 0.0] {1,129.99) [ 309721
Cash Now hedae reserve 2350 {0.92) {16:3%) -
Right of use assets 21388 (67.33) - 14635
Deferment of excess intercst spread 3277 42 (881.144) - 239628
Totul (nety {1,142,04) 4,583.53 1,168.37 460986
(Charged) credited (o] (Charged)feredited to
Particulars At statement of profit | other comprehensive Asal
April 1, 2019 z Mareh 31, 2020
and loss income
Assels
Pravision for employee benefils 473.30 {22219} {2210 22901
Pifference m wiitten down value as per Companies Actand Income Tax Act 20538 {63 09) - 23229
Francinl nssets measured al amortised cost 1naens (11548} 3
Imparrmen| loss allowance and first loss default puarantee 3.728.76 433 .64 A,162.40
ceee . Z 26 67 = 22662




Accumulated depreciation
Openmg balanee -
Additiens during the year 3591

B, Amounls recognised in Statement of profit and loss for investoent property
Rental income 17 10
Less: Depreciation expense 3551

Loss from invest t property {18,41]
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- Additions — being internally developed

- Additions — others 0.08 0.08
Adjustment on account of disposals . =
Balance as al March 31, 2021 1,239.29 1,239.29
Accumulated amortisation
Mdo— - - i 411 3040 TR3 24 TR3I.26



| Tatal 1 Laimne | 1y raemn |
ll'ilrllculnrs Aeat Al
Mareh 31,2021 March 31,2020
L___total 1 s "
Particulars RLbE iy
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31,2000
18 Other payables
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer Lo note 59) 22390 270
T'otal outstanding dues of ereditors ether than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,434 63 1,220,08
Total 1,658.58 1,447.95%
Particulars At A4l
Murch 31, 2021 March 31,2020
1% Debt securities (at amortised cost)
MNon-convertible debentures 170,507 14 0,380,104
Total 170,507,104 86,380,14
Dbt securities i India 170,507 14 B6.380 14
Dely securities outside India % I
Totul 170,507.14 H6,386,14
Particulars Terms of repaynent et Azal
i March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{A) Non-convertible debentures (secured)
1Rl (nareh 31, 20200 2509, G210.35% (Previous year © 10:35%), Secured, rated | Redeemuble on May 8, 2020,
unlisted redeemable non-cenvertible debentwres of face value of T 1,000,000
cach, The date of allatment 15 February 27, 20H%. % 2,500,010
(Seeured by way of hypothecation of book debts which shall be mumtained at
1005 of principal amount of the debentures utstanding )
21200 (March 31, 2020 200). 4212.75% {Previous year . 12.75%), Securcd, listed,|Redeemable nt par on June 30, 2023, subjeet 1o
redeemable, non-gonvertible debentures of face value of ¥ 2,500,600 cach, Thel|eall/pul eption an July 15, 2021
dale of allotment 1s July |5, 2014 5,000.00 5.000.00
(Securad by way of hypothecation ol book debis which shall be maintained at
110% of prineipal amount of the debentures oustanding )
3INIl (March 31, 2020; 250), (@13.35% (Previous year = 13.35%), Secured, rated | Redeemable on Nevember 30,2020,
redeemable, listed, non-convertible debentures of face value of 21,000,000 cach,/
“The date of allotment 1s November 3, 2016 = 2 500,00
{Secured by way of hypothecation of book debis which shall be mattamed at
100% of prineipal gmount of the debentures outstanding )
A[Nil (March 31, 2020 450), @1134% (Previous year © |1.34%), Secured,|Redeemable al par on Decentber 7, 2020
unlisted, redeemable non-eonvenible debentures of face value of T 1,000,000
each, The date of allotment is December 7, 2017 g 4,500,000
{Secvred by way of hypothecation of bock debt which shall s maimiamed at
100% of principsl amount of the debentures outstanding. )
S[Nil (March 31, 20200 330), @11 59% (Previeus year = 11,99%), Seenred, |Redeemable at par on Becember 8, 2020
unhisted. redecmable non-convertible debentures of face value of 21,000,000
each, The date of allotment is December 8, 2017 " 3,300.00
(Secured by way of hypothecation of book debts wlich shall be matntained a
100% of prncipal ameount of the debentures sutstanding )
B[ Ml (March 31, 2020: 203, @14 50 % (Previous year - 14.50%), Secured, senior, Redeemable an December |8, 2020, subject 1o
rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of 21,000,000 each, [ put option on May 3, 2019
The date of allotment 15 May 8, 2015 = 0 00
(Sccured by way of hy